TER R R R 5]

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED o

B #%45% Stock Code: 00604 %ﬁ P




REsiait

e
| e
i




Contents

H &%

(@]

10

24

41

74

Corporate Profile

nrlfisy

Corporate Information
AR

Highlights of 2022 Results
2022 F 4%

Five-year Financial Summary

AR BT

Chairman’s Statement

TR

Management Discussion and Analysis
I R B A

Directors and Senior Management
EE TGN

Directors’ Report

Ry

Corporate Governance Report
FEER S

104

113

114

117

119

121

253

Independent Auditor's Report

S R

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
SRaHER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AR R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
G mBiklE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GetngEE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GAEHERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Are TR

Schedule of Major Properties

TEYER



Shenzhen Investment Limited ‘&332 A 1R A 7]
Annual Report 3% 2022

Corporate Profile
2] 4

NGRS |
AR K R

The Company intensifies its development in
Shenzhen and focuses on the Greater Bay Area

Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997. Shum Yip

Group, being its controlling shareholder, is an integrated conglomerate directly managed by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Shenzhen Municipal. Positioned as an “Innovative Constructor of Industrial Cities, Wealthy Livelihood Operator”, the Company’s core
businesses include property development, property investment and comprehensive urban operation services, and it also engages in innovative businesses
such as high-tech agriculture and high-end manufacturing, endeavoring to transform and upgrade into a technology-based industry group focusing on the
development of urban complex and investment in technology industry.

By intensifying its development in Shenzhen, focusing on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and planning for its development in
the Yangtze River Delta and high-tier cities such as key provincial capital cities, the Group currently has a land reserve with gross floor area of
approximately 6.60 million square meters in various cities of China, of which the quality land reserve with gross floor area of approximately

4.28 million square meters is located in the Greater Bay Area. The Company is committed to optimizing its land reserves structure, and
concentrates its assets and business in the Greater Bay Area as well as high-tier cities in key regions.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategic goal to promote the long term sustainable development of its business, with
an aim to bring a stable return and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profits

Share of results of joint ventures
and associates

Profit before income tax

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company

Basic earning/(loss) per share
(HK cents)

Interim and proposed final
dividend per share (HK cents)
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For the year ended 31 December

HBE12A31HIEEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
HKS$ million  HK$ million
BEBT BEBT
31,540.23 32,050.31 (1.59)%
(20,847.66)  (19,624.56) 6.23%
10,692.57 12,425.75 (13.95)%
391.44 843.45 (53.59)%
7,367.04 3,647.98 101.95%
Turning loss
to profit
2,085.42 (2,721.89) EEA
Turning loss
to profit
23.43 (30.58) BEE
15.00 15.00 0.00%

Financial Position

MBS R

Net assets excluding
non-controlling interests

Cash and bank deposits
(including restricted cash and
bank deposits)

Net loans

Net assets per share excluding
non-controlling interests (HK$)

BEFE (T REFERELD)

As at 31 December
W12A31H
2021
20214
HK$ million

2022

20224
HK$ million
HEAT BEAETL

Changes

B RBRTER (BRXRHRE RETFER)

B

#
BREERE (TRREFEKES) GBT)

44,631.84 49,174.93 9.24)%
13,361.60 22,775.61 (41.33)%
26,860.61 15,321.63 75.31%

5.02 5.63 (9.22)%
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Key Ratios
FHEILR

Gross profit margin EIES

Net loan to net assets excluding non-controlling
interests

Dividend payout ratio on core profit (Note 1) ORISR SR (1)

FEREEEHE (TREFERER) 2L X

33.90 38.77
60.18 31.16
43.02 34.32

Results (by operating segment)

FiE (RKE M)

2022 AVA
2022%F 20214
HK$ million  HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Turnover EER

Property development MEER 25,654.00 26,660.23
Property investment NEERE 1,195.84 1,497.43
Property management WEER 2,626.76 2,477.64
Manufacturing g 607.24 456.45
Others ity 1,456.39 958.56
Total am 31,540.23 32,050.31

Segment Results — Profits/(Loss) PEEE - BA(B8)
Property development MEER 7,603.89 8,410.43
Property investment (Note 2) MERE (ME2) 145.07 367.79
Property management MEER 203.90 467.45
Manufacturing L 70.92 54.57
Others Hith (186.72) 299.24
Total k] 7,837.06 9,599.48

Note:

1 Core profit is the profit attributable to owners of the Company excluding the net change in
fair value of investment properties and change in fair value of financial assets.

2 Segment results included the losses result from changes in fair value of and transfer to

investment properties approximately HK$351.89 million (2021: HK$405.65 million).

3 Details of segment results of the Group is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2

ZOFEARR R SRR EGEFE (TRER
BEMEAAEEHREREEAANBEEEFHE) -
DEEERERENEAAEEREREER
BYEELNEEL3S1.898 BT (20214
405.65E @BBIL) ©

AEEDBEEBEFAEHRGEE P B RRMES -
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20204 20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TRT FEx AL FEx THET
Results E
Revenue % 31,540,226 32,050,306 18,803,011 14,919,474 16,642,765
Profit before income tax BRETE R ATER 7,367,039 3,647,978 8,133,603 6,684,537 6,803,008
Income tax expense Frig MY (4,911,695)  (5,748,231)  (4,170,113)  (2,307,247)  (3,104,271)
Profit/(loss) for the year FriF/ (B8) 2,455,344 (2,100,253) 3,963,490 4,377,290 3,698,737
Attributable to: T 5 -
Owners of the Company ARRIESRE 2,085,418  (2,721,886) 3,722,856 4,062,796 3,415,223
Non-controlling interests R 369,926 621,633 240,634 314,494 283,514
2,455,344  (2,100,253) 3,963,490 4,377,290 3,698,737
Assets, liabilities and non- & 86BN
controlling interests FERES
Current assets MEEE 103,146,094 99,570,373 85,765,676 61,565,489 61,493,029
Non-current assets FRBEE 60,321,495 63,195,498 66,510,150 63,707,453 56,527,120
Total assets BEE 163,467,589 162,765,871 152,275,826 125,272,942 118,020,149
Total liabilities ®waE (113,910,616) (108,395,991)  (96,869,978)  (76,900,647) (72,576,453)
Net assets BEFE 49,556,973 54,369,880 55,405,848 48,372,295 45,443,696
Non-controlling interests FHERER (4,925,132)  (5194,954)  (4,781,563)  (3,897,639)  (3,739,721)
Total equity attributable to owners of RAREHERREG
the Company gt 44,631,841 49,174,926 50,624,285 44,474,656 41,703,975




i

A0
1t 2

€

\

0

&



Enhancing Value -

Driving Growth

e - 1E 1

H W B R )
Leading

718

Health Quality Culture
it pi

XAt

i H

§ \V
N
. =
L \\ '\ 2
,\ \ \ \\‘ -ﬁ_. .‘A
\ ol #
y

AR

e

Y\ : ‘\«4 Y

ey
0\ QLA




Shenzhen Investment Limited &% 0% 5 1R 2 &
Annual Report F 3 2022

Chairman’s Statement
ENN X &

RESA

LU Hua /3
Chairman &




“Strive for excellence with great
determination and vigor”

The Group aims to build sustainable
development and value creation capabilities,
promote high-quality development,

and create ideal returns for shareholders

[ > Fof—
S B S AT A B R P A R
2R 4 R LR > R S TR A o

Looking back on 2022, against the backdrop of slowing global economic growth,
China efficiently coordinated pandemic prevention and control with economic and
social development, achieving stable economic operation and steady improvement
in development quality, while maintaining social stability. Although the impact
of the pandemic on the economy has gradually weakened, the triple pressure
of domestic demand contraction, supply shock and weakening expectations on
economic operation still exist. Affected by the macro environment, the real estate
industry experienced a deep adjustment in 2022. The cycle of inventory clearance
was prolonged, liquidity risks for real estate enterprises intensified, and the
wait-and-see sentiment among homebuyers became stronger as the release of
medium — to long-term demand weakened. To promote the healthy development
of the real estate market, the central government has repeatedly introduced
favorable regulation and control policies and supported local city-based policies
to release space.

Shenzhen Investment Limited F3I#2i AR A R
Annual Report %% 2022
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Focusing on the “14th Five-Year Plan” strategy, the Group is committed to
transforming and upgrading itself into a technology-based industrial group with
a focus on integrated urban development and operation, and investment and
services in the technology industry, while promoting the steady development
of its property business and actively promoting the expansion of its integrated
operation business and strengthening the cultivation of innovative businesses.
Amid the severe downturn in the industry, the Group adhered to a general
keynote of “improving management for prudent growth” and promoted the
“year of management improvement” initiative step by step. The Group has fully
implemented the overall requirements of “preventing the epidemic, stabilizing
the economy, and ensuring safety in development”, overcoming difficulties
and achieving steady progress in the real estate business. The comprehensive
operation business has undergone a transformation and achieved rapid
development, while the innovative business has accelerated its growth. The Group
has achieved effective qualitative improvement on the road of transformation and
high-quality development, which is not easy.

2022 Business Review

Annual Results

During the year, the Group realized revenue of HK$31.54 hillion, representing a
decrease of 1.6% over last year. Gross profit was HK$10.69 billion, with overall
gross profit margin of 33.9%. Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$2.09 billion, and basic earnings per share was HK23.43
cents. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair value of investment properties
attributable to the Group and fair value of financial assets, profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was HK$3.10 billion. The Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK12.00 cents per share for 2022 in cash.

Prudent Growth in Real Estate Business

Against the backdrop of the recurring COVID-19 and market downturn, the Group
intensified the development of the real estate business as a principal business,
enabling it to work as a ballast of operating results.

Contracted sales remained positive growth. Notwithstanding a nearly 40% year-
on-year sales decline in 100 key cities, the Group maintained strengthened
marketing innovation and key projects promotion. It achieved contracted sales
for the year of approximately RMB19.21 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$22.35 billion), representing an increase of 0.6% over last year, which far
outperformed the industry. Among other commercial properties, Bay Front,
UpperHills, Zhifeng Tower and Boying Tower concluded bulk transactions with
a turnover of approximately RMB8 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$9.3
billion); and among other residential properties, Cloud Center, Starry Lakeshore
and Longwan Mansion achieved outstanding sales performance, of which Park
Mansion was sold out immediately upon launch, becoming a benchmark property
in the Guangming New Area of Shenzhen.

AEEES OO B TREDEXGERY
ROFE  BRESSGELEBNAR - MEE
MEBNEE - BOIRBUTRRUETEAREE

2 MBEXNRERGATIXNMBLEREE -
HEHBRREXROTERE - ARERFEEE
R | M TRREN  REELE[EERNF)
THiE - EERE(RBENE - KHEBRE &
REZZ |WERER  YEBRH  HEXBRTA
# BREEEBRERN  ANMEBMERER - K
SEABNAANSEERROBR L - BHENE
MR - RERZTH

202245 488 1 YL 1] B
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The efficiency of development carryforward was improved. During the vyear,
despite the impact of the recurring pandemic in many places, the Group
optimized the process, kept a tight grip on construction schedule and accelerated
the project construction. The Shenzhen Park Mansion was launched for sale in
11 months after land acquisition, which represents the fastest launch speed in
the Group; and with the smooth carryforward of Sky Park, Starry Lakeshore and
other projects, the Group realized sales revenue from real estate development of
approximately HK$25.65 billion, representing a decrease of 3.8% over last year.
Gross profit margin of real estate development was maintained at a high level of
approximately 37%.

More desirable project deployment was achieved. The Group successfully
won the bids for five land plots located in Shanghai Jiading District, Shenzhen
Longhua District, Shenzhen Longgang District, Taizhou High-Tech Zone and
Ma'anshan Cihu High-Tech Zone by means of open market auction, industrial
land application, and linked primary and secondary development, increasing its
land reserve by approximately 0.74 million square meters worth over RMB20
billion. The Group insists on deep cultivation of high-energy cities, consolidating
resource reserves, optimizing land reserve structure, with the land reserve area
in the Greater Bay Area accounting for 65%, and the land reserve area in the
Yangtze River Delta region rising to 15%. 80% of the Group’s land reserve is
located in the two most developed regions of the Chinese economy.

The industrial real estate model has shown effectiveness. The Group has
established an industrial space carrier and built core industrial capabilities. It has
created high-tech industrial parks in Shanghai, Jiangyin, and Ma’'anshan in the
Yangtze River Delta region, demonstrating the layout of the industrial-city ecology
and providing strong spatial protection for the development of the manufacturing
industry. The Jiangyin Science and Technology Innovation Park has successfully
implemented the “launch and deal” model, while the Ma'anshan Science and
Technology Park has sold 80% of its factory space and has attracted over 20
advanced manufacturing companies. The industrial-city innovation model has
achieved dual output in attracting investment and generating profits.

Double-quality products are crafted to be more refined. The Group has
established a standardized system that integrates “product + management
+ technology”, focusing on the four dimensions of “humanistic community”,
‘healthy housing”, “modern aesthetics”, and “comfortable living”, and building
a product concept with “happiness” as the core value. With great care, high-
quality products are created, and the types and quality of standardized products
are further optimized through their application in the Luxury Mansion and Upper

Coast projects.
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Vigorous development of the comprehensive operation business

In 2021, with the positioning of “serving the city”, the Group completed the
integration of its urban integrated operation business and continuously improve
the management level to create Shum Yip Property Operations Group Co., Ltd
(“Shum Yip Operations”) to be an integrated urban operation service provider with
comprehensive competitiveness and brand influence. With nearly 40 years of
resilient development, Shum Yip Operations conducted its business around the
positioning of “full format, full service, and full customer” and formed a diversified
growth momentum. Shum Yip Operations was listed among the Top 100 Property
Service Enterprises China 2022 (No. 20) (2022 HEMERBHELES 20
fiZ) by the China Index Academy and Top State-Owned Property Management
Companies by Comprehensive Strength (No. 7) (RENMERB L LEGEBHE 7
%) by the China Property Management Research Institution. In February 2023,
Shum Yip Operations formally applied for the listing of H shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The main business of Shum Yip Operations covers urban, industrial park,
residential property and commercial operation and management services, with a
total area under management of approximately 68.23 million sg.m., representing
an increase of 16% compared with last year. The business covers 14 provinces
and 47 cities across China, with approximately 67.3% of the project area in
the Greater Bay Area. With a diversified business portfolio and strong market
expansion, the non-residential sector accounted for 62.4% of the total area and
the projects of independent third-party accounted for 72.3% of the total area,
both of which were higher than those of the industry.

In terms of city services, Shum Yip Operations has developed the first “property
city” project in Shenzhen and participated in the compilation of the ‘Property
Management City Operation Standard” Group Standard of China. At present,
our property city business owns total area under management of more than 20
million square meters, and the effectiveness of governance has been widely
recognized. The Baolong Street property city project in Shenzhen was awarded
“China Property Management Excellence Benchmark Project’ (F2 Bl %)% &8 &
121238 8) by the China Property Management Research Institution. At the same
time, Shum Yip Operations was awarded “China’s Leading Enterprise in Smart
City Services” (R B 25 M AR E £ B %) by the China Index Academy for the
second consecutive year in 2022.
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Shum Yip Operations’ commercial operation services cover commercial
complexes, office buildings, community businesses, hotels, etc. Its subsidiary
commercial complex, UpperHills, has introduced around 40 “first-store” national
or regional brands. Nine Fortune 500 companies have settled in the office
buildings, ranking second in Shenzhen and being named as one of the top
five excellent complexes in Shenzhen, receiving the Golden Mall award in the
industry. After one year of operation, Mandarin Oriental Hotel Shenzhen has been
awarded the 2023 Forbes Travel Guide Five-Star Award, becoming the first and
only luxury hotel in Shenzhen to receive this honor. The first Galeries Lafayette
department store in South China had a trial operation at the end of the year,
further promoting the international brand effect of UpperHills.

Accelerated Innovative Business Development

The Group focused on the functional positioning of “serving industries and serving
people’s livelihood”, accelerating the development of innovative businesses such
as high-tech manufacturing and high-tech agriculture, gradually forming a finite-
diversified industrial layout, and opening up new prospects for transformation and
development.

In terms of high-tech manufacturing, the Group’s subsidiary, Shenzhen Jinghua
Displays Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Jinghua”), is a national-level high-tech enterprise
and a “specialized, refined, unique, and new” small and medium-sized enterprise
in Shenzhen. Focusing on display products and intelligent controllers, Jinghua
has established a model of “headquarters + OEM production base + research
and development center” and has become a leading enterprise in the field of
intelligent display control solution services. In 2022, its sales revenue and net
profit increased by 41% and 112%, respectively.

In the field of high-tech agriculture, Agricultural Science Company under its
umbrella is innovating and transforming, aiming at the “14th Five-Year Plan’
for agricultural development and taking “high-tech agriculture + characteristic
agricultural tourism” as the leading direction to build an agricultural industrial
system. In 2022, the revenue of the agricultural sector was about HK$400
million, an increase of more than 80% year-on-year. The company efficiently
laid out agricultural industrial parks, and the XinFeng modern functional
agricultural industrial park and Shum Yip Jinnong project were successfully
put into operation. With a high starting point, the company is creating a “Four
Seasons” agricultural tourism series, responding to the call of the national rural
revitalization strategy, achieving the integration of the three industries, and
establishing the Four Seasons Agricultural Tourism project in the Greater Bay
Area. With high standards, the company is forging its core competitiveness,
obtaining 15 authorized patents in the field of smart agriculture, using technology
development as a moat and providing intellectual and professional support for the
industry. Feng Nong You Pin has successfully been selected as a key agricultural
leading enterprise in Shenzhen. The “NongwoFeng” brand has a variety of 200
products, with sales reaching RMB250 million.
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Significant improvement in management effectiveness
In response to the transformation of the real estate industry from a high-
turnover model to high-quality development, The Group has launched the
“Year of Management Improvement” action to further amplify the advantages
of management efficiency and risk prevention, highlighting the strategic
determination and foresight for long-term stable development.

The Group continues to improve its level of professionalism and operating
efficiency. The Group has focused on internal development this year,
systematizing processes and institutional systems, promoting process optimization
in investment, development, marketing, operation, asset management, etc.,
further enhancing the degree of business specialization and standardization,
strengthening cost control, shortening the development cycle, and improving
operational efficiency and value creation ability.

The Group also continues to enhance its human resources. The Group has
optimized its organizational structure, introduced multiple measures to attract
scarce talents, improved its high-quality professional teams, and enhanced overall
functionality. Deep reforms in performance evaluations have been undertaken,
constructing a strong incentive and hard-constraint performance management
system, effectively playing a leading role.

The Group is also continuing to deepen the digital empowerment of its business.
The Group’s digital transformation has been implemented, yielding results in
customer demand, product innovation, resource matching, process restructuring,
and other aspects. The Group has been solidly promoting the construction
of digital technology infrastructure, empowering business innovation with
technology, and landing multiple data application scenarios. The loT platform has
connected more than 2,500 devices, and breakthroughs have been achieved in
business scenarios for smart park operations based on the loT platform.

Smooth and Efficient Financing Channels

During the year, the Group has always maintained a robust financial position with
stronger financing efforts and obtained foreign debt facilities of US$650 million.
It raised HK$5 billion syndicate loan to replace the HK$3.5 billion syndicated
loan that was about to mature, resulting in a reduction in the fixed-interest
portion of the synthetic cost; and issued RMB3.2 billion CMBS products with a
maturity of 18 years and a preferential coupon rate of 3.4%, being the largest
issuance size and the lowest interest rate among the CMBS products issued
by municipality-owned enterprises. The average comprehensive interest rate of
bank and other borrowings was 3.3%, which were controlled at a low level in the
industry. Against the backdrop of a cooling real estate market, the Group fortified
centralized and coordinated capital management by counting every nickel and
dime, giving full play to the efficiency of capital use, providing effective business
support and safeguarding capital.
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Fulfilling social responsibility and implementing sustainable
development

In 2022, the Group consistently remembered its environmental, social, and
governance responsibilities, adhering to the vision of ‘innovative constructor
of industrial cities, wealthy livelihood operator”. It actively responded to the
national “dual carbon” goals and integrated the concepts of “ecology, greenness,
and health” into project management and operations to implement sustainable
development. The Group adhered to the talent philosophy of “morality first,
talent utilization, and excellence”, built a high-quality talent team, promoted the
common development of employees and the company, and adhered to the service
principle of “customer first”, providing customers with more convenient and high-
quality services. The Group actively participated in the construction of harmonious
communities, further building a social governance pattern of co-construction,
co-governance, and sharing. The Group followed the management philosophy of
“being rigorous, orderly, standardized, and efficient”, cultivated a clean corporate
culture, and improved corporate governance.

The Group valued the suggestions and opinions put forward by all stakeholders,
established internal and external communication channels, and ensured efficient
communication with stakeholders, committed to creating long-term value for
stakeholders such as owners, tenants, investors, business partners, employees,
and communities. In terms of ESG issue management, The Group’s performance
in green buildings, health and safety, product quality and safety, and corporate
governance continued to be outstanding. The Group also maintained a good
rating on the MSCI-ESG index, and was honored with the “Best ESG Award’
and “Best Investor Relations Project” at the China Outstanding IR Awards.
This demonstrates the capital market's high recognition of the Group’s ESG
management and reflects the Group’s long-term development advantages in
business and management. In the current year, the Group has optimized its
ESG governance structure and management methods, ensuring that the Group’s
sustainable development strategy plays a positive role in all aspects, achieving
the Group’s goals and prospects.
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Market Outlook

Industry explores new development model as the recovery of real
estate market

Real estate is a pillar industry for Chinese economy, and has a significant
impact on economic growth, employment, tax income, resident wealth and
financial stability. In order to promote a virtuous cycle and the stable and healthy
development of the real estate industry, policy will focus on preventing and
resolving the risks existed in high-quality leading real estate enterprises in an
effective manner and preventing disorderly expansion, while strengthening the
development of housing security system, supporting the demand of first — and
second-time homebuyers and promoting a smooth transition of the real estate
to a new development model, allowing the industry to get back to basics of
wellbeing under the circumstances of “house is a place to live instead of a tool
for speculation”. Since the fourth quarter of 2022, policies to support real estate
enterprises to mitigate financial risk have continued to increase, which improved
the financing environment for the real estate sector and effectively controlled
credit risks. Under the influence of epidemic mitigation and policy support, the
larger housing transaction volume after the Spring Festival this year as a result
of the prevailing market practice of seeking high sales volume at lower prices
released a bottoming-out signal, the real estate market is showing signs of
recovery and the market confidence is expected to be gradually restored.

The real estate industry is undergoing a great reshuffle, and the past development
and operation mode of “high debt, high leverage and high turnover” is no longer
sustainable. Under the new mode, the market is shifting its focus from large-
scale new constructions to the quality improvement of existing properties
and the restructuring of new properties and the establishment of a long-term
effectiveness mechanism for both renting and purchasing. The underlying logic
of the operations of real estate enterprises will continue to transit to the refined
management of products and services, value enhancement of inventory assets
and high-quality development of enterprises.

Promising market for innovative businesses

Intelligent display controller industry is a subdivision of the high-tech
manufacturing industry. The intelligent display controller is a necessary device
for smart loT and intelligent development, with certain quite typical applications
covering intelligent automobile, intelligent furniture and electric tool. In recent
years, the major developed countries and China’s relevant policies clearly have
put forward to encourage enterprises to use the loT, artificial intelligence and
other technologies to promote the intelligent upgrading of various electronic
products, which is a clear prospect of the intelligent controller industry under the
technical context of the loT’s rapid penetration. Electronic control device products
own a market around trillion-dollars and benefit from the Internet of Everything,
while showing a relatively high growth trend.
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At this year’s “Two Sessions”, it was proposed that “building a strong agricultural
nation is the foundation of building a socialist modernization strong country,
and promoting agricultural modernization is an inevitable requirement for high-
quality development”. Accelerating the construction of a strong agricultural nation
is a necessary requirement to meet the needs of people’s beautiful lives. The
country has put forward higher requirements for improving the quantity, quality,
and diversity of agricultural product supply, including vigorously developing
agricultural leisure tourism and ecological conservation. The future market
demand is expected to further increase. The Group is confident in developing
high-quality fruit and vegetable, high-end flowers, food testing, and specialty
agro-tourism businesses.

2023 Business Plan

In 2023, the Group will continue to adhere to the principle of steady operation
and actively promote the steady growth of its real estate business, rapid
expansion of its operation business, and more breakthroughs in its innovative
business. The Group will make every effort to promote high-quality development
and navigate through the industry adjustment period, economic cycles, and seek
steady progress.

Real estate business

In terms of development and sales, the Group will strengthen project construction
management and control, ensure that projects are launched and completed
according to plan. It will actively promote contract sales, accelerate sales, and
speed up capital recovery. Thanks to the increase in land resources in the past
two years, the Group’s available-for-sale value is sufficient this year, with a total
available-for-sale value of over RMB45 billion and a contract sales target of
RMB23 billion, representing a planned increase of about 20%.

In terms of project expansion, given the limited profit margin in the current open
increment market and the increasing difficulty of land acquisition, the Group will
fully leverage its core advantages in industrial planning and capital cost, focus on
the Greater Bay Area and key high-energy cities, actively seize the development
opportunities of district planning and urban renewal, and conduct deployment in
projects which need low investment in the current period but may obtain large-
scale high-quality resources after successful incubation. It will accelerate the
pre-project work of the Longgang Henggang South and Guangming Shangcun
benefit integration projects in Shenzhen, implement project implementation paths,
and realize the transformation of land reserve resources. At the same time, the
Group will accurately participate in public market bidding, and select high-quality
projects that are suitable for sales and have good economic benefits.
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In terms of holding property operations, the Group will continue to promote
asset transformation and upgrading, optimize the format structure of investment
properties, seize market development opportunities in the post-epidemic era,
increase investment promotion efforts, build a refined operation system, and
continuously improve asset value. The Group currently holds 1.79 million square
meters of stock properties, contributing approximately HKD1.2 billion in rental
income per year. The quality of assets and the level of sustained returns continue
to improve, and the conditions for transforming to a new development model
through asset securitization have been met. The Group will actively seize the
opportunities of public REITs and private REITs, explore asset securitization to
revitalize stock assets, and optimize the overall resource allocation of the Group.

Integrated city operations

The Group will achieve growth through diversification: it will continue to leverage
its third-party expansion advantages and expand market share by using its
brand and reputation; it will deepen its presence in urban service sub-sectors,
focus on expanding property and urban projects, strengthen cooperation with
local state-owned enterprises, and provide customized services for cities and
industrial parks to promote its urban service business nationwide; it will build a
refined commercial management system, strengthen full-value chain control of
commercial assets, and continuously improve revenue in operating malls and
hotels; it will work with the Group’s happiness business to expand diversified
value-added services, optimize service quality, and improve customer experience;
it will improve digital management, devote itself to reducing costs and improving
labor efficiency, and improve profitability; it will closely monitor its M&A plans
and achieve scale expansion and development.

Innovative business

The high-tech manufacturing company Jinghua will continue to increase its
investment in new product research and development for intelligent display
controllers. With display and electronic control components as its core products,
the company will increase investment in high-gross-profit products such
as capacitive touch screens, optical bonding integration, electronic control
components (OEM/ODM), and low-power displays in various niche markets. The
company will also actively explore product markets to achieve high-speed growth
in revenue and profits, and seek to accelerate its development through the capital
market.
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Supported by “technology + capital’, a high-tech agricultural enterprise
Agricultural Science Company serves the national strategy and people’s
livelihood and build a domestic first-class agricultural science and technology
enterprise group. It will accelerate the cultivation of a number of agricultural
listed companies and leading agricultural enterprises, enhance the influence of
agricultural brands, and achieve non-linear growth through technical cooperation
and capital operation. It is expected that the business scale will show a geometric
growth trend in the next few years, ranking among the leading enterprises in the
domestic industry.

2023 is a crucial year for implementing the “14th Five-Year Plan” and laying
the foundation for the future. The Group will firmly grasp the fundamental
requirements of high-quality development, comprehensively enhance
management, continuously promote business transformation and upgrading,
and deepen internal strength. In the real estate business, the Group will actively
adapt to new models of real estate, carefully craft high-quality personalized
products and services, improve the operational efficiency and asset value
of holding properties, explore asset securitization and asset activation. With
key projects such as Guangming Science City, Baguang Bio Valley, and the
cooperation between Shenzhen and Hong Kong as an opportunity, the Group will
seize opportunities for coordinated benefits, implement high-quality resources,
integrate area planning, industry introduction and service, and urban upgrading
into development and construction, and promote comprehensive innovation in
industrial and urban development. In terms of urban comprehensive operation,
the Group will build the “Shum Yip” service brand, construct a city operation
service system, achieve scale development, and build new growth drivers.
In terms of innovative business, the Group will increase the layout of high-
end manufacturing, agricultural technology, and other innovative businesses,
increase exploration, investment and cultivation of the technology industry, and
enable technology to upgrade products and transform businesses. After the
transformation and optimization of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Group will form
a limited diversification layout, synergistically develop high-quality development
among business sectors, continuously improve enterprise value and return, and
give back to shareholders and investors.

“Strive for excellence with great determination and vigor’. The Group will
adopt a “start running and sprinting” mentality, become firmly determined and
courageously move forward. Through persistent efforts, the Group aims to
build sustainable development and value creation capabilities, comprehensively
promote high-quality development, make greater contributions to social and
economic development and urban development, and create ideal returns for
shareholders.

Lu Hua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Overall Results

In 2022, the real estate industry as a whole has entered a downward cycle,
with mounting pressure and impact on both supply side and demand side of the
market and intensified liquidity risk existed in some real estate enterprises. The
real estate industry has undergone a deep adjustment under the policy keynote
of “house is a place to live instead of a tool for speculation”. During the year, the
central government released positive signals several times to set a positive tone,
optimize regulation and control policies, further enrich and improve the policy
toolbox, and support the implementation of city-based policies to promote the
healthy development of the real estate market. Generally, the current market has
gradually completed bottoming out, but full recovery is a long way off and market
confidence still needs to be boosted. Amid the severe downturn in the industry,
the Group adhered to a general keynote of “improving management for prudent
growth” and focused on the strategic planning under the “14th Five-Year Plan”
to promote the “year of management improvement” initiative step by step. By
overcoming the adverse impact of the industry downturn and other obstacles, the
Group has achieved qualitative and effective improvement in all areas of work,
and seen new progress and results.

During the year, the Group realized turnover of HK$31,540.2 million, remaining
stable with a slight decrease of 1.6% as compared to last year. Gross profit
was HK$10,692.6 million, with overall gross profit margin of 33.9%. Profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$2,085.4 million, and
basic earnings per share was HK23.43 cents, showing a turnaround from loss
attributable to equity shareholders due to a significant non-cash loss incurred
on financial assets last year. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair value
of investment properties attributable to the Group and changes in fair value of
financial assets, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$3,102.7 million.

Property Development Business

Sales Revenue Booked

During the year, the Group recorded property sales area booked of approximately
730 thousand square meters (excluding interests attributable to the major
associates of the Group), remaining stable as compared to last year, and
achieved revenue from property sales of approximately HK$25,654.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB22,045.2 million), representing a decrease
of 3.8% over last year. Gross profit margin of property development and sales
was 36.6%, representing a decrease of 3.7 percentage points over last year.
Guangzhou and Shenzhen projects contributed 54% of the sales revenue booked.
During the year, the average gross profit margin of projects of the Group in
Guangzhou and Shenzhen was approximately 45.8%, whereas the average gross
profit margin of projects in other cities was approximately 26.9%.
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Property Sales Booked in 2022

Property Name
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Cloud Center
REEHR

UpperHills

RE R
Parkview Bay
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Shum Yip City
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Guangzhou
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Huizhou
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Huizhou
M
Huizhou
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Booked Area Net Sales
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(sq.m.) (RMB'000)
(FAk (ARBTT)

30,121 1,229,500
55,370 1,858,961
310 35,855
27,084 1,477,908
6,508 768,053
5,145 268,174
32,659 1,008,373
42,342 5,215,399
95 3,030
12,865 257,549
383 3,564
20,789 240,272
6,841 129,224
13,878 239,651
77,059 3,380,257
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Property Name Booked Area Net Sales
BRER mEEE HEFE
(sg.m.) (RMB’000)
(FH%)  (ARETRE)
Saina Bay Commercial Heyuan 269 1,914
E) 5k AR
Heron Mansion Residential Changsha 84,178 1,081,250
EEf FE 32
Ruicheng Residential/commercial Changsha 549 9,696
BN €/ =328
Nanhu Rose Bay Residential/villa/commercial Wuhan 616 29,462
ke FE/BIE /B HE
Yihu Rose Garden Residential Chengdu 1,626 15,048
e HBURAE ix X E
Shum Yip Huating Residential Chengdu 39,925 735,863
REEE ix P E
Upper Life Residential Nanjing 8,637 208,221
BELRE % 2p
Longwan Mansion Residential Nanjing 28,382 1,265,681
3 Aedisi iz 2
Qinglong Mansion Residential Nanjing 12,253 346,909
R LG FE BR
Wu'ai Bus Station Expansion Project  Residential Shenyang 59 79
IERENERIAR Tz &S
Splendid City Residential/commercial Taizhou 22,037 299,043
BEEM FE/ B8 ZM
Royal Spring Garden Villa Chaohu 256 5,232
FAER RIE £
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Residential Ma'anshan 175,260 1,725,182
BRIREER ix S
Shenma Industrial Park Plant Ma'anshan 24,901 75,728
AEEXE W= HEL
Parking space (Note) Parking space Parking space - 130,121
B (frit) B By
Total &5t 730,397 22,045,199

Note: 3,427 parking spaces were sold.

Wi - B EEE 34271 o



Contracted Sales

During the year, the Group realized contracted sales area of approximately
820,000 square meters and contracted sales amount of approximately
RMB19,209.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$22,353.8 million). The
average price per square meter was approximately RMB23,317. The contracted
sales were mainly attributable to Zhongshan Bay Front which realized contracted
sales of approximately RMB6,755.9 million, Shenzhen Park Mansion which was
sold out immediately upon launch and realized contracted sales of approximately
RMB2,184.2 million; Shenzhen Cloud Center which realized contracted sales
of approximately RMB1,972.4 million; and Shenzhen UpperHills which realized
contracted sales of approximately RMB1,934.1 million. Sales of the Group
remained stable throughout the year, slightly increasing by 0.6% over last year
and outperforming the market.

By geographical location, projects in the Greater Bay Area accounted for 88%
of contracted sales, 9% of which was contributed by projects in the second-
tier provincial capital cities, and 3% in other cities. By the types of products,
residential products accounted for 35% of contracted sales, and non-residential
products (including office, apartment and industrial park) accounted for 65%.

Contracted Sales in 2022*
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B [ 8 8
AEBFRERARABERRLLEF K - ARE
ESEL192.0903BTARE (E49223.538E%
) BEAKFHEBAEN23NTTARE - £2
BREURA : RILERHIRERANHEELG67.5591
TARE  RIFEBRIAEER - ERANHEE
H21842B T ARE  RUFEZEERAGNHE
B19.724BTARE - RYFELHERADHED
19341 BTARE - AEE2EHERBETE - B&
F1R0.6% - BRTIHAKF o

REEFEHH - REEEEEERHEESHMN8% -
B59%M3%DBIKE —BASHMMEMBET o
BEEREESE ATHERGAREESEN
35% - FEERER (BERLE 0F - EXER
%) 5H65% ©

202247 7] g 5 *

Sales Area Sales*™
HEME HESHE

(sq.m.) (RMB'000)
(FREAK) (ARETTT)

Natural City Shenzhen Residential 17,825.15 621,976.10
LK ERI il FE
Sky Park Shenzhen Apartment 1,776.74 269,692.60
RER N N
Cloud Center Shenzhen Residential 44.837.16 1,972,351.80
REEE 3l FE
Shum Yip Taifu Square Shenzhen Apartment 2,468.40 146,892.10
RERBES 3l N
Terra Licheng Shenzhen Office (including 1,037.47 51,951.40
industrial R&D
and warehousing)
TR 3l MR (BER

- AR
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Sales Area Sales**

HEMME HESHE

(sq.m.) (RMB’000)
(FHXK) (AR%ETT)

UpperHills Shenzhen Office (including 63,004.47 1,934,104.10
industrial R&D
and warehousing)

RE E9 R WO (BEE
e 2R
Tanglang City*** Shenzhen Apartment 285.73 22,034.90
R sl "B
Shum Yip Parkview Bay Shenzhen Residential 501.64 61,984.80
REBEER w F=x
Park Mansion Shenzhen Residential 48,238.24 2,184,162.50
AEEIRN A F=E
Boying Tower Shenzhen Office (including 25,913.37 832,725.40
industrial
R&D and
warehousing)
BAKXE A Po(REE
e 2R
Zhifeng Tower Shenzhen Office (including 4,541.60 144,706.40

industrial R&D
and warehousing)

BERE sl MR (FEFE

M - AR
Shum Yip Scenery Bay Guangzhou Residential 7,267.24 268,556.40
REBERT BN F=
Shum Yip Bustling City Foshan Residential 345.84 6,902.20
REBILTES il F=
Shunde Shum Yip City Foshan Residential 7,835.32 121,036.50
L7 301 il FE
Gaobangshan No. 1 Huizhou Residential 17,330.44 197,952.40
BEELN 5 BN FE
Garden Hills Huizhou Residential 17,524.29 123,878.80
FiHE%R BN FE
Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential 2,485.44 9,000.60
Bt BN Fx
Starry Lakeshore Dongguan Residential 36,370.19 1,353,018.60

RELHERIEE LS EE
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Sales Area Sales**

HEMME HESHE

(sq.m.) (RMB’000)
(EFK) (AR%TT)

Oujing City Dongguan Parking space 780.00 11,490.00
&R 5 By

Bay Front Zhongshan Residential, office 415,472.00 6,755,874.60
BT Gl (BRI /N

Saina Bay Heyuan Residential 269.42 2,280.20
E30) AR F=

Longwan Mansion Nanjing Residential, 18,605.99 928,887.50

Commercial

B LR BR EE - #%

Qinglong Mansion Nanjing Residential 2,174.29 67,302.50
Bl LR R F=E

Nanwan Mansion Nanjing Residential 2,459.34 115,356.60
HE LN BR FE

Shum Yip Heron Mansion Changsha Residential 6,884.05 99,842.00
REEER =9 F=

Shum Yip Ruicheng Xihui Changsha Residential 2,048.68 19,529.10
REBREE =32 F=

Shum Yip North Shore Chengdu Residential 2,230.36 16,409.60
REILER A E F=

Shum Yip Huating Chengdu Residential 16,116.17 319,735.40
REERE P E FE

Shum Yip Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu Residential 1,441.62 5,721.20
RERHEIRGE B E FE

Taiyun Mansion Wuhan Residential 6,165.59 118,109.60
RER 953 FE

Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Changzhou Parking space 528.75 1,211.00
BIREER wM By

Shenyue Bay Jiangyan Residential 10,728.78 82,928.60
R E e F=

Shum Yip Yungi Garden Taizhou Residential 7,704.22 130,971.70
REZE ZM FE

Royal Spring Garden Chaohu Residential 255.61 5,306.30

Sk X L EE
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Sales Area Sales**

HEMME HESHE

(sq.m.) (RMB’000)
(FHXK) (AR%ETT)

Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma'anshan Commercial, 8,844.47 134,952.20
Parking space
BRILREER Barl P - B
Shenma East China Industrial Technology Ma'anshan Industrial 21,5620.44 70,420.00
Industrial Park
ABERIENREXR gl I%
Total A3f 823,818.51 19,209,255.70

* As all the contracted sales took place in Mainland China, the contracted sales figures are * ARG RIEEHRERFEND - & HHEEIE

expressed in Renminbi. LAAREES o

** Sales includes the sales of parking lots. o HESEEEEMHEE -

**  The project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, as to 50% owned by the o ZEBREZFYMEEESEME  FHL50%E
Group, and it is accounted using equity method. o EREZE -

Project Development JE H B

During the year, the Group had a new construction area of approximately 2,774  FR @ ZEEHFHIEELN277 ABF K » 8EF
thousand square meters, decreasing by 30% over last year and a completed area ~ TF$30% : M THELN113IBFE K - REFLF
of approximately 1,131 thousand square meters, increasing by 37% over last 37% °

year.

New Construction Projects in 2022 20224 Hi A TIHHA

New Construction

Type Area
AitE A LEE
(sg.m.’000)
(FFH)
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Cloud Center Phase 2 Xinhongcheng North Land Plot Shenzhen Residential 131.7
REEE2HERMIC IR A F=
Shum Yip Chuangzhi Building Shenzhen Industrial 51.2
RERERE w I
Shum Yip Shanglinyuan Renewal Project Shenzhen Complex 62.8
RE B EFIAR sl me
Shenzhen Qianhai Upper Coast Shenzhen Residential 300.0

RYABESE A EE
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New Construction

Type Area
it E FRIAERE
(sg.m.’000)
(FFIK)
Guangming Park Mansion Project Shenzhen Residential 132.0
BRI R sl =
Shum Yip Taifu Yinying Square Shenzhen Complex 130.0
RERBRBRES el e
Shum Yip Zhongshan Future Gate Project Zhongshan Complex 819.3
RERILARZPIRE LIt maE
Huizhou Yungi Mansion Lujiangli Land Plot Huizhou Residential 170.0
BEMNEBRBILELR EM FE
Qingbaijiang Shum Yip Taifu Square Chengdu Complex 217.4
BRIAEREES X E re
Longquanyi Project Chengdu Complex 223.6
ERRER R E maE
Shum Yip Taiyue Mansion Chengdu Residential 100.0
RFE AT X E Fx
Changsha Taohualing Phase 1 North Land Plot Changsha Residential 100.0
RAhiEE— iR 9/ %
Nanjing Hexinan Land G111 Project Nanjing Residential 80.0
BHRAAEGI11IER ) FE
Hanlinlu Land Plot 18 Project Shenyang Complex 68.4
BIMIR185E IR B &5 maE
Jiangyin Project Phase 1 Wuxi Industrial 130.0
IRIEE -5 S T%¥
Taizhou Yungi Garden Taizhou Residential 57.8
FMNEEEDR ZM =
Total A&t 2,774.2
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Completed Projects in 2022 20224E% TIHH
Type Completed Area
At RIS
(sg.m.’000)
(FEIK)
Cloud Center Phase 1 Shenzhen Residential 194.5
REEE—H sl FE
Qingshuihe International Auto Logistics Industrial Park Phase 4 Shenzhen Industrial 43.0
TB7IGR B T EE ) E SR O 3l I%
Huizhou Nanfang Gaobangshan Garden 1#, Phase 2.2 Huizhou Residential 160.2
BMEARELIRIERE2.25 EM =
Huizhou Garden Hills Phase 3.2.2 Huizhou Residential 147.0
BMFILAEE3.2.28 B r=
Dongguan Starry Lakeshore Dongguan Residential 169.6
RERAEHN 2 FE
Lishui Qishan Yayuan Foshan Residential 79.1
BIKHEILESE 1L =
Shum Yip Nanwan Mansion Nanjing Residential 60.0
REBELR ) T
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2 Group 2 South District Ma'anshan Residential 225.8
BRLRFEN_H_/AEmE S&W =
Shenma East China Technology Industrial Park Ma'anshan Industrial 52.6
AEERMBREXE SEl I
Total A&t 1,131.8
Expansion of Land Resources + WGP R

In 2022, adhering to the strategy of “selecting the best among the best’, the 20004 « KAEBETE [EHIBE | HEE - RIEFR
Group took right opportunities and acquired 5 land lots in 4 cities, including  # - @B+ THEEN  EEAH - — —RE%H
Shenzhen, Shanghai, Taizhou and Ma'anshan, through land market auctions, AR R - BE TN EHAERT LT
industrial land application, and linked primary and secondary development.  E5i+i# o BiBESIRE468.701 BTARE (37
With an equity investment of approximately RMB6,870.1 million (equivalent — A#779.947{&% 1) « ¥ILIEE B(HHEEL1EE
to approximately HK$7,994.7 million), the new projects cover a total site  j . @A ABEMBENTIBET HK - B SERE
area of approximately 310,000 square meters, with a total capacity building — 200E T AR o

area of approximately 740,000 square meters and an estimated value of over

RMB20,000.0 million.



Expansion of Land Resources in 2022

Project Name

BAAMHE

Shenzhen Investment Limited #3I32M AR AR
Annual Report %% 2022

Management Discussion and Analysis
o BILE w) w BL 4 A

202244 JE £ B PR

Capacity
Project Total land Building
Equity Ratio Type Site Area Area

THE#EmLD BitE @i (g BHE Gt FAREEE
(sg-m.) (sq.m.)
(EFHK) (FRK)

Luxury Mansion Shenzhen 51% Residential 3,780,000 26,114 135,790
REEMT wI =
Tairui Mansion Shenzhen 51% Residential 2,937,000 29,360 153,427
Finfi el %
Shum Yip Huxi Shangju Shanghai 100% Residential 1,639,700 43,129 86,257
AEFEELE & iz
Taizhou Medical Hi-Tech Zone Land Plot Taizhou 100% Residential 1,781,000 146,738 250,998
FMBEDHE R FM %
Ma'anshan Shenma Cihu Industrial Park Ma’anshan 100% Industrial 23,760 67,108 111,221
BRLRSHHIERE B I%
Total &5t 10,161,460 312,449 737,693
Land Reserves - il

By the end of 2022, the Group had land reserves with a capacity building area of ~ BlE2022FK + TR ET ARERELNGC60E TS
approximately 6.60 million square meters, of which, the projects not commenced K * EFRFATEBH AR EREN136EFHK
had a capacity building area of approximately 1.36 million square meters, the  HREEHARETRA49EF K - BRI ARE
projects under construction had a capacity building area of approximately 4.39 ~ HEEFABEMELNSSEF K - RELBRES
million square meters and the completed but unsettied projects had a capacity — IZERE + KNER LR ETARETEIGLE65% -
building area of approximately 0.85 million square meters. The reserve structure ~ K=ARE{ELA15% « ZHEE MM IELLA19% o
remained reasonable and healthy, with land reserve in the Greater Bay Area, the  It9) - BRI FEEBEXNA115.839BHTT
Yangtze River Delta region and the second-tier provincial capital cities accounting

for 65%, 15% and 19% of the total capacity buildings area respectively.

Besides, the value of completed properties in stock amounted to approximately

HK$11,583.9 million.
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Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December 2022) LHfEf A OR2022412H31H)

By type — Capacity Building Area “**® (sq.m.) By region — Capacity Building Area " (sq.m.)

EmBERLfh — SARREEBY (F7K) E5 i — SAEREERYE (F7K)

6% 1%

40% 54% 65%
15%
© Residential @ Complex ® Others (including © The Greater @ Yangtze River @ 2nd-tier provincial @ Other cities
FE FEE industrial, commercial Bay Area Delta capital cities H i
and other types of RER E=A —BAeHm
products)
At (SEX - BR
HMEMBERER)
Note: Mz -
Capacity building area: the sum of the gross floor area which is used in the calculation of the plot FIAREEE  ERANBEANMETERBERNEE
ratio within the land for construction. ERE 2 A -
Property Investment Business EL/d ES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had investment properties of approximately ~ F2022F 128310 » AEEREWERREELN179
1.79 million square meters. During the year, the Group recorded an income  EFHK o FR » AEEERYERERAL11.958
from property investment of approximately HK$1,195.8 million, representing a {87870 * RMEF THEA20% © TEHRRBEHERA
decrease of approximately 20% over last year, which was mainly due to the rent ~ FEMBEF D « MEREERENERL69% @ &E
concessions provided to the relevant business tenants during the pandemic. The ~ FETFE55EEFNE - FRNAEBMBREMEMAL
gross profit margin of property investment business was approximately 69%,  AfEEEMGF3.519EET o

representing a decrease of 5.5 percentage points over last year. The Group

recorded a revaluation decrease in the fair value of its investment property

portfolio of HK$351.9 million during the year.



Urban Integrated Operation Business

The Group’s urban integrated operations business, comprising urban and
industrial park property management, residential property management,
commercial operation and property management services, had total contracted
area under management of approximately 71.05 million square meters and
total area under management of approximately 68.23 million square meters, of
which approximately 72.3% was attributable to independent third-party projects
and 62.4% was attributable to non-residential properties, both higher than the
average in the industry. During the year, revenue from the urban integrated
operations business amounted to approximately HK$2,626.8 million. Relying on
its industry-leading comprehensive strength and widely-recognized service, the
Group was listed among the “Top 100 Property Service Enterprises China 2022
(No. 20)" (2022 HEMXRIEBEEEEE 20 i) by the China Index Academy,
“Top State-Owned Property Management Companies by Comprehensive Strength
(No. 7) (FIEMERBLCELFAZNE 7 £) by the China Property Management
Research Institution, etc.

Among the projects under management operated by Shum Yip Operations, the
urban and industrial park service projects, residential property service projects
and commercial operation and management service projects accounted for
56.5%, 37.7% and 5.8% of the total area under management respectively.
During the year, the Group expanded net new contracted area under
management of approximately 9.88 million square meters, and net new area
under management of approximately 9.52 million square meters in Guangdong,
Hunan, Jiangxi, Anhui, Jiangsu, etc., and won the bids for several large-scale
projects, including Shenzhen and Zhaoging Mobile, the premium office premises
-Changsha New Hunan Building, and the West Bay National Major Instrument
Science Park, further enhancing its third-party expansion strength.

In the area of commercial operation, the Group focuses on the market trend to
identify consumer trends and upgrade brand. It took multi-pronged measures
to design brand events, engaged leading IPs and organized over 200 wonderful
events in collaboration with multiple parties, enabling the Group to increase brand
exposure via various medias. During the year, with boosted customer traffic, the
Group posted record-high sales performance. The first Galeries Lafayette in South
China commenced trial operation and a number of global Top 500 companies
moved into UpperHills, Shenzhen during the year. All shopping malls have been
operated well, with a significant increase in customer traffic and occupancy, and
significant progress has also been made in respect of investment promotion, as
aggregately more than 150 new shops opened in our commercial projects.
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FERETEGLL62.4% - MIEREHERTETY
KE - FR - BREERALI26.268EBT o FE
BEREANGZAEINEI L ERBUNRBEK
% AEBELERBIEEMERE TH (20220 1Y)
¥RBEFREEE200] - FOWBRTIOEEY
ERBOEREENETL | SLBEERES -
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In the area of property management city business, the Group operates in a
careful manner and strives to set an industry benchmark. It has established
the “Property Management City Enterprise Standard System” to build a property
management city operation model with Shum Yip characteristics. During the
year, the Group acquired net new property city projects of RMB650 million,
increasing net total area under management by 7.70 million square meters. It
won the bids for Longhua Street project and Yuanling district project in Shenzhen
successively and further consolidated its leading position in the market share
of property management city business in Shenzhen. The Group was awarded
“China’s Leading Enterprise in Smart City Services’ (& BE S mREB LD
%) for the second consecutive year for its widely-recognized outstanding street
and community operation services. Besides, the Group’s Baolong Street property
management city project was awarded “China Property Management Excellence
Benchmark Project” (FEI¥YXERFMIZIEEE) by the China Property
Management Research Institution, aiming to build a four-party integration model
of “street + community + city housekeeper + social body” for a butterfly effect.

Hotel Operation Business

The Group owns five hotels in operation, namely Suzhou Marriott Hotel (with
302 guest rooms), Chaochu Shum Yip Bantang Hot Spring Hotel (with 27 spring
villas), Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring (with 203 guest rooms), Muji Hotel
(with 79 guest rooms) in UpperHills, Shenzhen, and Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen
(with 178 guest rooms). In particular, the Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen which was
opened in early 2022 was awarded the “Forbes Five Star” in 2023, being the
first and only hotel winning such honour in Shenzhen. During the year, the Group
achieved revenue from hotel operation (included under other operating segment)
of approximately HK$287.7 million, representing an increase of 69.6% over last
year.

Industrial Manufacturing Business

During the year, the manufacturing business realized operating income of
approximately HK$607.2 million, representing an increase of 33% over last year.
The Group’s manufacturing business mainly represents the LCM manufacturing,
metal materials processing and electronic control system operated by its
subsidiary Shenzhen Jinghua Displays Electronics Co., Ltd. over the years.
It has collaborated with over 30 global Top 500 and leading customers in
segment markets, with products widely used in industry, home appliances,
communications, consumption, medical and automobile fields.

Performance of Major Joint Ventures and Associates

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (a 51%
owned company of the Group) contributed profit of HK$229.8 million to the
Group, decreasing by 22.7% over last year. The principal activity of the company
is to assist local government in primary land development.

WERTHE - AEERLEE - FRRE - BU
(MERTEERERR)  BERLARERENY
ERUMELREN - FRAFMENERTEELLE6.5
ETARE - FHEABEERBRT70EF K - 4
PR EEYEREEARER - £ FERE
AIMERTTIHNRBOBEINA - AEEEERLR
EBERBRL - BXHERT - B [HEBERD
RERELEIRE : BRGENERTRAESTY
i [PENXERSMRERE | BE[HE+4H
E+BTER+HLETR] U BARERLA -

T S

AEERELRELDE  HRREMNERERE (%
B302MER)  EBFELSERERBE (&
QTFBFRAE)  ERFRERFBAEREE (R
203MEE)  AYIFELHMENR RBE (RA7IE
BE) URFIIEEREE (RBE178HEE) &
R ORYICERFEE N 2022 F IR E - 2023F %
BIRATREIBY  BRYEREE——REN
REMBE - FR - AEEERBELERA (b
RENIBIETN) #12.877TRETL  BEF LF169.6% °

TR
FR - HEEHERRAKRNC0T2EAT - 85
FL733% - AEBNOBEEBEERAFBLLR
YNREBRETROHDAERRAZEURKENRREE
RS - SEEIIT - BTRHERZLH -
ERRZARNTE - 58 - B - HE - BERN
SH4E0 - RBBREAS0RNAS BANES
BFAHE -

ERAE A RIE A A

FR - ARERASIDRENTMNHRARREZREA
BRRARARAKETREN2298FBT - BEF TR
22.7% ° ZARNEREXH BB EHBRFET LI
—HF%E -



Shenzhen Langtong Property Development Company Limited (@ 50% owned
company of the Group) incurred loss of HK$2.0 million. It is the project company
that has developed Shenzhen Tanglang City in collaboration with Shenzhen Metro
Group.

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Co., Ltd. (a 37.5% owned company of the
Group) contributed net profit of HK$248.6 million to the Group, representing an
increase of 6.9% over last year.

Road King Infrastructure Limited, an associate invested by the Group (1098.HK),
incurred loss of HK$133.8 million.

Financial Assets

On 31 May 2017, the Group contributed an amount of RMB5.50 billion to the
capital of Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited (‘Hengda Real Estate”) and
held 2.6439% equity interests in Hengda Real Estate.

According to the requirements under accounting standards, the equity interests
held by the Group in Hengda Real Estate was included as financial assets through
profit or loss in the financial statements and accounted for at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss for the period. Affected by
industry fluctuations, a provision was made on the loss of such financial assets
of approximately 6,374.9 million last year, upon which, the book fair value of the
said financial assets amounted to HK$461.1 million. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group made a provision for fair value losses of approximately HK$354.9
million, which did not affect the cash flow and daily operation of the Group.

Financing

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total bank and other borrowings amounted
to HK$40,222.2 million (31 December 2021: HK$38,097.2 million), of which
HK$22,355.9 million were floating rate loans, and the remaining were fixed-
rate loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$28,138.8 million, representing
approximately 70% of total borrowings, and short-term loans were HK$12,083.4
million, representing approximately 30% of total borrowings. Borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars amounted to HK$16,351.3 million, and
Renminbi borrowings amounted to HK$23,870.9 million.

During the year, the Group proactively raised funds and promoted financing
innovation. It obtained a three-year syndicated loan of HK$5 billion and replaced
the original syndicated loan of HK$3.5 billion. Besides, the Group issued CMBS
products of RMB3.2 billion with a preferential coupon rate of 3.4%, being the
largest issuance size and the lowest issuance rate among the CMBS products
issued by the municipality-owned enterprises. During the year, the average
comprehensive interest rate of the Group’s bank and other borrowings was
approximately 3.3% per annum, representing an increase of 0.3 percentage point
over last year, remaining at a lower level in the industry.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash balance was HK$13,361.6 million
(including restricted cash and bank deposits) (31 December 2021: HK$22,775.6
million), of which approximately 90.7% were denominated in Renminbi, and the
remaining in US dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net assets (excluding non-controlling
interests) of HK$44,631.8 million (31 December 2021: HK$49,174.9 million).
The net gearing ratio (net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 60.2%, representing an increase of 29 percentage points over the
end of last year.

Key Financial Indicators

HK$ million

BEBT

Bank and other borrowings RITERREMEE
— Long-term borrowings —REEE
— Short-term borrowings —EHEE

Cash (including restricted cash and bank deposits)

BRRE

Net gearing ratio

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi. 59% of the bank
and other borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, and 41% are Hong Kong
dollar borrowings. Hong Kong dollar is adopted as the reporting currency in
the Group's financial statements. The effect of the decrease in RMB exchange
rate on the Group’s finance was mainly reflected in the depreciation of the
asset and earnings denominated in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the
reporting currency. During the year, such fluctuations in the asset and earnings
denominated in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency, of
HK$5,673.5 million were included in other comprehensive income. The Group will
closely monitor and proactively avert foreign exchange risk through various ways.
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Impact of the Pandemic

In 2022, with the continuous optimization of the anti-pandemic measures, China
has entered a new stage of pandemic prevention and control smoothly. The
Group took various measures to fight against the pandemic, assumed social
responsibility with determination, and steadily pushed forward operations.

In terms of sales, the Group took various measures to boost sales performance
and effectively reduce the impact of the pandemic on it, realizing stable sales
growth. In terms of project construction, the Group has established a proper
control mechanism to ensure safety and quality, while accelerating the progress
of construction works, thus all projects have been settled as scheduled. In terms
of capital, given the increased costs and expenses incurred during the pandemic
prevention and control, the Group has stepped up efforts in centralized financing
and expanding financing channels, and the pandemic did not have any impact on
the liquidity of the Group.

Progress of the Litigation Involving Terra Companies

On 26 May 2021 and 31 May 2021, Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property
Development Company Limited (“Wuhan Terra Company’) and Shum Yip
Terra (Holdings) Company Limited (“Shum Yip Terra Company”, together with
Wuhan Terra Company, the “Terra Companies”), both being non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, respectively received a statement of claim (K%
#£EFAR) from the Intermediate People's Court of Wuhan City (BUEmHRAEE
Br) (the “Court”) regarding the claims by Hubei Province Livestock and Poultry
Breeding Center (#iit& & B E&F 1) (the “Breeding Center’) against the Terra
Companies (the “Litigation”) regarding the contractual disputes under the four
agreements entered into by Terra Companies with the Claimant in respect of
the development of Nanhu Rose Bay (F3;# 3% /&) in Wuhan, with a total claims
amount of approximately RMB900 million. In connection with the Litigation, the
Court ordered for the bank accounts and other assets of the Terra Companies
to be frozen to the extent of RMB640 million. In August 2022, the Court made
the first instance judgment to the Litigation confirming the contract was void
and dismissing the Breeding Centre's claim. Later the Breeding Centre appealed
against the judgment and the case is currently being heard by the High People’s
Court of Hubei Province in the second instance. As at the date of this report,
certain bank accounts of the Terra Companies with an aggregate balance of
approximately RMB640 million have been frozen by the Court. Based on the
current assessment, the Litigation has no material impact on the daily operation
of the Group as a whole.
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Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total loans of HK$10,339.4 million (31
December 2021: HK$6,907.1 million) that were pledged with assets (please refer
to note 31(b) to the financial statements for details).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has given guarantees amounted to
HK$1,400.7 million in respect of bank loans and other borrowings to Guangzhou
Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment
Development Limited and Shum King Company Limited, all of which are joint
ventures of the Group (please refer to note 38 to the financial statements for
details).

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 21,205 employees (2021:
21,084) of whom 24 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance
related personnel), and the rest were in mainland China. The total remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (excluding remuneration of the Directors)
amounted to approximately HK$2,955.2 million (2021: HK$2,789.2 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance, the
Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current market
condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In driving performance,
we also grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group.
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Dr. LU Hua, aged 59, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the President of
the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January 2013 and
the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24 April 2012 to 30
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Dr. LU holds a doctorate
degree in Political Economics from The Nankai University and a master’s degree
in Finance from The University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as
the president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited from May 2011 to December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as the
chairman of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ) and Shenzhen Shahe Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. and the general manager of Shenzhen Property Development
Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also served as a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction
and Development Group Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Talents Housing Group Co., Ltd.,
and a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). He has vast
experience of over twenty years in property development, corporate governance
and administrative management.

Dr. LU Hua
ZEL

Chairman
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Mr. WANG Yuwen
EREE

Executive Director
BITES

Mr. WANG Yuwen, aged 55, an Executive Director and President since 22
December 2022. Mr. WANG holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Wuhan
University, a master's degree in Public Administration from University Paris
1 Panthéon-Sorbonne and a master's degree in Economics from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Mr. WANG is currently a director and the
president of Shum Yip Group Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. He was elected a member of the Sixth CPPCC Shenzhen
Municipal Committee and a representative of the Seventh Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Congress. He served as the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Investment Holdings Company Limited, the chairman of Shenzhen Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Science and Technology Innovation Cooperation Zone Development
Co., Ltd., a director of Hong Kong-Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Park
Limited, deputy inspector of Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government Foreign
Affairs Office (Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the Municipal Government),
vice president of the Shenzhen People’s Association for Friendship with Foreign
Countries, and one of the leaders of the Executive Bureau of Shenzhen 26th
Summer Universiade Organizing Committee. Mr. WANG is currently a director of
Shenzhen Water Planning and Design Institute Co., Ltd. (301038.S2). Mr. WANG
has considerable experience in real estate development, industrial park operation,
Hong Kong and Macau affairs, and business management.
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w:/
- Ms. CAI Xun
. Lt
Executive Director
HiTE=E

Ms. CAI Xun, aged 48, an Executive Director since 27 August 2020. Ms. CAl
graduated from Central South University of Technology (now known as Central
South University) in investment economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
Ms. CAl is currently a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. She is also a director of various members of the Group. Ms.
CAl was the chief of the Cadre Division 1 of the Organization Department of
Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee before joining the Group. Ms. CAI worked in
the Organization Department of Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee during the
period from 2002 to 2019 and served as the chief of the Research and Publicity
Division and the chief of the Cadre Supervision Division etc.. Ms. CAl is currently
a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK) and Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (2318.HK). Ms. CAI has extensive
experience in human resources management and administrative management.
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Mr. XU Enli
A A

Executive Director
BITES

Mr. XU Enli, aged 47, an Executive Director since 22 December 2022. Mr. XU
graduated from Tianjin University with a master's degree and is a qualified senior
engineer. He is a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip Group Limited and
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, the board secretary of Shum Yip Group
Limited and a director of certain members of the Group. He joined the Group
in 2010 and previously held management positions in the subsidiaries of the
Company, including serving as the chairman and general manager of Shum Yip
Land Co., Ltd., the general manager of Shenzhen Science & Industry Park Group
Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd. and deputy general manager of Shum Yip Pengji (Holdings) Co., Ltd. etc.. He
was also the deputy general manager of Shum Yip Shahe Group Co., Ltd. Mr. XU
is currently a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.
HK). Mr. XU has extensive experience in real estate development, operation and
infrastructure construction.
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Ms. SHI Xiaomei
Bt

Executive Director
HITES

Ms. SHI Xiaomei, aged 52, an Executive Director since 27 August 2021. Ms. M Eiffi &+ - 525 » B2021F8 A27 B HT# 1T
SHI graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics majoring in =~ % - S U+ REN L ERRKAEE2 (fig) F
accountancy (teacher-education). She holds a bachelor's degree in economics ¥ @ HAEREEEL+ BN NS REIEE - £+
and the title of senior accountant. Ms. SHI is currently a director and the chief ~ BREREEBEFR AT (RARAIZHKELBAR) ESF
financial officer of Shum Yip Group Limited, the ultimate holding company of BB EE - RIIAKREER] - P L +FEERITH
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, she served as the department head 5 (£E) ER AR EBHBE « FIHEIERHE
of finance department of Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company Limited, the — BAFEFHEHLE « BISE - PLTHADAE
department head and deputy department head of finance department of Shenzhen ~ BB AE(000014.52)FF » P LT AMKEE
Airport Company Limited. Ms. SHI is currently a director of Shahe Industrial Co.,  REBEFTEALELR -

Ltd (000014.S7). Ms. SHI has extensive experience in financial management and

financial auditing.
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Mr. LI Wai Keung
RS

BIFHTES

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 66, an Independent Non-executive Director since
27 September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and
holds a master's degree in Business Administration from The University of
East Asia. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI
had worked for Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was
an independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited (1383.HK),
a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company Limited (000089.S7), an
executive director and financial controller of GDH Limited, an executive director of
Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited) (124.HK) and a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(270.HK). Mr. LI is currently an independent non-executive director of Hans
Energy Company Limited (554.HK), China South City Holdings Limited (1668.HK),
Centenary United Holdings Limited (1959.HK) and Legend Upstar Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Midland IC&! Limited) (459.HK). In addition, he was appointed
as a committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangdong Province on 17 January 2018 and appointed as a
standing committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Guangdong Province on 27 January 2018. Mr. LI is also a
management accounting advisor of the Ministry of Finance, PRC and the honorary
president of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association Limited.

Independent Non-executive Director
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Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, aged 65, an Independent
Non-executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate
degree in Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG has
extensive experience in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade.
Dr. WONG is active in public service. He was a Hong Kong deputy of the 12th and
13th National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China. Dr. WONG
was appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2012 and 2017 respectively
for his valuable contribution to the society. Dr. WONG is currently an independent
non-executive director of Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Limited (419.
HK), Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (934.HK) and Guangnan (Holdings) Limited
(1203.HK), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
HREEL

Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHTES
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Professor GONG Peng, aged 58, an Independent Non-executive Director
since 31 December 2022. Prof. GONG holds a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree in Geography from Nanjing University and a doctor’s degree from the
Faculty of Environment, University of Waterloo, Canada. He is a professor of
Department of Geography and Department of Earth Sciences, a Chair Professor
of Global Sustainability, and Vice President for Academic Development of The
University of Hong Kong. He was a full Professor at the University of California,
Berkeley, and the Chair of the Department of Earth System Science, the Dean
of the Faculty of Science and the Director of China Urban Research Institute at
Tsinghua University. Prof. GONG was a member of the Expert Group of Global
Change and Response, Ministry of Science and Technology of China. He currently
serves as a Deputy Director of Smart City Committee, Science and Technology
Commission of Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, and a
Deputy Director of Urban Development Examination Expert Steering Committee.
Internationally, he served as a member of the Future Earth Consultative
Committee, is presently a member of the Earth Commission and a member of the
International Advisory Group of the Lancet. He was elected as a foreign member
of the European Academy of Sciences in 2020, and was elected as a member of
the International Eurasian Academy of Sciences in 2021.

Professor GONG Peng (

Independent Non-executive Director
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Mr. YAN Zhongyu, aged 48, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
Wuhan University with a master's degree in Business Administration. Mr. YAN
joined the Group in 2020. He was the head of capital market department, the
deputy head and the head of strategic development department and the deputy
head and a senior supervisor of investment development department (investment
project assessment center) of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and a
director, deputy executive general manager, secretary of the board, head of
administration office and deputy manager (investment department) of Shenzhen
Great Ocean Shipping Co., Ltd.. Mr. YAN is currently a director of Shahe
Industrial Co., Ltd (000014.SZ). Mr. YAN has extensive experience in project
investment and financing, corporate management and capital operation.

Mr. YEO Kee Whye, aged 57, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
Imperial College London and holds a master’s degree in Computer Science from
University of Oxford. Mr. YEO joined the Group in 2021. Prior to this, he served
as the Co-president of Sinobo Land, the general manager of Hopson Commercial
Properties Ltd., the general manager of a commercial company of Financial Street
Holdings and the managing director of CapitaMalls Asia in China. Mr. YEO has
extensive experience in project investment, business development management,
asset management in commercial real estate sector.

Ms. WONG Yin San, aged 56, is the General Counsel of the Company and
the Board Secretary. Ms. WONG joined the Group in September 2014. She is
a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked in the corporate department of an international
law firm. She also previously held a senior position in a listed company in Hong
Kong. Ms. WONG has extensive experience in the legal, regulatory, corporate
finance, compliance and corporate governance fields.

Ms. HUANG Jiong, aged 56, is currently the admin director of the Company.
Ms. Huang graduated from Shenzhen University with major in Human Resource
Management and Business Administration, and the title of senior political analyst.
She joined the Group in 1989, and served as general manager assistant, deputy
general manager and general manager of human resources department of the
Company. Ms. HUANG has extensive experience in corporate management and
human resources management.

Shenzhen Investment Limited &322 A R 2 7 QLK)
Annual Report %3 2022 \ /

Directors and Senior Management
HEREBAITENE

W et o 485 0 BAARE - FEEEARA
AREE (5E) BRAFREAE - 2ERREKX
B THEEEEBRLIWRE o BAER2020F M
AREE - FEERYTREZEBRERAAIERES
HHE - BEBERTIER - 2BR - BRELED (&
EEBFEDRL) QYR 2 TE  FIKEEE
BOBRARES - PHEAIBKE EFSWE -
DEFT - RETECE - BEERTHAEERD
BRAF(000014.S7)E=E « BLERBEERRE -
PEERE ENEEREBEE L IELS -

B - 575 - REARF - REEBARR
ALR¥E (RE) BRAFBAE - REERRAT
BETAR  WHATEASFAERRRLTEM 2k
FER021FMAKREKE - 1Al - REETHEN
BREH  SEREARALE  SREZREAA
AR  JERRTERESEALE - hEARE
FHERHAREENBERE - AXAREE - &
EEESHENTELR -

H_

(R Lt - 565 0 RALRRAREBRERES
WE - ®B2014FIARMALEE - RABTER
ITREREAREN - BHUERFFERAEEA
B - BRAIAEESLBUEARBLTEM - H1I
AREEZA - RER—HKERZMEHAERE
EB - BREER-RBEALTARREEERK - &
TERER ER - BERE  AREDFERER
RBELELR -

v

s

payu}

mo

WMt o 565 0 REAARTHEE - &Rt
EXRNRIKREANEREREXRIHITRE R
X BARRBRTERE - BRR1989FMARE
B BEARRANERBALERDE - BlRgER
BEE - aRINERER ANBEREITREER
K o




Shenzhen Investment Limited ‘&332 A 1R A 7]
Annual Report 3% 2022

Directors” Report
O

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group include property development for sale, property investments for rental
income and property management for property service income. Details of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in
note 43, note 19 and note 20 to the financial statements, respectively. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set
out in the sections “Highlight of 2022 Results” on pages 5 to 6, “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 10 to 21, “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
24 t0 40, and “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 74 to 103 of this report
and the ESG report issued separately. All such discussions form part of this
report.

Group Profit
The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss is set out on page 113 of this report
which shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Dividends
An interim dividend of HK3.00 cents per share for the first half of 2022 was paid
to the shareholders in mid October 2022.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK12.00 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: a final dividend of HK8.00
cents per share), which subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, will be payable in cash on
or about Friday, 7 July 2023 to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Wednesday, 7 June 2023. Together with the
interim dividend already paid, the total dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounts to HK15.00 cents per share (2021: HK15.00 cents per share).
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Law and Regulations

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property management
and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject to the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. In respect of the laws and regulations relating to
the environment, which include, but not limited to, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection (% AREMBIREREE), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution (%
2= AR LMBEIE BEREE Y5 23R 558 7%) and the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone as well as other
provinces where the Group operates in etc.. The Group attaches great importance
to legal compliance, and carries out all the business activities in compliance with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations.

Key Risk Factors

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
operational results or growth prospects leading to a divergence from expected or
historical results. The following paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there may be other
risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could become material in the future.

Macroeconomic Risks

The Group’s development and operations may be affected by external
macroeconomic and capital market fluctuations. The geo-political instability in
the international arena will have uncontrollable long-term effects. The systematic
risk in China's economic transformation, the shocks on macro economy arising
from the epidemic situation and the fluctuating capital market may bring
uncertainty to the Group’s operating environment. The Group will keep track of
the macroeconomic changes at all times and take corresponding measures to
cope with the risks as and when necessary.

Industry Risks

Affected by policy control, liquidity and other factors, the real estate industry in
China is facing complex environment and high uncertainty, which may have an
impact on the Group’s development and operations. The income from property
business represents mainstream income of the Group, and in the Group’s income
from real estate sales, the income from the real estate sales in the Greater Bay
Area market has a higher proportion. If there is a downside risk in the real estate
market in the Greater Bay Area, this will have a more substantial impact on the
Group’s net assets, sales revenue and profitability. The Group closely monitors
the sales position at all times and adopts strategies with flexibilities to cope with
the risks.
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Policy Risks

Throughout 2022, the policy for real estate industry in China was to maintain a
stable development of the real estate market, with aim to realize a virtuous circle.
As the keynote of the macropolicy, “house is a place to live instead of a tool for
speculation” will continue to improve the housing market and promote the market
to further move towards a stable and healthy development. Together with the
correction of financial policies, the opening of city-orientated policy-making space
and the exploration of new development patterns, the real estate market will
maintain stable development. The Group will carefully interpret the policies and
closely monitor the market situation, and flexibly adjust the Company's strategy
and sales plan to cope with the risk from policy changes.

Exchange Rate Risks

There is a fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s main assets are
located in mainland China while the reporting currency of Group’s financial
reports is Hong Kong dollar. The fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate will
cause changes in the value of the Group’s assets and earnings denominated in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency. The Group did not
adopt any financial instrument to hedge against exchange rate risk in the year.
In future, the Group will monitor the exchange rate fluctuations, and actively
address exchange rate risks through a variety of ways.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operations may be affected by multiple risk factors related to the real
estate business. Inadequate internal processes, personal misconduct, external
partner's breach behavior, climate change related factors, delay in the schedule
of construction projects caused by the pandemic or other factors beyond control
may have certain negative impacts on the Group’s operation. The Group will
continue to optimize its management, improve its internal control system and
enhance its operational capabilities so as to avoid such risks.

Investment Risks

The Group involves in real estate project investment, equity investment and
emerging industry investment. Changes in external environment, such as
macroeconomic fluctuations, changes in social environment, industry policy
adjustments or other uncontrollable factors, may cause the invested projects not
meeting expectations, which will have impact on the Group’s net assets, sales
revenue and profitability. The Group has established corresponding management
and decision-making mechanisms for investment business, and will continue to
optimize the internal control system in the future, while closely monitoring market
dynamics and actively responding to risks from the external environment.
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Highlight of ESG Report

During 2022, the Company always kept in mind the corporate environmental,
social and governance responsibilities, adhered to the excellent vision of
“Innovative Constructor of Industrial Cities, Wealthy Livelihood Operator”, and
actively responded to the national “dual carbon” work by integrating the concept
of “ecology, green, and health” into its project management and operation,
implementing the corporate sustainable development. The Group adhered to the
human resource concept of “morality headed and making good use of talent’
to create a high-quality talent team and promote the common development of
employees and the enterprise; upheld the service principle of “customer first” to
provide customers with more convenient and better services; actively participated
in the building of a harmonious communities to further create a social governance
pattern of joint constitution, joint governance and shared benefits. The Group
followed the “rigorous and orderly, standardized and efficient” management
philosophy and cultivated a clean corporate culture to improve the level of
corporate governance.

The Group highly valued the recommendations and views provided by all
stakeholders, built internal and external two-way communication channels
to ensure effective communication with stakeholders and were committed
to creating long-term values for our stakeholders including homeowners,
tenants, investors, business partners, employees and broad communities. For
the management of ESG issues, the Group continued to attain outstanding
performance on green building, health and safety, product quality and safety,
and corporate governance. The Company also continued to maintain a good
rating of MSCI-ESG index and was awarded the “Best ESG Award” and ‘Best
Investor Relation Project” at the China Excellence IR Awards. This reflects a high
recognition of the Group's ESG management by capital market and the Group's
long-term development advantages in the business and management. In the year,
the Group has optimized its ESG governance structure and ESG management
approach to ensure that the Group’s sustainable development strategy plays an
active role in all respects to achieve the Group’s goals and visions.

For details, please refer to the “2022 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” issued by the Company.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

Shenzhen Investment Limited &332 %A 1R A 7]
Annual Report %3 2022

Directors’ Report
EERUE

BRBE ~ A AR R W

2022F  RRAIRRBROCERE - HERERE
I BF[ERBFESE  ERREBLETINE
RS BHEERR [ S5 TE - BI4EE - &
& BEINESHAEIEENELT FELE
AHERE - AEERA[UAEAL  HAZHIH
ATBES  TEREEATHE  REETHMEHR
¥R EH (ZFPELINRERA - ARPRME
EERE - TEENRE  BESAMBHERED
—SREBABRLAEZNMGRERE - £AEEERE
[BEEF  BEaRNEERS  SE5ERZAG
¥ - REDEERKTE -

ASEERENERBIRLAOREEER - BER
HEERRBRE  REENDEBINORREA -
HARRET - HP - REE  BERH  BIR
BAHBSENZABEAIEREER - EESGHEE
Ol AREEGERE  BRAZE - EmmE
ZENMEEE R LMRBKERL - FRATEER
FIMSCI-ESGHEHB TR - ARKETHIMR &
EESGR | [REREEREER] - EETRTEX
MEHAKBESGEENREAE - BRBRTALHE
EXBRER FAARBBRRED - AFE - A&H
EBRICEBESGERRBRESGER L - BRAK
BEOASEFRERAER T ERERGER - BRA
SENRRERE

FEFZHARDRDEMMN [20221R% - HERERR
&l

A R

AEERENERBRFELCAMEE - ABENIFE
BESEERENRRALECHBRR (HER) -
HNETH - HRBWFEERUBREZ—80



Shenzhen Investment Limited J&31% 0% 5 1R 2 &
Annual Report 3% 2022

Directors’ Report
HHEGgRE

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 and 16 to the
financial statements respectively.

Properties
Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 253 to
260.

Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$1,118,712,000 of which HK$1,067,855,000 have been
proposed as final dividend for the year. Details of movements in the reserves
of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 117 to 118 and note 29 to the financial
statements respectively.

Interest Capitalisation
Interest of approximately HK$1,608,092,000 was capitalised during the year in
respect of the Group’s property development projects.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

Donations
During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately HK$2,711,000
for charitable or other purposes.
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Directors

The Directors as at the date of this report are listed on page 4 of this report. The
following changes to the Board composition were effected during the year and
prior to the date of this report:

Mr. HUANG Wei resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 30
March 2022.

—  Mr. DONG Fang was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-
executive Director with effect from 30 March 2022.

—  Mr. WANG Yuwen was appointed as an Executive Director on 22 December
2022.

—  Mr. XU Enli was appointed as an Executive Director on 22 December 2022.

—  Mr. DONG Fang resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 22
December 2022.

- Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael retired as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 31 December 2022.

—  Prof. GONG Peng was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 31 December 2022.

In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of the Company,
Dr. LU Hua, Ms. SHI Xiaomei and Mr. LI Wai Keung will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election.

Mr. WANG Yuwen and Mr. XU Enli, and Prof. GONG Peng, were appointed by
the Board as Directors to fill casual vacancy on 22 December 2022 and 31
December 2022, respectively. In accordance with article 91 of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. WANG Yuwen, Mr. XU Enli and Prof. GONG Peng
will hold office as Director only until the next following general meeting following
their appointment and, being eligible, they have offered themself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year is available on the Company’s website at
www.shenzheninvestment.com under the “Corporate Governance” section.
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Update on Directors’ Information
Mr. WANG Yuwen was appointed as a director of Shum Yip Group Limited on 19
January 2023 and a director of Shum Yip Holdings Limited on 3 January 2023.

Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 41 to 49 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transaction, Arrangement and
Contract

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by
the Group and subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest
in a business which competes or may compete, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Mr. WANG Yuwen, Ms. CAl Xun and
Ms. SHI Xiaomei are directors, of both Shum Yip Holdings Limited (“SYH") and
Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG"). SYH and SYG, through their subsidiaries and
associates, have interests in property investment and development businesses in
the PRC.

Ms. SHI Xiaomei is a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ), which
shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and have interests in property
investment and development businesses in the PRC.

In addition, Ms. CAI Xun and Mr. XU Enli are non-executive directors of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK), an associated company of the Company, whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and engages in
property investment and development businesses.
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Emoluments of Directors and Chief Executives and the Five
Highest Paid Employees

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 10(b) and 10(c) to the financial
statements respectively.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (“Old Share
Option Scheme”), which had expired on 19 June 2022. No further options may be
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme but the 7,630,000 options granted
and outstanding thereunder as at the date of this report shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 31 May 2022 (“Share
Option Scheme”). No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out
below:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants (‘Participant(s))”
and for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time to time,
and to provide the Participants with the opportunity to acquire propriety
interests in the Company to encourage the Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

2. The Participants of the Share Option Scheme are the employee or director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the group comprising the Company, Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited, the holding company of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited, and their respective subsidiaries and associated
companies from time to time (the “SY Group”), or any employee, partner or
director of any business consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser
and legal adviser of and to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may
at it absolute discretion determine.
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3. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all 3. R{THERBHEEREZ RAA T 2 E[AEM

options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of adopting the Share Option
Scheme. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 882,249,311, representing
approximately 9.91% of the shares in issue of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to each Participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, unless otherwise separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting. Further, any grant of option to a Participant
who is a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to him in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate more than
0.1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of the date upon which the option is
granted and accepted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be held, nor
any performance target which is needed to be achieved by the grantee,
before the option can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board and specified at the time of the offer.

BRETER L 2 2 BERER BT RN
BYAATERBNRANERETIZEEEET
BRBE210% c RARERLD - RIEERE
FHEIR BT 2 R EE 882,249,310k + 4
HERARAEETR7D29.91% °

IR 8 AR A 2 R E AR AT &
REMI2ERBHERTRBETFE28BE Y
EhE (BECENE - BEERERTHCE
i) RITEMET RRET I ROEE - 75
BARAREEITROBE 1% + STRBRE
REERDAIREIRAEERN o B - BRIEE
s B R A QR EMEMERETE - WA
FEARAEEREIBUFMTEZAHES
BEMTMHEACSEERL RERNNMER
i (BIECETE - BEEEREARTENER
B) RTEmERREBEr e EE@R L A Lt
128 A A BT RIS ()& LB
BARADBETRDBEMN0.1% « R(i)ERA
ARORSREBBHUTERE - BERER
5,000,000/ L% + AR HEREAECKAADRR
REBRRAE Lt -

RIFERERT 8 R T 2 ERIRBBE ZTE S A
ESQ2BRE - RREBERESHARKS
REREREES BEFNERE10EFE A E
o
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RAEARABZIZEMRREER RFESF
SRR NBBERSZERE REH



7. The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided that it shall
not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the date the
Share Option Scheme is adopted or after the Share Option Scheme has
been terminated in accordance with the provisions thereof, whichever is
earlier. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee on acceptance of
a grant.

8. The exercise price of options granted shall be a price determined solely
by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share in the Company.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31 May 2032
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme and to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 889,879,311 shares.

Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements for further information on the
share option schemes of the Company.
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The particulars of, and movements in, the outstanding share options granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme during the year are set out below:

As at 1 January 2022 Movements during the year As at 31 December 2022
1022%1 718 2 M022E12A31R
Share Share Share Share
Name/Categories Qutstanding Date of * Exercise period/ Exercise Options Options Options Options~ Qutstanding Date of  Exercise period/ ~ Exercise
of grantee Share Options grant Vesting period Price  granted  exercised lapsed cancelled  Share Options grant  Vesting period Price
FHRE ffH/ 555 it /58 ke
Directors
£
LU Hua 9,305,948 20/6/2017  Fully vested, exercisable 2902 - - 9,305,948 - 0 - - -
by 19/6/2022
ik BAHEE - AR
1906120228175
HUANG Wei (Note 1) 8,840,169 20/6/2017  Fully vested, exercisable 2902 - - 8840169 - 0 - - -
by 19/6/2022
&2 () BEEEE TR
1906120228175
DONG Fang (Note 2) 6,236,143 20/6/2017  Fully vested, exercisable 2902 - - 6,236,143 - 0 - - -
by 19/6/2022
g7 (i) EEEEE TR
1906120228117
24,382,260 - - 24382260 - 0
Employee participants 105,074,827 20/6/2017 Fully vested, exercisable 2902 - = 105,074,827 - 0 - - -
by 19/6/2022
gasas BEEE TN
190612022811
147871 81212018  Fully vested, exercisable 2.869 - - AUM78N - 0 - - -
by 19/6/2022
EEEEE AR
1962022117
5,160,000  28/9/2021 18112022 - 17/1/2025* 200 - - - - 5160000 28922021 18112022 200
1711/2025°
470,000 28/9/2021  26/9/2022 - 27/9/2025* 200 - - - - 2470000 280922021 28/9/2022- 200
21/9/2025"
136,852,698 - - 12922269 - 7,630,000
Total 161,234,958 - - 153604958 - 7630000
Ad




Notes:

1.

2.

Mr. HUANG Wei resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 30 March 2022.

Mr. DONG Fang resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 22 December 2022.

*

Hok

Options are exercisable subject to performance review and the following vesting

term:

Maximum percentage (and the corresponding number) of
Share Option exercisable (including Share Options previous exercised)

ATEBRESSLE (REEHE) (EFREETRZBRE)
40% (2,064,000 Share Options)

40% (2,064,00017 B AR HE)

70% (3,612,000 Share Options)

70% (3,612,00017 i)

100% (5,160,000 Share Options)

100% (5,160,000 312 )

Options are exercisable subject to performance review and the following vesting

term:

Maximum percentage (and the corresponding number) of
Share Option exercisable (including Share Options previous exercised)

ATERRESSLA (REEHE) (BFBEETEZBRE)
40% (988,000 Share Options)

40% (988,00017 B A 4E )

70% (1,729,000 Share Options)

70% (1,729,000 B R E)

100% (2,470,000 Share Options)

100% (2,470,00017FE AR #E)
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1. FEEANR202FIAN0BEFEINTES -

2. EFGAN202F12 A2 BEHEIEMITES -
o BREERRRERR TIIRBEITE

Exercise period of the relevant percentage of the Share Option
HERLARREZTREE

at any time from 18 January 2022 to 17 January 2023

20221 A18HE2023F1 A17H Z (LA EH

at any time from 18 January 2023 to 17 January 2024

202351 A18BE 2024451 517 B 2L F

at any time from 18 January 2024 to 17 January 2025

20241 A18AZ2025F1 A17 B ZEAH

o BRERERRERRTIIRBHTRE

Exercise period of the relevant percentage of the Share Option
ML IR R E 21T

at any time from 28 September 2022 to 27 September 2023
202249 A28 H 5202359 A27 8 7 E{a]F

at any time from 28 September 2023 to 27 September 2024
202349 428852024459 A27 8 Z (A

at any time from 28 September 2024 to 27 September 2025
20249 A28 HE 20259 A27 B Z (LA
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Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") adopted by the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying shares of the Company:

Name of director Capacity

40

LU Hua Beneficial owner
B ESHEBA
LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner
G BRBAA

ERZ B
R2022F12A31H * ARRIZEERERITHA
BRARA RAMAEEZE (T REFRBE K
([BHEREED ) BXVE) 2BH - HERG R
BEHFFHEEREEFLBERAEXVEETRESD
HENEAARREARARFMERAA ([BX
Frl) 2EZRAR (BEREELFRBERNZZE
BEXRERSIRABEE AR ZER) - HLHNR
BESRNEGRIEIGATEE LMz ERSR
KB RBEARRRMNZ LMETAESHITES
RGHZREFR ([FETFA ) BREARARER
FreRsukamT

ARaElfd (TR 1) kBB 2 FR

Number of Percentage of
Shares Shares in issue
HEETRM

BinEE ZBDH
(Note)

(FrzE)

1,154,562 0.01
1,180,880 0.01

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 8,898,793,115 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2022, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code. Save as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated
corporations and none of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age
of 18, had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

W : B IREEE2022F12 8318 2 2317
18,898,793 1155t E -

B ENFREEI - BE2022F12831H - HER
NABZERRETHABRAR A E I HEEE
(EERBELERPEEPIEXVE) 2 ERRHD RAEK
NAEFTFEEREELFLAERIEXNVTETRE
8L BANGANR KBz ERIAR (BERE
FHEREERAIZBBEIEEESIRAERZAR
ZHER) - RSB ES R R E35218BH
ADRFEEZBLMZERTAR » HRBEESTE
BHNEARA R ESIAR - B EXNFBE
O RNEREAER - ARARETAHED B
BL2EMMETHE  SESAUERBAA RS EAE A
BrROSESES (BEES) MEF - HEER
BE  UHEEZEBIE T NAFAT FRESEM
REALRFEBR 2B EEXEHES 2R
BT A ERET -
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Substantial Shareholders EXY 3

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 ~ MARTEREEXSZSTHABMEH - H20224F
December 2022, the interests and short positions of the shareholders (other 128318 > BE (ARATEFLARSTHAERIN)
than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short —~ RAD ARG RERERN HEABREZEFRAEK
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall ~ FIZEXVEFE2 R EID 2 EXAARATRE 2 R R
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part %8 » LN A D AIBEEH LY EEH 533614
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the ~ BREZERMEFERARNMT ¢

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Number of Shares Held

Pz B
Percentage of
Capacity Long Position Short Position Shares in issue
{HERITRE
55} 24} ZBEAK
(Note 1)
(PaE1)
Shum Yip Group Limited* (“SYG") Interest in controlled corporation 5,622,994,189 (ote2) — 63.19
REEBERAT SrEE Y B (k2
(MRx&E])
Shum Yip Holdings Company Beneficial owner 5,546,307,730 — 62.33
Limited (“SYH”)
R (£8) ARAT BB A
(MR% (5E) 1)
Interest in controlled corporation 76,686,459 Mote3) — 0.86
REEE R (H3t3)
ALPHA-OMEGA CORPORATION Beneficial owner 981,486,312 — 11.03
ExBEAA
Notes: MoaE -

1. The percentage was calculated based on 8,898,793,115 Shares in issue as at 31 1. B IREEZE2022912A8318 2B #T7R %
December 2022, 8,898,793,115 k5T & -

2. SYG is deemed to be interested in the 5,622,994,189 Shares which SYH is interested in 2. BARE (KB BREEREEEL0%EZ 2 M
by virtue of SYH being its direct 90%-owned subsidiary. BRR  BOREEEWBANGE (K@) BE#E
75,2 5,622,994, 189 A% (7 R 1 A #E o ©

3. These 76,686,459 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned 3. % 5:76,686,459 1% A% 17 Fa Successful Years Holdings

subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Shum LimitedZ 2 EWBARMAELERAGFE -
Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF"). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and M Successful Years Holdings Limited f1 /7% 2 & g B 7%
accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 76,686,459 Shares. BRABI(RE2R]) 28HE - RESRAR

¥ (KE)ME2EMRBRAR - Bt - FE (K@)
W tR A 725 76,686,459 AR AL D AR BUAE RS ©

* For identification purpose only
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had not been
notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Equity-Linked Agreements
Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 40 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions also constituted non-exempt connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements.

Connected Transactions

Set out below is the information in relation to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions carried out by the Group during the year,
particulars of which were previously disclosed by way of announcements and are
required under the Listing Rules to be disclosed in this report.

BEXFRREES  BE2022F12A318 - HE(T
AL (RARAEZREBTRABRIN) CHGEL
BERARARD REEROTEEREEFLBEE
ERIEXVEE2REID 2 EXHERERAREFSH R
HEIEDIE336IKBETE 2 Bz ERRAR -

e 5 48 8 i

B LA TR 2 R AR 2 BB B - RERRF
E&ERE » ARRMET LR FEEARSRTEHR
ARBBITBNDRBERARAFT LB ERAEHAR
AIBTTRA B R i O R R S hpik

LB

REEXRHBRTETNEABB IS BERY
HHAMEL0 - ERETR TR EMRAATZ
FRCEERS - ARFCHUETERRERTE

B HLAE 5
TXARBENEAGERFAMETIRER S RIE
MERS ABZEN  HFBECFAEULETAR
BYRRE EMRRERARETHE -



Connected Transactions

1.

On 29 April 2022, Shum Yip Land Company Limited (“Shum Yip Land"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Longhua Talents Housing
Co., Ltd. (‘Longhua Talents Housing”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shenzhen Talents Housing Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Talents Housing
Group), won the bid of the land use rights of a piece of land for residential
development situated at Minzhi Street, Longhua District, Shenzhen (the
“Land”) through a listing-for-sale process at a consideration of RMB3,780
million. Shum Yip Land (or its wholly-owned subsidiary) and Longhua
Talents Housing agreed to establish a project company (“Project Company”)
to be held by Shum Yip Land (or its wholly-owned subsidiary) and Longhua
Talents Housing as to 51% and 49% respectively for the acquisition and
development of the Land (the “Transaction”). Funding for the settlement of
the consideration (including taxes payable) for the acquisition of the Land
and registered capital of the Project Company, which is approximately
RMB3,905 million, will be contributed by Shum Yip Land and Longhua
Talents Housing in proportion to the respective shareholdings in the Project
Company. Accordingly, the capital commitment of Shum Yip Land is
RMB1,992 million. Since Longhua Talents Housing is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shenzhen Talents Housing Group (of which a subsidiary is a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company), Longhua Talents
Housing is an associate of a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company and thus a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level. Accordingly, the Transaction constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company. The Directors consider that the Transaction is in line with the
development strategy of the Group and will further enhance the profitability
and promote the long-term sustainable development of the Group. The joint
venture partners will benefit from the cooperation by pooling together their
experiences and resources, which will reduce the investment and operation
risks, and create a greater return, for each of them. As the Board (i) has
approved the Transaction; and (ii) the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are of the view that the terms of the Transaction
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, the Transaction is hence
subject to the announcement and reporting requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules. Details of the Transaction
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 29 April 2022.
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On 20 May 2022, Shenzhen International Qianhai Real Estate (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (the “Subsidiary”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Shenzhen International Qianhai Investment and Management
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the “Non-controlling Shareholder”), a 50% equity
holder of the Subsidiary, entered into (i) a renewal agreement in relation to
the renewal of the loan in the principal amount of RMB500 million advanced
by the Subsidiary to the Non-controlling Shareholder (the “First Loan") (the
2022 First Loan Renewal Agreement”) and (i) a renewal agreement in
relation to the renewal of the loan in the principal amount of RMB50 million
advanced by the Subsidiary to the Non-controlling Shareholder (the “Second
Loan”) (the “2022 Second Loan Renewal Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Subsidiary agreed to renew the First Loan and the Second Loan and
extend the repayment date of the First Loan and the Second Loan to 12
March 2023 and 20 May 2023 respectively (the 2022 First Loan Renewal
Agreement and the 2022 Second Loan Renewal Agreement collectively refer
to as ‘2022 Renewal Agreements”). As the Non-controlling Shareholder
is a substantial shareholder of the Subsidiary, it is a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary level. Accordingly, the 2022 Renewal
Agreements constituted connected transactions of the Company. Given
(1) the Board has approved the 2022 Renewal Agreements; and (2) the
Directors (including all the Independent Non-Executive Directors) confirmed
that the terms of the 2022 Renewal Agreements are on normal commercial
terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole, the 2022 Renewal Agreements (when aggregated
with the loan from the Subsidiary to the Non-controlling Shareholder
renewed on 28 December 2021 with an outstanding amount of RMB160
million) are subject to the announcement and reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions
under the 2022 Renewal Agreements were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 20 May 2022.

R2022F5A208 - REIEADEEE ORI
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On various dates in December 2022, Shum Yip Smart Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, certain other members of the Group, and Shum Yip Group
Limited (“Shum Yip Group”), Shum Yip Shahe Group Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip
Shahe”), Shenzhen Shum Yip Infrastructure Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip
Infrastructure”) and Shenzhen Science & Industry Park Group Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Science & Industry Park”) (Shum Yip Group, Shum Yip Shahe,
Shum Yip Infrastructure and Shenzhen Science & Industry Park collectively
referred to as “SY Group Service Receiving Parties”) entered into digital
platform development agreements and supplemental agreements (*Digital
Platform Development Agreements’) regarding the engagement of Shum Yip
Technology for the provision of services of development and construction
of certain digital platforms and systems for certain parties, including SY
Group Service Receiving Parties, and the cost allocation arrangements
among them. On 28 December 2022, Shum Yip Technology and Shum Yip
Group entered into a new official website development agreement (‘“New
Official Website Development Agreement”) regarding the engagement of
Shum Yip Technology for the provision of the services of development of a
new official website of Shum Yip Group (the transactions as between Shum
Yip Technology and the SY Group Service Receiving Parties contemplated
under the Digital Platform Development Agreements and the transactions
contemplated under the New Official Website Development Agreement
collectively referred to as the “Transactions”). The aggregated fees payable
to Shum Yip Technology by the SY Group Service Receiving Parties under
the Digital Platform Development Agreements and the New Official Website
Development Agreement amounted to RMB13,612,544.40. As Shum Yip
Group is the ultimate holding company of the Company, the Transactions
constitute connected transactions of the Company and are subject to
the announcement and reporting requirements but are exempt from the
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Transactions were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2022.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 March 2022, Shum Yip Terra Land Investment & Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Terra Land Company’, an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Zhongshan Vanke Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Zhongshan
Vanke”) and Zhongshan Shenye Wansheng Investment Co., Ltd. (the “Project
Company”, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company owned as
to 50% by Shum Yip Terra Land Company and 50% by Hefei Vanke Ruixiang
Real Estate Company Limited (‘Hefei Vanke")) respectively entered into a
development and construction services agreement regarding the provision by
Zhongshan Vanke of a full range of management services for the development,
construction, marketing and other affairs in relation to the piece of land situated
at Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC held by the Project Company
for the period commencing from 28 March 2022 to 28 March 2032 (or the day
on which Zhongshan Vanke completes all the work under the said agreement
(whichever is earlier) (the “Development and Construction Services Agreement”).
The annual cap of the service fee (“Service Fee”) payable by the Project Company
to Zhongshan Vanke for the services provided under the Development and
Construction Services Agreement is RMB250 million, RMB300 million, RMB320
million, RMB250 million, RMB170 million, RMB250 million and RMB95 million for
the years ending 31 December 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027 and 2028
respectively. The annual cap for Service Fee for each of the four years ending 31
December 2029, 2030, 2031 and 2032 is set at zero because while Zhongshan
Vanke may be required to provide follow up services, it is expected that the
Service Fee would be fully settled and paid to Zhongshan Vanke by the year
ending 31 December 2028. As Hefei Vanke is a substantial shareholder of the
Project Company and both Hefei Vanke and Zhongshan Vanke are subsidiaries
of China Vanke Co., Ltd., Zhongshan Vanke is therefore an associate of a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company and thus a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Development and Construction Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions
under the Development and Construction Services Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Service Fee paid by the Project
Company to Zhongshan Vanke amounted to RMB73,025,000 (representing
approximately 29.21% of the annual cap for 2022).
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The Independent Non-executive Directors, having reviewed the continuing
connected transactions under the Development and Construction Services
Agreement, confirmed that such transactions had been entered into

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company has engaged its external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to
report on the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. The copy of the independent auditor’'s letter provided by the
auditor to the Company has been submitted to the Stock Exchange.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company's auditor
confirmed that:

() nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the continuing connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(i) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap as set by the Company.
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Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Securities
During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 1,100,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (“Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, with an
aggregate consideration paid (before expenses) amounting to HK$1,849,300. All
the Shares repurchased were subsequently cancelled. As at 31 December 2022,
the total number of Shares in issue was 8,898,793,115.

Particulars of the share repurchases are as follows:

Number of Shares
Repurchased

BEr A

April 2022 202254 A 1,100,000

BEE ~ B R AN R Z B

FR - ARARBEBBHERIMERLAAERA £
1,100,000k A2 B E@E (MK ) - EFBRE
(FBRBISZAT) 51,849,300 7T - ERIMETARME
BB TS - R20229F12 8318 » BETRHA
£1/8,898,793,1150% °

ROEDMFERT -

Aggregate
Consideration

Purchase Price per Share (before expenses)

BRE
(INBRFIXAT)

BRRHEEE

Highest Lowest
x=®
(HK$)
(BL)

1.71 1.66 1,849,300

The Directors considered that such repurchases would enhance the earnings
per Share attributable to the shareholders and increase the net asset value per
Share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the
year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares are held by the public.

EERAARBORRITRREEERENENE
BEERE -

BREXFRBEEEN - AREREEAHELRFAL
BRE  HEXBEXLRMEELHES o

N EEY e
AERE2ERAEAHREAY - REARTNEH
PREMEAEZMAE - ARAARANDRE
RE  BIRBRERELAPRARAZETRNE
25% °



Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

On 26 June 2018, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(“1st Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility of up to a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000,000 (“1st Facility”) offered by certain banks
as lenders. The Company shall repay the borrowings under the 1st Facility by five
installments with all outstanding amounts under the 1st Facility fully repaid on
the date falling 60 months from the date of the 1st Facility Agreement.

On 26 June 2019, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“2nd Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving loan facility of up to
RMB1,000,000,000 (“2nd Facility") offered by a bank as lender. The 2nd Facility
is subject to annual review by the lender.

On 14 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“3rd Facility Agreement”) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
US$185,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“3rd Facility") offered
by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the borrowing under the 3rd
Facility is 48 months from the date of the first drawdown under the 3rd Facility
Agreement.

On 17 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“4th Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$800,000,000
(“4th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 4th Facility is 3 years
from the date of the first drawdown under the 4th Facility Agreement.

On 7 April 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“5th
Facility Agreement’) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000 (‘5th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 5th Facility is 3 years from
the date of acceptance of the 5th Facility Agreement.

On 17 June 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“6th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000
(“6th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 6th Facility is 35
months commencing from the date of the first drawdown under the 6th Facility
Agreement.
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On 29 June 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“7th
Facility Agreement’) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
HK$600,000,000 (or its equivalent in United States dollars) (“7th Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The term of the 7th Facility is 3 years commencing from the
signing date of the 7th Facility Agreement.

On 19 August 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“8th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,000,000,000
(“8th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 8th Facility is 36
months commencing from the date of acceptance of the 8th Facility Agreement.

On 30 August 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“9th
Facility Agreement’) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$600,000,000 (“9th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 9th Facility is 36 months
commencing from the first drawdown date of the 9th Facility Agreement.

On 23 November 2021, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (“10th Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to
HK$900,000,000 (“10th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. HK$600,000,000
of the 10th Facility is for a term of 36 months and HK$300,000,000 of the 10th
Facility is for a term of 12 months, both commencing from the date of the 10th
Facility Agreement.

On 9 December 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“11th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,000,000,000
(“11th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 11th Facility is 36
months commencing from date of acceptance of the 11th Facility Agreement.

On 14 June 2022, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(“12th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility Agreement, 2nd
Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement, 5th
Facility Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement, 7th Facility Agreement, 8th Facility
Agreement, 9th Facility Agreement, 10th Facility Agreement and 11th Facility
Agreement collectively referred to as the ‘Facility Agreements”) with certain
banks as lenders relating to a term loan facility of HK$5,000,000,000 (‘12th
Facility”) for a term of up to 3 years.

R2021F6 A29H » ADFE (EAERA) BERAR
17 (EBHEA) R —£55$%4£600,000,000%
T (SEEMEZEL) ZHERETHESRE ([F
TERE]) 2EFREG ([EL0OBERZR]) - B+
SREBRAEELHBERSZRZAMBIF -

R2021F8 A19H » AR (EAERA) BERAR
17 (fEBHEA) BiE—%&55$%41,000,000,000
BT THERBE ([ENERE]) ZEHTEHMY
([ENOBERE]) - BN\EREBREBFEND
BE M B eI 36 A -

R2021F8A30H » A (EAEFA) EHHE
7 (EBHEA) BT —£5&5$%4£600,000,000%
TZEHETBME ([BNERE]) 2EREH ([
NOBERZ]) - ENEREBRABFENOBER
FETENRENE QRETI6EA ©

R2021411 B238 » ARE (EAEHA) B—IRTT
(EBIFIA) i —Z#&=£8/5900,000,000%7T.2
THENRE ([F+2/E]) FTunihE (1851
PEvEmE]) o £+£5%,2600,000,0007%8 72 5
PRA361H A kE+ERE2300,000,0005 7T 2 HR
B12ER - HESET A RSB MRET

R2021F12 98 - AAR (fEAERA) EimiR
17 (fEBHEA) BiE—%&5=5$%/41,000,000,000
BT THEFRE ([E+—28%]) 2EREMH
([E+—m@ERZE]) - E+-SREEREEE
TR EHHER DL 36EA -

R2022F6 148 « AR (EAEHRA) BE
FRIT (EAMFA) R —Z2RBER=-FL8AR
5,000,000,0008 T2 THEHAE ([E+ £/
EDilumiEma ([BSH-0Oména] 85—
PRERE F-ORERE EZNRERS 5

mipEEHZ - FANBERS  FADRERS
FEOBERZ  F/\DRERZ  FAORER

#FTHREBERFE T —OREGARER[Z
SREHE]) °



Under each of the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued
share capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of
the Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’s Government of the People’s Republic of China and at any time after
the happening of an event of default, all amounts due under the facilities may
become immediately due and payable.

Permitted Indemnity

The articles of association of the Company provides that each Director, Secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance) which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public
Accountants and Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

LU Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance.
The board of Directors (the “Board”) strongly believes that good corporate
governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year 2022.

Corporate Culture and Strategy

The Company adheres to the core values of “Sunshine and Honesty, Innovation
and Excellence, Diligence and Commitment, Harmony and Sharing” and acting in
a legal, ethical and responsible manner at all levels, and upholds the corporate
vision of “Innovation-Builder of the City, Operator of People’s Well-being” to
continuously improve corporate governance, strengthen risk controls, promote
a culture of integrity, and firmly establish the fundamentals of high-quality
sustainable development. The Board’s oversight of corporate culture covers
a range of long-term measures and approaches, including prudent financial
reporting, legal and regulatory compliance (including compliance with the code of
conduct and group policies), as well as employee engagement, employee safety
and well-being.

The primary objective of the Company is to bring overall stable returns to
shareholders and create value growth. To this end, the Group is committed
to the long-term sustainable development of its business to achieve recurring
sustainable profitability, focusing on revenue growth, disciplined cost
management and sound financial planning, as well as the integration of social
responsibility and sustainability into its operations. A discussion and analysis
of the Group’s annual performance is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
the Management Discussion and Analysis in this report, and information on the
Group’s sustainability initiatives and key relationships with its stakeholders is set
out in the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group.

The Board considers the corporate culture of the Company is consistent with the
objectives, values and strategies of the Group.
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The Board

Role and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for shaping and
overseeing the corporate culture, formulating overall strategies and policies of
the Company, supervising and evaluating business and financial performance of
the Company, determining appropriate corporate governance practices applicable
to the Company’s circumstances and ensuring operational efficiency and
effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive corporate governance framework
with appropriate risk control measures and aiming to enhance long-term
shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
details of the responsibilities, membership and activities during the year of
each of them are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.
These Board committees assist the Board to discharge its duties while the
responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business management are
delegated to the Executive Directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in corporate structure, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, selection of Directors,
changes to remuneration policy for Directors and senior management, terms of
reference of Board committees, as well as major corporate policies.

The Company has mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and
inputs from Directors are conveyed to the Board. In this regard, as part of the
established governance framework, the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors is reviewed by the Board regularly. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the management to make enquiries and
obtain information on the Group’s affairs. And, to facilitate effective and active
participation by the Directors, in particular the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Directors are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Group, including reports on
significant corporate matters, monthly management updates which contain
periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook and business related
matters of the Group. External independent professional advice is also available
to all Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) whenever they
deemed necessary. These mechanisms are kept under regular review to ensure
their effectiveness.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its Directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution
of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Throughout the year, the number of Independent Non-
executive Directors on the Board meets the one-third requirement under the
Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) between members of the Board. Biographical particulars of
the Directors are set out on pages 41 to 48 of this report.

Each Director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a term
of three years. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
One third of the Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general
meeting and eligible for re-election by shareholders. Also, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company
and be eligible for re-election by shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed
for the re-election of each Director.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director a
confirmation of his independence in accordance with the criterion set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers them to be independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Mr. LI Wai Keung, Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
(who retired on 31 December 2022) have served the Board for more than nine
years. The Board considers that they have continued to exercise independent
judgment on the matters of the Group and there is no evidence that length of
tenure is having an adverse impact on their independence. The Board therefore
considers that they remain independent notwithstanding the length of their
tenure.
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Chairman and President

The position of Chairman of the Board is held by Dr. LU Hua, and the position
of President of the Company is held by Mr. WANG Yuwen. The Chairman is
responsible for leading the Board to formulate Group-wide strategies and policies,
good corporate governance practices and procedures together with the directors,
determine the strategic directions, business plans and investment proposals of
the Company, assess its performance and supervise the business affairs of the
management in ensuring the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President
is responsible for overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the
implementation of plans efficiently.

Diversity

The Board recognizes the benefits of a diverse Board with members possessing
a balance of skills, experience and expertise which complement to the business
success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board, namely through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis having due regard
to the overall effective functioning of the Board as a whole. The Nomination
Committee will review at least annually the appropriateness of the structure,
size and composition of the Board and will take into account of, among others,
the Board Diversity Policy when considering proposals for appointment or re-
election of Directors. And, the Board will take into account the recommendations
from the Nomination Committee at its regular review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent EEE€HAIMAZHTEEN =B IR TEEA
Non-executive Directors, a summary of their profile in terms of gender, age, Bk » WERUR - F# - REFERIEMNE /K
length of services and expertise/experience is set out below. The Nomination — BAEHERBEHINNT - ELEEEREEER
Committee and the Board are of the view that Board diversity is achieved. 5 BEREEEREZ L -

No. of Directors
(Full Board of 8)*

EXYE
(ESg288A)"
Gender Male 6
izl S
Female 2
pog i
Age Group Below 50 2
SR 505 AT
50-59 4
50-5975%
60 or above 2
B0FRI A £
Length of Service 5 years or below 5
REFE S5EHAT
6-10 years 1
6-10F
Over 10 years 2
IRESY
Expertise/Experience Other listed board roles 7
LSV g & Hip LT RAREEEKE
Company executive 8
PEITH
Global market experience 2
BHRMIGER
Public administration 5
DHITH
Related industry experience 4
HRTRER
Other industries 4
HiiT%
Professional 4
g%

* multiple professional background and experience may apply to a Director * EFNEEZEAEXESSNER



In terms of gender diversity, female representation on the Board maintained
at 25%, a comparative high level amongst Hong Kong listed companies. And,
female representation of the workforce (including senior management) of the
Group represents approximately 38% which is considered to be at a reasonable
level.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of
the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular Board meetings and
four special Board meetings were held in 2022 to review and approve significant
corporate matters including the Company’s business development, proposals
for final and interim dividends, annual report and half-year report, connected
transactions, share repurchase plan and change of Directors. At least fourteen
days’ notice of a regular Board meeting was given to all Directors who were
provided with an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
The agenda and the accompanying Board papers were sent to Directors at least
three days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft and final versions
of minutes of each Board meeting were circulated to Directors for their comment
and record respectively. In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman of the
Board also held a separate meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the present of other Directors on an annual basis.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee

Meetings and General Meeting

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Board committee

meetings and general meeting in 2022 is set out below:

Board
Meeting

EREME - ERLRTTRIBARGH R

e

N2022%F RESHFETEEH

HNBERAGHLHEIINT

Audit

Committee

Nomination Remuneration

Committee

Committee
Meeting

Mz

=

\
A

XEH
mo
Jis)3
Jis)3

Annual
General
Meeting

KRB

No. of meetings held BINERERH 8 3 2 2 1
Executive Directors HITES
LU Hua (Chairman) BE (LE) 8/8  N/A T 22 N/ATER v/
WANG Yuwen (President) (note 1) TEX(#F) (WF1)  NATER NATER NATER  NATER  NATER
CAI Xun F3e] 7/8  NATER  NATER  NATEA v
XU Enli (note 2) TRBH (ME2) NATER NATER NATER NATER  NATER
SHI Xiaomei Fd2 78 NATER NATER  NATEA v
HUANG Wei (President) (note 3) R (#8#) (M:E3) 03 NANEE NAMER NADER NANER
Non-executive Director FHTES
DONG Fang (note 4) g7 (MiE4) 18 NATEA NATER NATER -
Independent Non-executive Directors BN FEHITES
LI Wai Keung FRR 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2 v
WONG Yau Kar David BERE 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2 v/
GONG Peng (note 5) =5 (FzE5) NVANER  NADER  NAMER  NATER NATER
WU Wai Chung, Michael (note 6) REH (M6) 8/8 313 N/A TiEF 2/2 v/
Notes: 5T -
1. Mr. WANG Yuwen was appointed as an Executive Director on 22 December 2022. 1. %EK&E ER2022F 12 A2 A EZ T ANITE
2. Mr. XU Enli was appointed as an Executive Director on 22 December 2022. 2. g%‘\ A ER2022F12 A22 B EZ T ANITE
3. Mr. HUANG Wei resigned as an Executive Director on 30 March 2022. 3. HEELEER202FIANEAEFTRTES -

B EAEN2022F3 A0 AMITEEATAIE
HITESE » WHN2022F 12 A22 B EIFANTTE
g °

4. Mr. DONG Fang was re-designation from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director 4.
on 30 March 2022, and resigned as a Non-executive Director on 22 December 2022.

5. Prof. GONG Peng was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 31 5. BEEHIER2022F12 A31 BEZ T BB IERTT
December 2022. EEo
6. Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael retired as an Independent Non-executive Director on 31 6.

RIEFSEER2022F12 A3 HIREE L IFAITE
December 2022. Eo



Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the Directors, all
Directors confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Induction and Continuing Professional Development
Each newly appointed Director will be provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
and the Board's operations, corporate governance practices as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

The Company will from time to time provide seminars to the Directors to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company also continuously updates
Directors on any latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with their training records. A
summary of the training records reported by the Directors for year 2022 is set
out below:

Directors

2

LU Hua G
WANG Yuwen* FEX
CAl Xun £
XU Enli* ®EF
SHI Xiaomei kd 2
HUANG Wei** HE™
DONG Fang i)

LI Wai Keung EXEEH
WONG Yau Kar David BRE
GONG Peng™** =l

WU Wai Chung, Michael
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EZGCRMLTRAMET B LMBETAESE
TEFXHOEETA ([RETA]) - FAARF
EZETEFIINTRRED - ERZRERELE
EEHK - 2REFOHER - RSREEFEA—E
BTRETAMENREEE -

ENRENESRRERUVENARBEIIEHN - 1L
EREGADAREFENEE - PEBARFAUR
GG xR RARZRTHRETREENT
i

ARBRIERESBRRMIE - UBRREHAA
BEEEE - ARATHEREERELTRAURLE
tEREERENSMERGN - UHERERLRA
HYRHERERABRODH -

EEAMARBRERENEINCE - EFEHN
2022 F M ISR E AT

Type of training covered*

POBE S AR AL

12,3

N/A i@
12,3

N/A ANiEF
12,3

N/A &R
1,2

1,2

1,2

N/A RNiE R
1,2

* Mr. WANG Yuwen and Mr. XU Enli were appointed as Executive Directors on 22 December
2022

** Mr. HUANG Wei resigned as an Executive Director on 30 March 2022

***  Prof. GONG Peng was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 31
December 2022

* T2 ERBREFSTANR2022F12 A22BESE
FARTES

= REEER202F3A30HEIMITES
= FEEHIRN2022612 A31 B ER T BB IEHTT
5%
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1. Attending briefing/training seminars/conferences relevant to the industry, business and
their duties.

2. Reading industrial and regulatory updates/monthly management reports etc.

The Board is regularly kept up-to-date on key events, the performance, position and
outlook of the Group through the monthly management reports.

3. Site visit

Board Committees

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions. The
respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors. It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung, who has the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under the Listing Rules, and other
members are Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (ceased to
be a member from 31 December 2022) and Prof. GONG Peng (appointed on 31
December 2022).

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor
and monitoring the effectiveness of external audit, supervision of internal audit
and oversight of the integrity of financial information and the financial reporting
system, overseeing internal audit, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*Stock
Exchange”).
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The following is a summary of the major work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year and up to the date of this report:

Financial reporting/internal review
- Review of financial statements, annual report and results announcement for
years 2021 and 2022 and for the six months ended 30 June 2022;

—  Review of report submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit
of financial statements for years 2021 and 2022 respectively and their
independent review of the 2022 half-year financial statements;

—  Review of the observations and recommendations on the financial reporting
and control matters set out in the respective management letter for years
2021 and 2022 submitted by external auditor;

—  Review of the respective representation letter issued by management to
external auditor in connection with their audit of the financial statements for
years 2021 and 2022;

—  Review of audit plan for year 2022.

Risk management, internal control and internal audit

—  Review of the respective evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems for years 2021 and 2022 issued by the risk
management department;

—  Reviewed with the risk management department on the risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness, the overall risk
management, internal control and internal audit work progress and findings,
and the adequacy of resources and staffing for such functions.

External auditor

—  Review of the independence of the external auditor, approval of the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor and making
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors;

—  Approval of the policy on engaging the external auditor to supply non-audit
services.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, all being Independent
Non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other
members are Mr. LI Wai Keung, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (ceased to be
a member on 31 December 2022) and Prof. GONG Peng (appointed on 31
December 2022).

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of Non-executive
Directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting
such remuneration, reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share option
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The full terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

The Group's Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the remuneration level is
appropriate and align with the Company’s goals, objectives and performance,
so as to facilitate the recruitment and retention of outstanding directors, senior
management and employees and to provide them with adequate incentive
for achieving business targets. When determining Directors’ and employees’
remuneration, factors including salary levels in the market as a whole and in
the real estate industry; market benchmarks for relevant positions and work
areas; the performance of the Group and the individual etc. shall be considered.
Bonuses and other incentives including share options will also be provided to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group. And,
remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure internal equity
and competitiveness.

No Director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the factors set out in the Group’s Remuneration Policy.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the Director fees of
Non-executive Directors and the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management and make recommendation to the Board regarding the remuneration
of Mr. DONG Fang, who was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-
executive Director, and Mr. WANG Yuwen, Mr. XU Enli and Prof. GONG Peng,
who were appointed Directors, during the year. The Remuneration Committee
also reviewed the overall remuneration structure of the Group and considered the
forms and adequacy of the various performance-based incentive arrangements
including share options.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration Bands

FMEE
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HE2022F12A31HILFE - REMEEZH NS
REBABZHEMWENMT

Number of
Individuals

N

HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0007% 7% 3,000,0007%8 7T 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001#7C% 4,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 4,000,001 7T%5,500,000/8 7T 1

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 10(b) and 10(c) to the financial statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two are
Independent Non-executive Directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, identifying and evaluating individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members as required and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors. The full terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and opined that it has the skills, experience and
diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and recommended to the
Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2022 and the appointment of Mr.
WANG Yuwen and Mr. XU Enli as Executive Directors, and the appointment of
Prof. GONG Peng as an Independent Non-executive Director having due regard to
the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee also
assessed the independency of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

The Board Nomination Policy sets out the principles which guide the Nomination
Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board
for appointment or (i) the shareholders of the Company for election, as a
Director with a view to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee shall propose a candidate for nomination
or a Director for re-election based on merit and other considerations including
the Board Diversity Policy, the expected contribution the candidate would add to
Board and whether the candidate is able to commit and devote sufficient time
and attention to the Company’s affairs etc. The Nomination Committee may take
such measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its identification
and evaluation of a candidate and make recommendation to the Board for the
Board’s consideration.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the following
corporate governance duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e o review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors;

e o review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control J i L L g S
Responsibility " E
The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems SEHARREERAREZZGEBE BEAR

and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. Management is responsible for Tux—r%‘lrﬁ’]ﬁxﬁ( o mMEEBRAE&RTERITA
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage the risks to the ~ EFEEIRHIEUSABRENE BN ABH AR - &
Company to the maximum extent, in order to identify and manage these risks so i'JE%'J@EﬁD%‘IEL“HI‘ T AER - BIE - &
as to understand, reduce, mitigate, divert or avoid these risks. The Board hereby CERYRBELRR §$@éﬁﬁtfﬂiéiig
explains that the systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk ~ $i 5 EEEMIEEBR RELER LK B ENER

of failure to meet business objectives, and only to provide reasonable, but not P\ﬁEEﬁT\@EEKS’U%ﬂ%ME&E%’Eﬁé@ﬁﬁ#%@

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. HHIRE ©
Risk Management Structure Ja o A B A

Board Oversight

Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board t ﬁf% BITENERE

e Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk management framework is o EE%’D\ ARV RER—EGENE B E
established and maintained by the Company. REELEE -

e Oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of . E'%E@FEH BREERENR « TR
the risk management framework. ERAHEMIIE ©

e Oversee management in their risk mitigation efforts. . BEEREARRAE S ENIE -

Risk Management, Reporting and Communication EREE ERRER

Risk Management Department B EHE

e  Being the specialized risk management department, is responsible for o  ARERK ”:Eiﬁﬂi*BF'El BEARZHEARRE
the establishment and operation of the comprehensive risk management B R f’FE’Jﬂ‘&;If’F BE - BRE
system of the Company; guide and supervise the overall risk HEHZHBFIREMBEERAREEZARKE E
management of other departments and the respective enterprises which TiEo
they belong to.

e Risk management: Regularly conduct systematic risk evaluation and o [EREE : THETFRRERFRG  HEX
carry out risk audit to major businesses in advance. EBETZARRERZ

e Internal control: inspect, evaluate and optimize the implementation of o EpEEA $j§ FEMECAEE R
internal control system, to avoid execution risks. R - RBHITEHER ©

e Internal audit: conduct multi-level audit, implement auditing issues o ANEES : HEZERNEBALE - FEE
rectification work, prevent operational risks. SrEEEN - PEEERR o

e  Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management s BRELEFRI —AEREBEERLONK
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such M UERERLZECENESSIEL AHME
confirmation to the Board through the Audit Committee. o

e  Optimize dynamic monitoring and early warning of risks to facilitate o ZEHEERENEEE - A T’&%EELW%
inspection and dynamic monitoring of potential risk hazards on a %Wﬁ%ﬂiﬁ%%/ﬁ‘l TR CEEERRRE
monthly basis. The “Quarterly Significant Risks Tracking and Monitoring WERR)  BYRZARAR Bﬁ%@ﬂzﬁ#%
List” was also completed in an effort to establish, and effectively #l - WEABCEEHIT °

implement, a sound risk prevention and resolution mechanism for the
Company.
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Performing Daily Risk and Monitoring Responsibility BTRAERBREZER

Functional Departments, Risk Management Departments of BReEsrT - B ZERE

Subsidiaries and Individuals

e Responsible for carrying out risk management procedures and internal e BERARBRENNEREERFRAIE
control measures in their daily operations. P o

e Regularly review the risk profile and report to the risk management o THERABKREGEEALERBED
department and management on the risks within their respective ERnRERREREE R EREETER -

operating and functional areas.

Risk Management Process R B AR

The Company adopts an integrated “bottom-up’ and “top-down” risk review  ARFR[ETH L OARES [HLEH ] HEE
process, requiring the heads of functional departments and business units of the — RE&#IZF - ERA BN REXBHTES
Company to participate in identifying operational risks and incorporate them into 4 p|Z @R - MARBER AR RRS - B
various business and decision-making processes, including strategy formulation, REEHITE - £BEE - £%588 - B20k - BE
business development, business planning, capital allocation, investment  R7E - APELEFAELES - UER

decisions, internal controls and daily operations, to enable

(1) comprehensive identification and prioritization of all significant risks within (1) 2 HHBIRATABHENE AR - TETE
the Company; RHER

(2)  reporting of significant risks to the appropriate management level; (2 BEARRLBZHEENERERA

(3) the management to effectively communicate about the risks. () RERENRMETAEWER -
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Bottom-up Process BTmLENER

e  Business units and functional departments of the Company conduct risk o  EEHMMARBASHYBREEEANA
identification and evaluation of specific businesses within the scope of ﬁ‘@%ﬁ%iﬁﬂﬂﬁ o AN hﬁﬂ =00
responsibility, propose and implement risk management solutions and REEFBAFR  YFEARAD brER

report annually to the risk management department of the Company the
significant risks identified during the risk management process.

All departments of the Company are responsible for sorting out their
own business processes, collecting and collating internal and external
risk initial information within their scope of functions extensively and
continuously. The risk management department regularly screens,
refines, compares, classifies and combines the initial risk information
collected by each department as necessary and draws the risk
coordinates map based on the risk evaluation results of each department
to initially determine the management priorities of various risks of the
Company, formulate risk management strategies, and propose and
implement risk management solutions.

The Risk Management Department of the Company, through collection,
screening and sequencing and interview procedures, compiles the
annual comprehensive risk management work report and the “Evaluation
Report on Internal Control and Risk Management Systems”.

%[ﬁ&ﬂﬂa@@ﬁ¢%ﬂmﬁﬁﬂ@°
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EIEGRER(ABERRERER R
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e The Risk Management Department of the Company reports their works e NAEREERDEFAETEZEESREET
to the Audit Committee annually and submits “Evaluation Report on f’E TiRECABERREREE RHTMH
mEIRERZEeREEEEH -

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems” to the Audit Committee
and the Board for their review.

1
‘

Top-down Process

The Audit Committee inspects and reviews the new risks or significant
strategic risks that may have a significant long-term impact on the
Company, and reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company on an annual basis.

In addition to the risk evaluation function, the management from the
functional departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating the
financial and other risks in different areas of the Company from the
aspects such as investment auditing and strategic planning, financial
management and legal compliance respectively, and forms a normalized
mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly conduct systematic significant
risk evaluation, so as to achieve dynamic management of significant
risks.

Formed a normalized mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly carry
out systematic significant risk evaluation, identify, evaluate and analyze
all kinds of existing or potential risks in current business development,
and timely track and monitor the moving trend of significant risks,
control the progress and effectiveness, so as to achieve dynamic
management of significant risks.

For major businesses such as land bidding, equity acquisition, joint
venture cooperation etc., a comprehensive risk assessment and audit
must be conducted in advance to achieve the operating mechanism
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where audit opinions without prior risk evaluation may not be submitted FeERZMNETEE - EXXEERBREET
for approval so that significant business risks are effectively controlled. BROES
e Annual review is performed to strengthen the institutionalization and . tiiﬁﬂ A MmEAETENIEL - 2

standardization of internal audit work.
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Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is based on the principles under the
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission).
The risk management department of the Company conducts an annual
assessment and review of the internal control and risk management systems.
The review covers five aspects including control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring measures and information and communication, in
order to assess whether the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company is sound, appropriate, effective and sufficient. The risk management
department annually prepares an evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems of the Company.

Principal Policies and Measures of Internal Control

Control Environment

A B

NEIMAEEZ R ZBECOSO (the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) A T RBIATET - RAIERERE
FEHNNERREREEZNETRENHER
A BEREEERE - BRETE - BEEED &
EREERESEERASIEAE - LILTHERANES
ERkERERRGEAEE ZE  BURESH -
RREEHRGEEFKARASELEREARERZGR
BREEE

The Company has established a code of discipline of corporate
governance policy, human resource management policy, regulatory
business operation and governance, as well as regular review and
refresher training on key ethical practices.

The Company has compiled a compilation of human resource system,
and through implementation of this system, the human resource
concepts, policies, systems are unified and standardized, and the
policies are more transparent. Each employee is subject to an
accountability system for internal control responsibilities.

The Company has, based on the need of management, newly added
or amended a number of management measures, including the
‘Management Measures for Investment”, the “Management Measures
for Tendering and Procurement’, the “Management Measures for
Changes in Construction Projects”, the “Management Measures for
Loan Guarantees” and the “Guidelines for Environmental Protection”,
in an effort to improve and optimize a series of systems in respect of
“funding, investment and financing, construction project management,
procurement business and environmental protection”, as well as
to strengthen its business management and further facilitate its
standardized development.

The Company has amended the ‘Management Measures for Internal
Control” to clarify the principles and specific requirements for the
commencement of internal control self-evaluation and internal control
audit work of the Company and its subsidiaries and established the
“1+N” internal control system led by the construction and supervision
system of the internal control system and supported by various specific
operation regulations.
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Risk Assessment

The risk management functional department identifies and assesses the
systemic risks faced by the Company through regular risk management;
controls the risk position of subsidiaries as well as identifies and
assesses changes that may have a significant impact on the internal
control system through periodic risk management reporting systems of
the subsidiaries and risk assessment and monitoring of major projects
and businesses.

The relevant functional departments of the Company are responsible for
identifying and assessing financial and other risks in different areas of
the Company from the aspects such as strategy planning and investment
auditing, financial management, capital operation and legal compliance.

Compile a comprehensive risk management report and submit it to the
Audit Committee for consideration and timely take corresponding risk
management measures.

Control Activities

Ensure that policies are implemented effectively through the
development of well-defined policies and procedures.

Key control systems and processes, including budget and cost control,
submitting management report, corporate policies and corporate daily
activities, for approval, review and division of duties through financial
reporting systems and processes. The internal control system of the
Company clearly defines the responsibilities and powers of each
unit. The Company has established policies and procedures for major
business functions and business units.

The Company established the “Administrative Rules on Supervision and
Management of Audit Rectification”, which included the completion
of audit rectification into annual appraisal indicators for related
subsidiaries, and complete a closed-loop management accountability
mechanism for auditing rectification supervision.

Through the “Request System on Key Issues’, the Company has
established strict decision-making mechanism for major businesses
and issues, such as major investments, appointments and removal of
key personnel and large-scale capital operations to ensure that the
Company’s major decision-making arrangements are in place.

Environment, social and governance risk is one of the major risk
categories monitored by the comprehensive risk management system
of the Company, and all the major ESG risk issues identified, such as
bribery and corruption, business ethics, product quality and safety,
occupational health and safety, and climate change, etc., have been
included in the periodic internal risk evaluation and control procedures.
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Monitoring Measures

£ gtk 2
BTG

Continuously check compliance and conduct risk management and
internal control reviews.

The secretariat of the Board and relevant functional departments
are responsible for the overall assessment and monitoring for the
established procedures to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
to monitor the compliance with applicable laws and other key provisions.

The internal audit is performed by the Risk Management Department
of the Company, which is responsible for independent auditing of risk
management and internal control.

The Company developed the model clauses of contracts through the
‘Management Measures for Contracts” to finalize an integrated system
combining corporate decisions and legal risk prevention and control and
highlight the function of legal risk control.

The Company strictly follows the related published systems, such as the
‘Management Measures for Real Estate Investment” and the “Request
System on Key Issues”, for investments in real estate projects, as well
as implements the approval procedures required for project investments.

The Company implements business integrity risk prevention and control
over key areas, key processes and key posts. It oversees the entire
purchase bidding procedures for significant projects of the Company
and its subsidiaries and regulates the standard operation of evaluation
process to promote the company-wide application of the Sunshine
Procurement Platform and realize full coverage of sunshine transaction,
online information transparency and full-chain big data monitoring.

Information and Communication
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Implement, maintain and continuously develop business and information
management systems to support the business and operations of the
Company, including financial, information disclosure and collaborative
oversight.

Disseminate corporate information in a timely manner through the
intranet of the Company, collaborative office systems and e-mail system
of the Company.

Establish and implement the Company’s website and shareholder
communication policies to ensure that shareholders receive
comprehensive, clear, transparent and timely information about the
Company.

Establish a unified stock property management information system to
make the stock asset management more transparent and instant.

The Company constructed the cloud platform to ensure data security
and realize the dynamic extension of the computing resources platform
in line with business demand.
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Internal Auditing 76 2 T

The Risk Management Department is responsible for the internal audit of the  EBRERIFHAEENAIABE] - EAERIN(E
Company. It reviews the risks involved in daily operations of the Company EEKREEFM) R ABHF TEERETHE) F
and its subsidiaries by using the audit plans and procedures set out in the  JBHIFIBANEZAEIRER - Bl Dr LHEMEN
“Comprehensive Risk Management Manual’ and the ‘Interim Measures for ~HEELEENER - THANEEE MEE%ET
Internal Audit Management’ it established, and conducts regular post-evaluation — {Bi& 3 AR ZEG EIBERHIR A

reviews on internal audit items to ensure the effectiveness of risk management

framework.

Each year, the Risk Management Department determines the internal audit work ~ EMEBEFFFEERBATNEKRIE - BELLEERE
priorities and formulates annual internal audit plans according to the Company's ZEEM AN FEEIELH - BENBEHTIEE

strategic deployment, business management needs and annual work schedule. & BIEFEAISEE o

The annual internal audit plan shall include the following basic elements: FENDBBHTEEREUTELRNS ¢

1) Annual work objectives of internal audit; 1) WPBEFFEIEBRE

2)  The specific audit items to be implemented and their sequence; 2 FERTWABFIBEERALEIES
3)  The audit resources allocated to each audit item. 3 SBEMEEMHIENENER -

According to the “Interim Measures for Internal Audit Management’, matters that XM NEE TIEBBRETHNE) - WEETEIH

must be audited shall include the following: EREBETIIEE
Type of Auait
Eirar
Economic Responsibility Audit During the three-year tenure of the corporate management team, at least one internal
economic responsibility audit shall be performed
RBEEEER CEELMFIFERSR - FEETEVIRENLER TR

The departure of a leader of enterprise requires an economic responsibility audit
CEEEART  FRETKBEEESE

ltem Audit For significant investment projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
EEE EAREBE - B3IFANREETENIREH

For on-going operating projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
SECEEE - G3FANBRETED RS

Post-Evaluation Audit After an investment project is completed, a comprehensive post-evaluation audit of its
operation and economic benefits is required

&HEEST RBBEE2HEKE - BEHEBFENEENSSET2ANRFERT
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In addition to the above, the Risk Management Department will also conduct
specialized internal audit on the operational priorities of each functional
departments and subsidiaries according to the actual operational and
management situation, the annual work priorities of the Company, as well as the
risks faced by the Company as assessed at the beginning of each year. The Risk
Management Department conducts internal audit supervision on the following
matters of the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of the Company:

e The implementation of the relevant financial laws, regulations, rules and
regimes by the state, government and superior authorities;

° The implementation of the operating guidelines, policies, rules and
regulations formulated by the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of
the Company;

o The soundness, rationality, effectiveness and implementation of internal
control systems and regimes;

o Financial revenue and expenditure, asset quality, operating performance
and other related economic activities;

o The establishment and implementation of various operating plans and
planned budgets;

o Important economic contracts, investment projects, mortgages loans or
provision of guarantees, infrastructure projects, etc.

Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control and
Main Procedures to Address the Lack of Internal Control

Based on the above risk management and internal control systems, the Risk
Management Department of the Company conducts regular review and evaluation
in accordance with three aspects of risk management, internal control and
internal audit, to identify the deficiencies of internal control and improve the
system process.

The Risk Management Department establishes a work plan for the coming year in
the later part of every year, which sets out the objectives and scope of the audit.
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Internal audits include the testing of the Company’s financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Risk Management Department engages an
external accounting firm to issue an annual internal audit report, and the Risk
Management Department will, towards the deficiencies in monitoring raised by
the accounting firm, make rectification on the details of the audit disclosed by
the internal audit report and on the audit results of the department concerned.

In response to the identified internal control deficiencies, the Risk Management
Department will promptly communicate the issues with the relevant functional
departments or subsidiaries, put forward measures of rectification and establish
corresponding policies after discussion with the management, and issue a
rectification notice to the functional departments or subsidiaries to urge them to
complete the rectification within the prescribed time.

The implementation of the rectification of various enterprises in the year
was good, and passed the second round of internal control conducted by the
accounting firm.

In the internal control work carried out during the year, the Risk Management
Department did not find any significant deficiencies. According to the relevant
audit results and management responses, the management believes that the
existing internal control system is still valid as a whole.

Review on Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control in
2022

The Risk Management Department has predicted and analyzed the possible risks
the Company's operations and management may face in 2022. After evaluation,
the 4 major risks faced by the Company in 2022 included macroeconomic risks
(impact of risks arising from the pandemic on our operating results), policy risks
(risks relating to the marketing and sales of real estate projects), management
risks of construction projects (risks of breach of contracts as a result of delay
in commencement or completion of construction) and risks of litigation and
arbitration (risks relating to material litigations and arbitrations). At the same
time, during the year, it continued to strengthen pre-supervision of key issues,
carried out annual in-depth special audits on significant risks, continued to track
and monitor the major risks, and regularly evaluated financial risk early warning
indicators such as solvency, asset operation capability, profitability and capital
operation capability to timely monitor changes in corporate financial risks.
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During the year, the Risk Management Department has conducted internal audit
and examination on rectification of audit opinions for its subsidiaries:

Conducted special audit on debts. In order to have a comprehensive
understanding on the Group’s liabilities, analyze the composition of debts,
regulate the borrowing as well as prevent and control debt risks, the
Risk Management Department organized and conducted special audit on
debts by comprehensively reviewing the debt size and asset-liability ratio
of enterprises of all levels as of 30 June 2022 and examining the debt
management and risk prevention and control measures of enterprises. The
audit results showed that the Group maintained a reasonable debt structure
and sufficient banking facilities with good credit rating. It continued to
broaden financing channels to secure the required funds and improved
the asset utilization efficiency through centralized fund management to
further reduce the cost of capital. It also standardized the loan approval
and bidding process. The Group’s asset-liability ratio and net gearing ratio
remained at a relatively low level in the industry with strong long-term
and short-term solvency and risk control capability. Nonetheless, issues
such as unsatisfactory profitability, asset impairment, higher gearing ratio
and flaws in implementation of internal control system in signing several
loan contracts were identified in several subsidiaries. Ten categories of
recommendations regarding the prevention and control of debt risks were
made.

Conducted an evaluation of 2021 internal control and risk
management systems of the Company. In accordance with the CG Code
and the five-factor criteria for improving internal controls set out in the
“Internal Controls and Risk Management-A Basic Framework” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Risk Management
Department conducted a careful review and evaluation of the annual
internal control and risk management system of Shenzhen Investment
Limited, completed the “Evaluation Report of Shenzhen Investment Limited
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2021" on
time as required and submitted it to the Audit Committee and the Board
of the Company for review and approval. After comprehensive evaluation
of the five components of the internal control system, the existing internal
control and risk management system of the Company was found to be
sound and effective.
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Conducted post-evaluation of 2022 investment projects of the
Company. In order to further enhance the management of investment
projects and prevent investment risks, the Risk Management Department
selected eight real estate development projects with sales as the main
focus for review and evaluation. The department studied the discrepancies
between the actual state and the feasibility study report of the projects
and the reasons thereof, analyzed the present situation and benefits of
the project operations and disclosed the problems and risks associated
with the projects at different stages, from project establishment, feasibility
study, construction to sales and operation. The “Annual Work Report
on Post-evaluation of Investment” and eight “Post-evaluation Reports of
Investment Projects” were fully completed. The department also conducted
a comprehensive evaluation, which covered site selection, decision-
making and procedures, project goals and target market, schedule control,
investment control, project marketing, economic benefits and other aspects
of the projects. Among the eight projects, six were evaluated as successful
and two were evaluated as largely successful.

Conducted economic responsibility audit during the term of office.
According to its arrangement, during the year, the Company carried out
an economic responsibility audit during the term of office on the legal
representatives of four subsidiaries, namely Intelligent Park, Nongke,
Taifu Logistics and Shum Yip Property. The audit works focused on the
truthfulness, validity and efficiency of the assets, liabilities, equity and
profits and losses, major operational decisions and operating activities,
the establishment and implementation of internal control and risk
management systems, as well as the compliance with relevant national
laws and regulations of the enterprises during the term of office of the legal
representatives. The audit also identified problems in various aspects of
the enterprises, such as operation management, significant investment and
internal control management, so as to objectively evaluate the economic
responsibility of the legal representatives and check the implementation of
the rectification of the problems identified in the audit.

Conducted annual internal control audit. The Company completed an
audit of its internal control in 2021, with a focus on 7 subsidiaries of the
Company. Based on this, PwC completed the “2021 Internal Control Audit
Report” with its unqualified opinion in April 2022 as scheduled. As shown in
the report, the Company has maintained effective internal control related to
financial reporting in accordance with “Basic Norms for Enterprise Internal
Control” and the relevant requirements in all material aspects during the
reporting period.
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During the year, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system of the Company for
the year 2022, covering financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as
the progress of overall risk management and internal control. The annual review
has also taken into account the adequacy of the resources, qualification and
experience of staff in accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
of the Company; and the adequacy of the training courses received by the staff
and related budgets.

The Audit Committee and the Board have also reviewed the “Evaluation Report
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2022 issued by
the risk management department. The Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient as a whole.

Procedures for Handling Inside Information and Internal
Control Measures

The Company requires any department or individual to keep any information
which may constitute inside information in strict confidentiality and not to leak
or report the contents involving inside information without the prior approval of
the Board. The Board makes timely disclosure decision on the inside information
(if necessary), and disclosure of the inside information is in charge by the Board
Office. In this connection, the management and other relevant employees who
are privy to unpublished inside information are reminded of their responsibilities
to comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a Whistleblowing Policy which provides employees of the
Group and those who deal with the Group with reporting channels and guidance
to raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties related to the Group, a copy of which is available on the
Company's website. The Audit Committee had not received any whistleblowing
enquiry or complaint in 2022.

Company Secretary

The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has confirmed
his compliance with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is Ms. Edith Wong, our
General Counsel.
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Constitutional Documents
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year.

Director’'s Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the Group’s affairs, its
results and cash flows in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report in this report.

Dividend Policy

It is the Company's long term policy to provide stable ordinary dividends that are
linked to the underlying earnings performances of the business of the Group.
The Company aims to ensure that whilst allowing the shareholders to participate
in the Company’s earnings, adequate balance for future business expansion is
retained.

Generally, the Company pays dividends twice a year (annual interim dividend and
final dividend) regularly. The overall dividend plan including the amount and form
of any dividend is to be proposed/determined by the Board. The Board may also
declare/propose the payment of special dividends when there is special income
or circumstances and at any time as it deems appropriate.

In determining/recommending any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account:

° the actual and expected financial performance of Group;

° the cash-flow position, the expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

e the general economic conditions, business cycle and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Group;

e  the contractual restrictions imposed on the payment of dividends (if any);
and

° any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.
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Independent Auditor

KPMG was engaged as the Company’s external auditor since 2016 and retired
at the close of annual general meeting held on 1 June 2021 ("2021 AGM’) as
the engagement period has reached the prescribed number of years according to
the relevant regulations issued by the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government
State-owned Assets Supervisor and Administration Commission regarding the
audit work on financial statements of state-owned enterprises in Shenzhen, the
PRC. PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed as the Company’s external
auditor in place of KPMG with effect from the close of the 2021 AGM. During
the year, the services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and the fees for such
services were as follows:

Audit fees:
Financial statements audit fees: HK$4,655,000 (2021: HK$4,818,000)

Other service fees:
Interim review and other services: HK$2,110,000 (2021: HK$1,325,000)

Communication with Shareholders

The Board has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy in March 2022,
setting out the framework that the Company has put in place to promote effective
communication with shareholders. This Policy forms the basis for extensive and
ongoing engagement with our shareholders and the investment community via
multiple channels, including through the publication of notices, announcements,
circulars, interim and final and reports on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange’s website, making available a wide range of information on the
Company's website, briefings and meetings with investment community and
face-to-face communication between the Board and the shareholders at the
Company’s general meeting, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided
with timely information about the Company and encouraging them to engage
actively in communication with the Company and to exercise their rights as
shareholders in an informed manner. The shareholders are also provided with
contact details of the Company to enable them to make enquiries and comments
on the affairs of the Company at any time.

The Board has conducted a review on the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders Communication Policy. Having considered the multiple
channels available and the investor-relations-related engagement in place, the
Board is satisfied that the Shareholders Communication Policy has been properly
implemented during the year and is effective.
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Investors Relations

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
persons with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet
with investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress and
strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-financial
information that is relevant and material, for instance, we publish unaudited
contracted sales performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond
promptly to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
And, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selected parties.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “CQ"), the
Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings (‘AGM”) and direct
enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

—  Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the
CO.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention
to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the
directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become
subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.
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—  Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution
if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic
form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director can be found on “Corporate Information” under the section headed
“Investor Relations” of the Company’s website.

—  RBOREEREG LIREER
ARBREAFAG LIEEREE - REBKBARE
PIZE6151EE61616 2 ERNIER ©

RAEBIEO15IHFMT - HARBREATRR ()16
PRAREXZRATNARRRRBEFASL -
PARFRROBRNATRERD25%HBE : %
b)ZPE0RBREXERMATHRRBFAE Lt
FRBRARNBR - BHERBOBAOELR - BIA
BHBA -

BRAZ R ()T UNAF R (BBERXEARD R ZMH
R It ARBNRAD BRI EEEIRT RSN
¥dLeE  THBPEZSW) KETHR (BBE
E 1 852-2723-2263) FEANARZRAIMEW © (b)
BEIEFEHBEMETNRER « (ALHER
HZEFMARE + R(ABETEBR()ZBKFET
HRBE RS EITAMGEED « k(i) (nEEg) %
HZASBREMBERAITEIEART - DAEHIE616
ERE - BELARGHEISERRRERERER
BHASL - AE@EBEASBENAKEAR « R(bO)EE
HAEBENARKERLASBER - TAENY
EATERT  BEREEEZIERBENHXA - &
RERERENEBRBFASBENRRE -

ERRRRLZEZABNEFFBER AR AR
[REERMEIBTH[RAER] 4



Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Board
Office at the below contact details:

Address:  8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
No. 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@shumyip.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2723 8113
Fax: (852) 2723 2263

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants, the
Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at the
below contact details:

Address:  17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 113 to
252, comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Valuation of investment properties

° Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

PSR T E (A1)

Key Audit Matter
HRETSE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMAE

Refer to note 2.8 investment properties, note 4(b) fair value of
investment properties and note 16 investment properties to the
consolidated financial statements.
F2HEEHBRANT28RENME - ME4OREDELZAR
BRMFT168REME -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held investment properties
amounted to HK$35,127 million, which accounted for
approximately 21% of the Group's total assets. A decrease in fair
value of investment properties of HK$352 million was recognised
as in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended, which accounted for 5% of the Group’s profit before income
tax.
M2022F12A318 - BESEREREME3S127TEEET -
fh BEBEBEEN21% BREVMEALERII2EEETLE
RBERFENGEBSRER - EEERMEHAEN A
5% o

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value.
Management engaged an independent external valuer to assist
them in measuring the fair value of investment properties.
The determination of the fair value for investment properties
involved critical accounting judgements in selection of valuation
methodology and critical accounting estimates on certain key
assumptions including prevailing market rents, capitalisation rates
and vacancy rates.
EEEMRBYENAREHE - EREZERIMPHER G
STEREMENAE - EEREVELABIRNERMERER
{EH R E s HIE R E TRRRRIMELAR G - AERT
msEe  BRMEERFEX -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMERRRENEE

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter: B )
REEZBREFEE - ZM9TT TIERER

()  Understood, evaluated and validated the management’s
internal controls over the process to determine the fair
value of investment properties and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
including complexity and subjectivity;

i) TH HMErREERERNETREMEALENRIETE
HEAEES - WERE R T REMNEERAMWES
B EZ (BEERENEEMN) KR EERERE L
HEA R

(i) Evaluated the outcome of prior year assessments of the
valuation of investment properties to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process;

(i) FMEEREDEGEUANFENTEER - UTEERER
AHBRRE AL

(i)  Assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the
gxternatvaluer and understood the scope of their work;

(i) FFMEINDEERMMNER - e NREEN - Y THRETIES
;

(iv) Involved our internal valuation specialists in examining the
valuation reports prepared by the external valuer, including
assessing the valuation methodology used by the external
valuer based on our knowledge and experience for similar
types of properties;

(v) BMNABEEER2EFTSINBEEMERROGERS -
DREERBIMERUNERRNTRREER - SHEIMNIGE
AMERRMEERE
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

B R E (A1)

Key Audit Matter
HREETEE

Valuation of investment properties (continued)
REMEME (H)

We focused on auditing the valuation of investment properties
because the total balance of investment properties is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and the valuation of the
investment properties is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, as the inherent risk in relation to the valuation
is considered relatively higher due to the subjectivity of key
assumptions used in the valuation and significant judgements
involved in selecting the valuation methodology.

B THRENEMEETET  RERARENENAREHER
BUBBREAMSEEEX - BRREERMABRBRINFEML LR
BEMERER P REAHE - BEEABNESRBRER /Y
n - MREAVEGEFESERHTETY -

The valuation of investment properties is, therefore, considered as
a key audit matter.

At - REMFEERTIFRREAER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHNET N MEERRETEE

(v)  Checked the key assumptions used in the valuations, on a
sample basis, to supporting evidence including:

V) BERSEETEROERER IREAREEE - 0F

° compared the prevailing market rents, capitalisation
rates and vacancy rates used in the valuations against
the published industry benchmarks and comparable
market transactions;

o BEETERMBAITSES - §$MT&ﬁ“+A
METEREERAELRTHR FETHR

° checked the key terms of rental contracts, operating
expenditures details and rental income schedules, to
agree with the rental rates from existing tenancies used
in the valuations;

e REMERNNTERN  ELEHFBERESKAR
A NEEEREANRARANESERRE -3

° compared the key assumptions used in the valuation
against historical records and evaluated their
reasonableness based on our industry knowledge;

o BAEREANBERERRMEELDEETLR - TRE
BMOTENBTHESEY

(vi)  Assessed the adequacy of disclosures related to the valuation
of investment properties in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

(vi) %Lm%%ﬁiﬂ BTG ERENEGERBNRERS

Based on the above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the valuation of investment
properties were supportable by the available evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

M - RMRRERERRENEMERERN A RERRE
5| T R A R RS R RS -
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Key Audit Matters (continued) P IE ()

Key Audit Matter
HRETSE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

BRETNERBESELCERNEZTERFETNE

Refer to note 2.15 properties under development, note 2.16
completed properties held for sale, note 4(a) estimates for net
realisable value of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, note 23 properties under development
and note 24 completed properties held for sale to the consolidated
financial statements.

FARGEMBERRMF2ABETYE - W2 16HBEFELZ
EEKME M4 BERYERFEFEZEERMENT]
gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ~W%%ﬁ@#%%&%%m%#%ﬁzaﬁﬁ%

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held properties under
development (“PUD") and completed properties held for sale
(“PHS") amounted to HK$71,020 million and HK$11,584 million
respectively, which in total accounted for approximately 51% of the
Group’s total assets. The carrying amounts of PUD and PHS are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (‘“NRV").
R2022F12A310 - EXESRIHAZRESRYZE ([PUD]) &
BEREZEERME ([PHS]) 71,0208 EA T K11,584F 8
B At BEEBEELS1% o PUDRPHSH) BRI E AR A
A ZIRFE ([NRV]) HEIEESR o

Management assessed the NRV based on existing selling and
construction plans, and a forecast of future selling price based on
prevailing market conditions, with reference to the current market
price of properties of comparable type, size and location. The
determination of NRV involved critical accounting estimates on
the selling price, selling expenses estimated based on a certain
percentage of estimated selling price and, for PUD, the costs to
completion.
EREEANRITIAREERAHE RERT 8N RARREEEA -
WRERR - RERAUERENMENSAITETENRY ° NRVE)
EEIRHER  EREFEENETADLHMEHERAR -
ARFPUDM S » e AR ER G 5HhET

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMERRRENEE

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter: B )
REEZBREFEE - ZM9TT TIERER

()  Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
controls over the process to determine the assessment of
NRV and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors including complexity and
subjectivity;

() TEHEEERETNRVILEIEREERNABES - TR
ZRMAFTIEEMNRERAMEFRRE R (BHEEMRY
MEEN) §KFRFEEAFREFDANE SRR

(i) Compared the relevant PUD and PHS balances, on a sample
basis, against the result of management’s NRV assessment
made in the prior year to reconsider, with hindsight, the
accuracy of management’s historical NRV assessment
and reliability and appropriateness of the NRV assessment
methodology;

(i) IRMEEERIAEPUD RPHSHAZEE FF B EETHINRY
AEERETHR - NERENZREREMER LNRVAT
REERIE LA RNRVEHE AN AT SEE REE 1L

(iiiy  Understood, evaluated and validated the management’s
internal controls over the process around the property
development cycle with particular focus on controls over cost
budgeting;

(i) THE  HERREEREUNEREBREMARENNITE
- LHRHKATELOEE
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B R E (A1)

Key Audit Matter
HRETSEHE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
(continued)

BRTNERBEREZCERNE 2 TERFEFE (8)

We focused on auditing the assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS
because the total balances of PUD and PHS are significant and
the estimation of the NRV is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS is, therefore,
considered as a key audit matter.

BB ERE5PUD R PHSEINRVET(E + ZF APUD R PHSH 4 #4
#BEA - ENRVEEE FESEMNMGTHENR - At - PUDR
PHSHINRVAT i AR (ERISE Tt =8 o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETONEEERENSE

(iv) Tested management’s key estimates, on a sample basis, for:

(v) MRS EEBHRRMLT

° selling price which was estimated based on the
prevailing market conditions, we compared the
estimated selling price to recent transactions by making
reference to the Group's selling price of pre-sold units
or the prevailing market price of comparable properties
with comparable type, size and location;

o  RFBEBRATTAMHMNEE  RM2E EXERES
MEENER « RERMERENALYENRTT
B BETEERIMISETLR

° selling expenses which were estimated based on
a certain percentage of estimated selling price, we
compared the estimated percentage with the approved
budget and the actual average selling expenses to
revenue ratio of the Group in recent years;

o  FREMEGEBN—EBDLMFMEEKNANE - &
PR EDLE SRETLFAERERER
THHERAERANL ZETHER

° estimated costs to completion for PUD, we reconciled
the estimated costs to completion to the approved
budget and examined the construction contracts or
compared the anticipated completion costs to the
actual costs of similar types of completed properties of
the Group.

e BPUDMEIZEANAM S - AT TA R AR Rk
EREETHER - WiRERES RSB TR KA
B ERERUNEERKMERNNERKAETLR

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of NRV of PUD and
PHS were supportable by the available evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

ER EER - BMRAERERTEPUD RPHSHINRVE F7fE F
B FET R BRG] T B M AR B R TR R TR o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

A%F%
AREEFHAMES AR - HUELBRFRA
W%E%m BT BREEA M RR LR AR

B

A GERMBRENOERLTEEEMES - Rl
TAHZSEMESERENYANEST LR

EARMERARBRRNET - RANEERHE
HWEM EldiRT  EREMESRAEGAN
%ﬁ%i&ﬁ&%ﬁﬂ&$%?%%\ﬂf&%ﬁﬁ
BREUTFEERNGERRANER

%#ﬁﬂa%“mlﬁ W%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁhwﬁﬁ
BERERRL - RMIBEREXEE - EEHE 0 R
PRABEMBRE

ERRFEUL B O S MBEBCRAUR R AT

BERRESAAARBERGHMAGEMNCER
MBREER) REECATEI) REEEMHED
SRMBRE - YHERRARGARBRERNERE
ANEZE:= N % EE S GOE DN B it
AEEHIRE o

Eﬁﬁw BHHRRE - EZRENE ERERE
i m%ﬁ YHEBERERTHRERFELEFERN

CARERRELE RS ER RIEFFE
Eﬁ:/aﬁj&? IERE - P EAMERNER

ERZEQARREE AEENNBHRSHGE -



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lam Sung Wan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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mAEHRER

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022% 20214
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE TART FAL
Revenue g 6 31,540,226 32,050,306
Cost of sales and services SHE RARTSA A 7 (20,847,656)  (19,624,560)
Gross profit ER 10,692,570 12,425,746
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAT (432,937) (399,135)
Administrative expenses TEAX (1,873,721) (1,552,156)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets BERERRARBHECEREAE
at fair value through profit or loss NNV S 21 (355,845) (6,374,271)
Losses result from changes in fair value of and ~ RENEALEEPHRERZRE
transfer to investment properties MEEEZBE 16 (351,889) (405,651)
Impairment losses on goodwill PEEREEE - (365,457)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CREEREBETE 3.1(h) (77,138) (44,596)
Other expenses HEX 7 (310,744) (229,372)
Other income HA 438,589 194,769
Other gains HFE 1,811 44,256
Operating profit RERR 7,730,696 3,294,133
Finance income B 11 216,591 247,787
Finance costs BT R 11 (971,689) (737,388)
Finance costs — net B AT 11 (755,098) (489,601)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates ~ EIEA SR A REE N AIEEKE 19,20 391,441 843,446
Profit before income tax BRET B8BTS A 7,367,039 3,647,978
Income tax expenses e 12 (4,911,695) (5,748,231)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER, (BE) 2,455,344 (2,100,253)
Profit/(loss) for the year is attributable to THEEERRT (BE)
— Owners of the Company — RRAIERRE 2,085,418 (2,721,886)
— Non-controlling interests — s 369,926 621,633
2,455,344 (2,100,253)
Earnings/(losses) per share for profit/(loss) FARREERREGERN (FE)
attributable to owners of the Company ZBREAN (EE)
(expressed in HK cents per share) (UBRABWIIR)
Basic E-YN 13 23.43 (30.58)
Diluted s 13 23.43 (30.58)

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

s & B R B B — GF RO -



Shenzhen Investment Limited J&31% 0% 5 1R 2 &
Annual Report 3% 2022

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fo B 2 T W 2R AR

Year ended 31 December
HE12H31ALEE

2022

2022
HK$'000
TER

2021
20214
HK$'000
THIT

Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/(BR) 2,455,344 (2,100,253)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKE
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A EM SR Em s HE -
— Share of other comprehensive income of — BlEaERAREE R T
joint ventures and associates H2mas (422,176) 250,319
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign — BN EBBREZERER
operations (5,673,487) 2,765,352
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~EREM2E K - NBRHE (6,095,663) 3,015,671
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year ~ FR2HE (FE) /WBHEHE (3,640,319) 915,418
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THEE2EKEAE
— Owners of the Company — ARAERER (3,563,040) 149,167
— Non-controlling interests — s (77,279) 766,251
(3,640,319) 915,418
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in LR 2 E UG 5 IE EH T — 0607 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December

W12A31H
2022 AVA
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAEL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment V¥ -~ BE MR 15 6,159,776 6,347,209
Investment properties REMZ 16 35,126,999 37,327,911
Investments in joint ventures REEBDRZERE 19 8,836,242 8,887,001
Investments in associates i /NI 20 5,610,595 6,201,291
Intangible assets BVAE 18 722,970 518,112
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BBEREZALBEFEZSREE 21 107,455 489,639
Financial assets at fair value through other BREMEZERSEALETEZ
comprehensive income CRERE 22 2,402 4,256
Trade and other receivables %’%&H@}E%ﬂ 26 419,737 466,525
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSHEE 32 3,335,319 2,953,554
60,321,495 63,195,498
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BEPYE 23 71,019,506 51,176,858
Completed properties held for sale BEGEZEENME 24 11,583,916 18,235,085
Inventories 53 25 342,177 262,948
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E R 26 6,833,278 7,114,269
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BBEFRAAENEZ ¢ REE 21 1,594 1,807
Biological assets EWEE 4,021 3,799
Restricted cash and bank deposits XREIRE RRITHER 27 1,693,335 2,858,351
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 27 11,668,267 19,917,256
103,146,094 99,570,373
Total assets BEHAE 163,467,589 162,765,871
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A& F#XERRE(LER
Share capital ELEN 28 22,071,756 22,071,756
Capital reserve CNEL 28 59,019 59,019
Other reserves Hivf#f 29 3,157,152 8,913,918
Retained earnings R EF 19,343,914 18,130,233
44,631,841 49,174,926
Non-controlling interests FFERER 4,925,132 5,194,954
Total equity EREEE 49,556,973 54,369,880




Shenzhen Investment Limited J&31% 0% 5 1R 2 &
Annual Report 3% 2022

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A £ 1 85 AR D

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$000
FTRET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities E¥RBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMES 31 28,138,776 26,138,203
Lease liabilities HERRE 17 128,177 254,873
Deferred income ELWA 19,714 22,148
Due to the immediate holding company EREBERARZUR 35 699,483 =
Due to the ultimate holding company B BAIERR AR FIR 35 - 3,057,750
Deferred income tax liabilities BT —ﬂ%ﬁ{ 32 7,899,606 9,421,630
36,885,756 38,894,604
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank and other borrowings RAOMEMEE 31 12,083,433 11,959,031
Contract liabilities BHER 33 6,328,458 13,892,262
Trade and other payables B REMERNTR 34 25,872,833 17,100,876
Lease liabilities HERE 17 62,613 140,842
Due to the immediate holding company & HE%@%&ET*”IE 35 2,454,966 2,477,415
Due to the ultimate holding company B BARIERR A R IR 35 18,312,783 11,121,061
Tax payable e HIR 36 11,909,774 12,809,900
77,024,860 69,501,387
Total liabilities BEAH 113,910,616 108,395,991
Total equity and liabilities EnaBEkaEas 163,467,589 162,765,871
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in ihs A B T AR 3 e BT s — R 3B o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 113 to 252 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.

%11 35252597%%?&%‘%3@2023&3)% 20HKEE
ek TRERE

Dr. LU Hua Ms. SHI Xiaomei
REFL sEsLL
Director Director

EZ EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RO RERR B R

Attributable to the owners of the Company
FARERRRER
Non-

Share Capital Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity

Ba  EARfE 0 EtREE  REEN B FERER ERAE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Thn ThR TER TER TER Tén ThR
(note 28)  (note 28)  (note 29)
(Mzt28)  (M&t28)  (fak29)

Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1B 28 22,071,756 59,019 8,913,918 18,130,233 49,174,926 5,194,954 54,369,880

Comprehensive income 2EYE
Profit for the year FREH - -
Other comprehensive income: B2 ANz -

Share of other comprehensive  [E(EA & A a KB E A 7]
income of joint ventures and ELuEalen

2,085,418 2,085,418 369,926 2,455,344

associates - - (422,176) - (422,176) - (422,176)
Exchange differences on BINEBRE/ERES
translation of foreign operations - - (5,226,282) - (5,226,282)  (447,205) (5,673,487)

Total comprehensive income  FAZENELE
for the year - - (5,648,458) 2,085,418 (3,563,040) (77,279) (3,640,319)

Transactions with owners in ~ REZRFNEFEAER
their capacity as owners BRRIDETZRS

Capital injections from FERER T
non-controlling interests - - - - - 11,404 11,404

Dividends provided for or paid ~ ERBEHZFZBKE - - (978,867)  (978,867)  (203,947) (1,182,814)
Equity-settled share option PARA S A+ 2 BB IR 2

expense - - 676 - 676 - 676
Transfer of reserves upon lapse  BBARFER UL EREE

of share options - - (108,984) 108,984 - - -
Share repurchase RipEE - - - (1,854) (1,854) - (1,854)
Total transactions with owners ~ EEZRE /R 588 - - (108,308)  (871,737)  (980,045)  (192,543) (1,172,588)

Balance at 31 December 2022 18202212831 A2tk 22,071,756 59,019 3,157,152 19,343,914 44,631,841 4,925,132 49,556,973
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR B R

Attributable to the owners of the Company
AR AERRR RS

Non-
Share Capital Other Retained controlling

capital reserve reserve garnings interests
B EXGEE  EtEE  REEF RS :
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAL TER TET TR TR TAT

Balance at 1 January 2021 P01 F1A1B 258 22,071,756 59,019 6,074,395 22,419,115 50,624,285 4,781,563 55,405,848

Comprehensive income 2EKE
(Loss)/profit for the year Fn(BR) / &F - -
Other comprehensive income: A2 EH A

Share of other comprehensive  [E{RA &1 7 R4
income of joint ventures and AAEMEERE

(2,721,886) (2,721,886) 621,633 (2,100,253)

associates - - 250,319 - 250,319 - 250,319
Exchange differences on BINEBRE VERER
translation of foreign operations - - 2,620,734 - 2,620,734 144,618 2,765,352

Total comprehensive income ~ FR2HENFALE
for the year -

2,871,063  (2,721,886) 149,167 766,251 915,418

Transactions with owners HERRRZRS

Capital injections from FERERTE
non-controlling interests = = = = = 617,544 617,544

Dividends provided for or paid ~ BEEH N 2R E - - (1,601,981) (1,601,981)  (970,404) (2,572,385)

Disposals of a subsidiary HE—FHHBAR - - (34,985) 34,985 = = =
Equity-settled share option MRAS 2 BRER S

expense - - 3,455 - 3,455 - 3,455
Total transactions with owners ~ EEZERE /R 588 - - (31,530) (1,566,996) (1,598,526)  (352,860) (1,951,386)

Balance at 31 December 2021 2021512831 B 2 &8 22,071,756 59,019 8913918 18,130,233 49,174,926 5,194,954 54,369,880

SLit

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in  EisRAHEZE B EENT T —HEIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
RBABERER

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BEEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL THT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELZHERE
Cash used in operations ReXBMAZRS 37(a) (6,440,381) (2,365,517)
Interest received BEUF 2 212,187 663,269
Interest paid ERHAE (1,783,913) (1,189,490
Income tax paid BRFEE (5,227,665) (3,770,263)
Net cash used in operating activities RETBMAZELTE (13,239,772) (6,662,001)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELEZRERE
Dividends received from financial assets BUEBRERRALBEFEL
fair value through profit or loss SREERS 2,090 2,036
Dividends received from joint ventures EkaERARE 29,924 24,396
Dividends received from associates B A RIRE 52,223 157,171
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BERREBEMAEHE
plant and equipment 49 61
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYE - BERSE (1,021,261) (353,334)
Capital injection to joint ventures ARERATE (92,327) (58,500)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & —RE AR PEHIE - 1,153
Payments for loans to joint ventures YRGB TEERRIZER (523,665) (1,172,570)
Repayments of loans to joint ventures BYEEDNRIZEREBR 1,163,700 277,012
(Payments)/repayments of loans to associates (iﬁiﬁ% BERNRZER) /S
BTBERTZERER - 2,167
Repayments of loans to non-controlling interests 45 T IFIEER 2 EFUER 698,220 951,476
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing RETHEE/(FR) 2R FE
activities 308,953 (168,932)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
RAEBERER

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FET
Cash flows from financing activities BETHELEZRERE 37(b)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEERE 2 EARTH (171,401) (155,656)
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders SRARDEIREZ RS (978,867) (1,601,981)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests SUNE R Fad ) 4\ (203,947) (970,404)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling R ER SRS HOR
interests 340,655 524,389
Repayments of loans from non-controlling EEIEERESER
interests (40,573) (56,908)
Received investment from non-controlling BUIEHERERRE
interests 11,404 617,544
Proceeds from loans from related parties W B TS R0A 27,811,891 30,225,656
Repayments of loans from related parties EEBHAER (22,866,777)  (25,986,224)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings R EMIEEMEHE 17,845,339 20,150,202
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EERITREMES (14,158,203)  (13,221,747)
Share repurchase f ) 121 8 (1,854) -
Net cash generated from financing activites = BEZHEL2HEFE 7,587,667 9,524,871
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBSEEN GRY) /
cash equivalents B FE (5,343,152) 2,693,938
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F£H2HERELEEY 19,917,256 16,166,471
Exchange differences on cash ReRASEENERZS
and cash equivalents (2,905,837) 1,056,847
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERZBERESEEY 27 11,668,267 19,917,256

The above consolidated cash flows statement should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.

LA RERMEREBMTE—HBIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B 5 ok M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

seneral information

Shenzhen Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of the Company's registered office
is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in property development, property investment, property
management and manufacture operation. The principal activities of the
Group's joint ventures and associates are described in notes 19 and 20.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings”, &
% (%[E)BR 2 7)), which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is 3 & & A & /A &(“Shum
Yip Group”), which is a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The consolidated financial information is presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000)
except when otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 29 March 2023.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

@  Going concern basis
Due to the volatility of the property market in the PRC and the
unfavourable impact on the presale performance during the year
and subsequent to the year end date, and the Group recorded net
cash outflow from operating activities of approximately HK$13,240
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of financing in
assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern for at least of 12 months from 31
December 2022.

2.1

—RE R

AINERERLE ([ARF]) B—RARER
MK EREEDE o KRRz EMiHE
BRUREBNENBEBIFHREMED LS
B KRB R—RREERARF - ARARE
WELA (REAIARE]) TBERSNEE
B MERE  NEEERLEEL - £RE

BERARAERANTIERBHNMEI9R
20

EERR ARRZERERRAARER
AR ZARE — K% (RE) ERAA
([RE (RE) ) - AREZRKERDE A
W ARKME ([ ]) R EBRR
Al - REEEARAR ([RXEE]) -

AREBRNREBYHERFAERAF LT

BRBERREN  GEBBEMDUET ([E
1) 23 MESBRABERKATM (TA
L) °

LEGAMBBRCTRN2023F3A 0B EES
ST -

EREFBORBEE

A ERIRRASEA W BRRERA TR
SFUR - BRABETIH - ZFBRCERE
FARZFIMABEE -

A

(a) REAERE
MNP EMETSRBARFEARELER
BRERBNTHFE - URAEERE
E2022F 12 A3 BILFEHBELTH
ZEERERNZFHENI3240685
L ARREBEFEAEE2022F12
AB1BRZEV1I2AAREERRIKEE
REERSECLE  CEEZELAEEN
ARRBEEREBURETANBEL
R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 -5& #5855} + B & & S5 T A7)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

@)

(b)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections, which covers a period twelve months from 31
December 2022. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that, taking into account the anticipated cash flows generated
from the Group’s operations as well as the possible changes in its
operating performance, the Group’s plan of land acquisitions; and the
continued availability of the Group’s bank and other borrowings as
well as the Group’s ability to raise new financing under the prevailing
rules and regulations, and the financial support from the ultimate
holding company, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
coming twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern.

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS")
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with applicable HKFRS and requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), and investment properties, which
are measured at fair value.

2 EEGGBURME (8)
2.1 B (5)

@)

(b)

(c)

B EREE (5B)
ARAIEEEERNTASENRERER
B BE2022F12A831BH%12(AH
o ARRIZEERA  KEEAEEEE
EXMNERRERERELERT N
2 AEEMTHIKEE - AEE
REESROKEMBEE « AEERER
THAERROISEMBENENUARTLE
IRARINF B AEBEEERE
BEES® - M2022F12A31HEARRKI2
EARBITEIMABEE - At - %%
REMBRRNIRFECERERE

BTEEYHAREER ([ BENFHEE
A1) REE R aIfEH
AEESAMBBRRERBERT LMY
BEEARBFBEDAGDIF622E0RTE
& -

FELHAED

GRMBRRCRELKAEERS © 1
ERBRSE AN EE ([ERRSERAN
EstE]) 2e®EE - BREM2ENR
HEAAEFE ([BRAMZEKERA
REFE]) CEBEERREDEERE LA
(EE =
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2022:

° Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use —
Amendments to HKAS 16;

° Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments
to HKAS 37;

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020;

° Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to
HKFRS 3;

° Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 —
Amendment to HKFRS 16 (March 2021); and

e Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control

Combinations.

The Group did not have to change its accounting policies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting these standards.

2 FEEHECREE (8)
2.1 HUER (5)

(@)

T EF 2 F 5T RACIEGTER
AREER2022F1 B1BRBZEFERS
B R RAA T BT

o VX - BERKE : FREREA
HFS5IE — BB G ERIF 165
ZIEFT

s BRMAN-SNEBTER -FR
SEEREITRZER

o  2018FZ2020FEH BB R
SN FEYH

o  HHMLERNREL - BAVMBRS
RHFE 352 EFT

e 2021%6A30H%HECovid-1918H4
HNESER — BBPHREENE
1658 2165 (2021438) : &

o SEHRSIESHZEITARENAH
ZEHETRE o

HRERZ SRR AEERASEH
HBES BN RE -

iz
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 -5& #5855} + B & & S5 T A7)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGHEOREE (&)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 fREEYEE (F)
(8)  New or amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted (6) KRR ZHAT AT ER R 2

Certain new and revised standards, amendments to existing standards BEMGZETHIREBTED - &BFT
have been published that are not effective in current year and have BEEARAKEZHREN - ZAEETEK
not been early adopted by the Group. TR o

HKFRS 17
BAMBRELRFITH

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BEBYHEATIHR
BAMBRELNRHRE
F2WIER]

Amendments to HKAS 8

BAEGTERESR (5]

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB RAE125 2 B3]
Amendments to HKAS 1
ER Rt ERE IR 2B

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

EERBESE (20205F)
Amendments to HKFRS 16

EBHBRE LA F 16582 54T

Amendments to HKAS 1

BAESTENE1R 2B

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BRPBRESERFE10%RR
BR G ERIE28H 2 EF]

Insurance contracts
tRigE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SHBRROKE

Definition of Accounting Estimates
SR ER

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from
a single transaction

B RPEECEENBERBELRE
Classification for liabilities as current or non-current
HEESERREBAIETE

Classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains
a repayment on demand clause

ERAHBEREEREEGNZEHERZH T
Lease liability in sales and lease back
EREDZEERE

Non-current liabilities with covenants
WERHENERDEE

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

REEEEBENAASERAZLRANBELEFTE

Effective for the
annual periods
beginning on or after

RT5IEHE
ZERBRZ
FEHBEN

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023

2023F1A1H

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023

2023%1A1H
1 January 2024
2024F1A1H
1 January 2024

2024%1A1H
1 January 2024
2024F1A1H
1 January 2024
202451 A1R
To be determined

N

FET
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGHBORHME (8)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 MR ()

(©)

New or amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new or amended standards and interpretations, certain of which
are relevant to the Group’s operations. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the Group, no significant impact on the financial
performance and position of the Group is expected when they become
effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the group (refer to note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on

©)

AR # 5] AT BRI R 2 ()

$%EE-?Jﬁ%ﬁﬁ%x%%ﬁﬂﬂ%f%ﬂﬁﬁu
RRBNZTE - BTHAISEETENR
REBDEASEXBEAH - REAKEIE
HE T HE - BAZEHATRE BT E
AIRBRBRNERR TG U AEEORBER
BEMRELEATE o

2.2 ik Bohl s & et

@

W82 &)

WEARSATEERARHENAEE
B(BREBILER) - EXAREAREN
BABAZEZEREAZNENHRL
BANRARNBEBTRENNZEREDR
B AREEZHZER - WBLARBE
ﬂ%ﬁ%§$%l25iiﬁéﬁowg

AR BRHIEL BRRERAH -

AEBEERRBENAHEBAMETS
FEE (2HME2.3) ©

RAIZEAZRS - KRERFRARS 24

transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised RAERE WG TIALE - RE EEEESTE?T?
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence NS - RIERSERBEACEEEE
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies HERE - MBARSHBREREEE
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure HEE  URREASEMEAZHRE
consistency with the policies adopted by the group. BM—2 o

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of financial position respectively.

MT%AT%ZE&@E\ SR Skl
REAREER - RENER - BREPHR
EBBRRERPEBLT
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)
(b)  Associates

(c)

(@)

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case
where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Interests in
joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2
Dol

FE G BRI (8D

AhF Rt A (D)

(b) 5&,&*/'\/57
BELREMAASEUERREAYE

(c)

(@)

DEEEHERG S THRAES - —&
BRAT - REEFE20%ZE50% K FHE -
REE QAR 2 RERNTRR AR B R
REZeENK -

BELH
REBEMHERELENE RS L5
RERZHNRERIBEAMAKLZIA
E0A c RN BERRREREENRON
BEMREE - MM LHRERRE
$E@E$ﬁﬁﬁﬁ RS - BEE
ERAEDT - REERFNRENEAR
PHEARRKR T RAAERRIAGTHE
AN

=

BERREE - RENBEKAER -
HRETRABUARNBRNERREE G
R AEE 77 B U B 12 06 M) B IR I T EL A R
AR ERE S ERYE S B ge la
MEE - DRHERBERARAE AT
R SRR RIREREEA

A B EGES ARRENBREN N
BAENZERNED (BREMELE
BERRARETR)  NAKET SR
E—TER - BRIFCRRZ-ERAER
EHIERR

Z—Kﬁlﬁ,ﬁiﬁgw ENAIRAERAIZHARS
MASRRRBRARENZSEBNER
TUAHSH o RBBEETRTALE - B0
AR FREMEZEERNEZ BRI
oh o BRARBRRETNEHBRELT
ERELAE - NRERESSEMRANS
AR e
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)
(@)  Equity method (continued)

(€

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 2.11.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

2 FEEHECREE (8)
2.2 AR et ()

(@)

(€

B (&)
B ARRERIEREMZ2.11 K
RETRERR -

HERERZE
AEES T EHRRITHI R IR R
RHVEEARGERZEEANRS - &
BRERREHERUERES IR ERIRE
EMHE - URBRERHE QA NAMHE
@ o SIS AREBEATARHRE
KRERZENZENARAEDFEA
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred
° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
o equity interests issued by the group

e  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Concentration test as prescribed by HKFRS 3 “Business Combination”
has been applied by the Group to consider whether the set of activities
and assets of subsidiaries acquired are individually businesses. If the fair
value of total net assets acquired substantially equals to the fair value of
an identifiable asset acquired, the transaction would be accounted for as
asset acquisition instead of business acquisition. The consideration is then
directly allocated to the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)
The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,
o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or
losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or l0ss.
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2.3

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity
is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment,
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses the financial
performance and position of the Group and makes strategic decisions of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations. They have been
identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of the chief
executive officer, the chief financial officer and the managers for corporate
planning.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (HK$), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in
a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains.

2
2.5

FEEEFBORBEE (8))
SHEHE (8D

ERERE2NHBRMB2HENME T TR

A,
(=]

FRIED AR RUEERR B ER KRS

HE - £ERREUE - FPREIER - 2
EmIRERBHAERN T EREERAEER
B BEDHWRKRTERBHUFRE - B
FEREAER THE ©

2.6 AMEEHE

@ WEEFISHE K
AEERER UV BREMIIEEERE
REZMEIZCERECES ([MEE
W) ETE o RAEBBHRRNET (BL)
FIER - BLARRRZNERIEES o
FAEERERETEEINHESE  5E
BEYBHRERPENEE NFEAZNGEE
HE o

) RFZREH

NERFUERFHEBNERBE RIEE
E% - ARERGHBENRFRERKE
PONEHEC SR BERABMEL ZE
REE - —BRRNBETRR - HASRS
HAERREREHMRAERREFE
HABERIBERANBIEBREFRN—
Bl AENERTET -

EEERBAMNE RS RBERNBRR
DIk o BT A EtIE S e BRI R
ERBRXANEMNEIIR -

A
B



Shenzhen Investment Limited ‘&332 A 1R A 7]
Annual Report 3% 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A7 A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 -5& #5855} + B & & S5 T A7)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(©

Transactions and balances (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit
or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGHBORHME (8)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.6 AMEBS (5)

(©)  Group companies (continued) © EERA (&)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a RUBENEBREENTERAAER
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign BRERENEBNEERERE + WiRK
operation and translated at the closing rate. MEXHE o

(@  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal @ HEBIEHREGHE

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Ownership interest in over the

leasehold land lease terms
Buildings 30 -50 years
Building improvements 5 years
Plant and machinery 4 -10 years
Transportation equipment 5-10 years
Furniture, fitting and equipment 3 -10 years

Furniture, fittings and equipment include assets received in the form of
free store fit outs are recognised at their fair value. These assets and other
leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life
or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the assets beyond the
lease term.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.11).

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of construction or
installation incurred of property, plant and equipment less any impairment
losses. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are carried at
fair value.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other income.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is treated in
the same way as a revaluation under HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in
the carrying amount of the property is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss, with any remaining
increase recognised in other comprehensive income and increase directly
to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in the
carrying amount of the property is initially charged in other comprehensive
income against any previously recognised revaluation surplus, with any
remaining decrease charged to profit or loss. For a transfer from completed
properties held for sale or properties under development to investment
properties that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount shall be
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group shall transfer a property from investment property to property
under development when it commences related development with a view to
sale. For a transfer from investment property that is carried at fair value to
property under development, related property under development shall be
recognised at fair value at the transfer date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

@)

(b)

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or Groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill is not amortized but its impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Concession right

The Group adopts the construction and operation transfer method
to participate in the operation of infrastructure facilities. The Group
obtains the management right of the facility from the national
administrative department (contract awarding party) and participates
in the construction and operation of the facility. After the expiration of
the management rights, the Group shall hand over the relevant project
to the state administrative department.

If the contract stipulates that the Group has the right to collect fees
during a certain period of operation after the completion of the
relevant infrastructure facility, but the amount of fees is uncertain,
such right does not constitute an unconditional right to receive
cash, and the Group recognizes intangible assets when the relevant
construction costs are incurred. These costs are amortised over the
concession period of 40 years on a straight-line basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGHEOREE (8)
2.9 Intangible assets (continued) 2.9 JEREE (H)
(c)  Computer software © EEEH

Acquired computer software programmes are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over the estimated useful lives
of 5 to 10 years on a straight-line basis. Costs associated with
maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.

(@)  Research and development expenses
Research and development expenditures that do not meet the
capitalised criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
2.10 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
These property lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
properties may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2
2.10

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in
a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency
and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual
lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (note 6).
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the consolidated statement of financial position
based on their nature.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each of each reporting
period.

2.12 Financial assets

@)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

e  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
other comprehensive income (“OCI"), or through profit or loss),
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for

managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

FEEEFBORBEE (8))

2.10 #1% ()

EREEE—REREENEAFHIEENR (K
RRERE) WERANE - WAKBEAERE
TERER  AEREEEREREENER
FHME -

AEBEAHEANEERE HERARE
RERBHRERAKRA (KE6) - RERLR
HERRBRONBERKAT ARBEENK
HE TREEHARAREERIRSETK
A - BHEBERAME AGAMBIREK -

211 FEE G 2 Wl

BEERERFH HERENEEIRENHE
MZEVEERRBE  LEBFETREN
o BREHHRRBRARERRRAEER 8
BEROE - SEHNARENEERACR
RE - REBRREENREERNE T RD
CENZRER - JRNEBREENAAE
REERAREAEEMETOERRE - KT
fRER - BERBYAHARERE CREE
AB) 2REERASETHAE - RBEIE
“Eﬂﬁm#iﬂéﬁﬂ REHRGHBER
AR AR

2.12 &g
@ 7
AEBKESREERUTAERRD
LN

. ﬁé? nAEEtE GRARMEENK
@ ([Afp2 EW 5 1) FEt AB)
i) ﬂﬁ?

ok

\IJ]

o HIRBHNAGE

ZABHARERERSREERAOR
EREFHEBEA -



Shenzhen Investment Limited ‘&332 A 1R A 7]
Annual Report 3% 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A7 A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 -5& #5855} + B & & S5 T A7)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)

@)

(b)

(c)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in debt instruments,
this will depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(©

Measurement (continuea)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains and impairment expenses or reversals
are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

()

Measurement (continuead)

Debt instruments (continued)

° FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
in ‘other income and other gains — net’ in profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL") on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade and other receivables, loans to joint ventures and associates, cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and bank deposits and financial
guarantee).

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that
will result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To
measure ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECL on these assets are
assessed using simplified expected credit loss model.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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2
2.15

2.16

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs, depreciation of machinery and equipment, borrowing
costs capitalised for qualifying assets and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets when the
construction of the relevant properties commences unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle. The normal operating cycle is usually
around 3 years.

Costs to fulfill a contract comprise the development cost and land use
right cost directly related to an existing contract that will be used to
satisfy performance obligations in the future. The costs to fulfill a contract
are recorded in properties under development if they are expected to be
recovered. The amount is amortised on a systematic basis, consistent
with the pattern of revenue recognition of the contract to which the asset
relates.

Completed properties held for sale
Completed properties remaining unsold at year end are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable selling
expenses, or by management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from buyers for properties sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

2.19 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a buyer, the Group obtains rights to
receive consideration from the buyer and assumes performance obligations
to transfer goods or provide services to the buyer. The combination of
those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights
and the performance obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised
as contract assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the
measure of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining
rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with
a buyer as contract acquisition cost within contract assets if the Group
expects to recover those costs.

2.20 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.21

2.22

2.23

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of Company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effect is included in equity attributable to the owners of
Company.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

@

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.26 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b)  Deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special tax
deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and Development Tax
Incentive regime in Oneland or other investment allowances). The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means that
the allowance reduces income tax payable and current tax expense.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred tax assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.27 Employee benefits

@)

(b)

(c)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave that are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods
of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market
yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes, including
defined contribution pension plans and post-employment medical
plans.

There were no forefeited contributions (by employers on behalf
of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to offset existing contributions under the defined
contribution schemes.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGHBORHME (8)
2.27 Employee benefits (continued) 2.27 lRE A (5)
(@  Profit-sharing and bonus plans @ BRI ERSAGE
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and ZK%'EI@TE% AR (BETRBE;RAR
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration RIRREWERT) BREBD AL EN 2D
the profit attributable to the company’s shareholders after certain EMEALAY - AREBEEANERR
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually S B 1 1B (1 B B 5 75 R TR AR o

obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(6)  Termination benefits € AEEER

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by EASETEERRIKBRAKLERER 3
the Group before the normal retirement date, or when an employee EREBXERRIEANRRZSET
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The B AIEZARIERT o REBRUTR
Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following ERPERRERH - QEAEEELE
dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those REOZERNZENR  RO)EEBHER
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring EHNTEAGHEEI7THNER)
that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of PR R X N ERERAE - WEEDZ
terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage EOBEERMERE - MFERHERNE
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based AERXZONEEHENE - RREHAR
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits HRB1I2E AR EHEREERE -

falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to present value.

2.28 Share-based payments 2.28 DAL 2 Fe it 2 Ak
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation REERA LB RS AR A E R 8 RN
plans, under which the Group receives services from employees as B B AEBUERATE (BEEKE
consideration for equity instruments (including shares options and awarded LB ) (EAESRERBHRE - FER
shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received EERBURKREZTARTHNALERRAE
in exchange for the grant of the equity instruments is recognised as an e BXHENBEEH2EMRNBRIENR
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to REET :

the fair value of the equity instruments granted:

BREAMERRGN (DERNBRE)

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's
share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance o TNBEEMARBLEIEMEZRRFEGE
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and (BN - BELRE @&EATEE,HH
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and MNEEATENES) NFE

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. o DEMEMIEAITREHNTE o
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2
2.28

2.29

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

The grant by the Company of equity instruments over its equity instruments
to the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit
to equity in the parent entity accounts.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the Company issues new shares.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

2
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.29 Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.30 Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of
goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred
to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method.

The Group applies advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

FEEEFBORBEE (8))
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.30 Revenue recognition (continued)

@)

(b)

(c)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at point in time when
the customers has the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under contract liabilities.

When residential properties are marketed by the Group while the
property is still under construction, the Group may offer a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided the customer agrees
to pay the balance of the consideration early. In such cases, if the
advance payments are regarded as providing a significant financing
benefit to the Group, interest expense arising from the adjustment of
time value of money will be accrued by the Group during the period
between the payment date and when control of completed property
is transferred to the customer. This accrual increases the balance of
the contract liability during the period of construction, and therefore
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer. The interest is
expensed as incurred unless it is eligible to be capitalised under
HKAS 23.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Construction income

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work on real
estate assets under the control of the customer and therefore the
Group’s construction activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be reasonably
measured, revenue from the contract is recognised progressively over
time using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of
the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGHBORHME (8)
2.30 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.30 W R ()

(c)  Construction income (continued) ©) BERA (B)
The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses for early AEERIRT TR M KRS L 1RE K E
completion or suffering contractual penalties for late completion are BT TimE XS 45 2 A o] g M
taken into account in making these estimates, such that revenue ZEMGEEZR - Alt - EEEHERAW
is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a meBRUEIENEREERS2REAWR
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised i o
will not occur.
When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably measured, BHNELGERTRERAENZ2R - K
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred @E?E,HHFJ'TFEE’J:. HIPK AN 15 T U A
that are expected to be recovered. PN

(@  Rental income from leases @ HEMHZHA
Rental income receivable under leases is recognised in profit or loss HERKESUAEERANEER S BE
in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, ?ﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁfﬁﬁqﬁ&w HEEEREE
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the ERERFAEEEEMEENREERER
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. viﬁ%?l\ c IRHERBERENEETIE
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral FEAENEK SN EBEARER o TK
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable lease R RS IR 2 AT B E R FURREUE
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as SR HRENRARER
income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(8)  Property management service income 6 YEEEEURA

The Group provides property management services and bills the
property owners a fixed lump sum amount for services provided on a
monthly basis. Under this arrangement, the Group acts as a principal
and is primary responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners. The Group recognises the fee
received or receivable from property owners as its revenue when the
Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds directly with the

AEEREMEFEERY - BXTAEKA
PARENREXTETEZER - RiE
AR ARBERTEATREENE
TRENEERRS - EAKEARHAA
RRHERACDTKRONEERR - A
REBDEEEXABERBAAR - K
SERERAEREINERAEDAER

value of performance completed, and related property management o
costs as its cost of services.
2.31 Interest income 2.31 Fl BWA

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

%rﬂéﬁZﬂ@HﬁU\T ERMEZEZRNEREE
REAENE  ERESELEGRAMEZSR
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2
2.32

2.33

2.34

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's and the Company'’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors of the Company, where appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised in respect of the financial
guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for property purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee liabilities. After initial recognition, such liabilities are measured
at the higher of the present value of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation and the amount initially recognised
less cumulative amortisation of fees recognised.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position when, and only when, the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Financial risk management

The Group’s major operations are mainly located in the PRC and is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These include
risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and legal
environment, influence of national authorities over pricing regulation and
competition in the industry.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(mainly including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The property industry
is sensitive to the economic environment in the PRC, which will affect the
volumes of property transactions and selling prices. The Group mainly relies
on sales of properties and debt financing to fund its operations. The Group
has alternative plans to monitor liquidity risk should there be significant
adverse changes on the Group’s cash flow projections.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors
(@  Market risk

0)

Currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is denoted
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and the Group’s assets held and all of the
committed borrowings of the Group are mainly denominated in
RMB.

The Group currently does not have specific policy on foreign
currency risk as it had minimal transactions denominated
in foreign currencies during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 and the impact of foreign currency risk on the
Group’s operation is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s market risk arises mainly from interest rate risk
of long-term bank and other borrowings. Bank and other
borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Bank and other borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group closely monitors trend of interest rate and its impact on
the Group’s interest rate risk exposure. The Group currently has
not used any interest rate swap arrangements and may consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@)  Market risk (continuea)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual re-pricing dates of the borrowings at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

3 M#HEEE (5)
3.1 MEmEEBHEE (8)

@)

5 (&)

iy FI=mEE (B)
RBEPRAEEEEHFREE 2
RBRREEzAOEEREERSN
T

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
% of total % of total
HK$'000 borrowings HK$'000  borrowings
TARELT HEREEYS FAEL
Variable rate borrowings FREE 22,355,890 56% 23,391,490 62%
Fixed rate borrowings — repricing TEEE — &5
or maturity dates: TESFHA
Less than 1 year DI EF 4,535,146 1% 2,091,577 5%
1to 5 years 1-5% 3,676,828 9% 5,854,377 15%
Over 5 years 5% E 9,654,345 24% 6,759,790 18%
40,222,209 100% 38,097,234 100%

At 31 December 2022, the Group had HK$22,355,890,000
(2021: HK$23,391,490,000) variable interest rate borrowings
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. If the
interest rate of these borrowings had increased/decreased by
0.5% and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit
before tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/
increased by approximately HK$111,779,000 (2021:
HK$116,957,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit before tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and the impact on the Group’s profit
before tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2021.
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEREE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEEHEZE (&)

(a)  Market risk (continued) @) TEER (&)

(iily  Price risk (i) (B

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from listed
and unlisted equity investments held for trading and non-trading
purposes.

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on the
performance of individual securities compared to that of the
relevant stock market Index and other industry indicators, as
well as the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed equity investments
that are not held for trading purposes have been chosen
based on their longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are not held for trading
purposes and have been chosen based on their longer term
growth potential. Their performance is assessed regularly and
the decisions to buy or sell is based on the Group’s long term
strategic plans.

2022
2022F

Effect on profit Effect on other
after tax and components
retained profits of equity

BRI HEEN
R RE Hitb AR,

BRNHE Hone

HK$’'000 HK$’000

FExT FTExT

Increase #0 1% 818 18
Decrease s (1%) (818) (18)
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2021
20214

Effect on profit  Effect on other
after tax and components
retained profits of equity
HEDE HERH

HIRRE i
/Jmﬂsj\]%%ﬁ i ralzopve-d
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET
3,686 43
(3,686) (43)

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position either as FVOCI (note 22) or
FVTPL (note 21).
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risks refer to the risk of losses incurred by the inabilities
of debtors or counterparties to fulfil their contractual obligations
or by the adverse changes in their credit conditions. The Group is
exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits, trade and other receivables and financial
guarantee contracts.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

For trade receivables in respect of property development, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to purchasers
with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate percentage of
down payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables to ensure that adequate loss allowance are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

For other trade receivables not related to property development,
the Group’s customer base is diversified and has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. Trade receivables are due from 30 to
180 days to from the date of billing. The Group has a policy to closely
monitor the settlement status of these trade receivables and all long
outstanding balances are requested to be settled before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

For the financial guarantee contracts provided by the Group to banks
in connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of properties, the Group measured the loss
allowance on financial guarantee contracts by reference to the
historical default rate of the purchasers, the loss on default based on
the current property value and the pre-sale deposits already received
and the forward-looking information. Detailed disclosure of such
guarantees is made in note 38.

3
3.1

4 5 I

B (8

BB EEEE ()

(b)

EEmRE
FERBREANEEARERFHF A
REETTRORT - HBEERRROTMNE
@EL&E%MHWOKEIE%mkﬁ
RERAR e RREEEDRERHRT
R BHREMRKTARMBERE
WA -

FERRREEEEER -

RAERENERRNELETME - A&E
EETHRBRALFEE ﬁﬁhﬂ&i
NEZEEOHERNRZERIEHHEE -
ARENHEBRMERRF - NERE
BREBERERKEBBES © i - XK
EERENEREAZBKERTRE S
# o ARERRAATRE S BIEL RAEX
B

FEMEERREANEMERERERME
AEENEFPERZ BT BEAET
ZERR - EWERAE EﬂmZEltimi
1wiu@ ARERHERREDNER
ZERUBEFNEEMRR - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂi
BEEHHERE L EE - SEER

B —RmE - $%IT\EH%}5WHX?E
o

RAKBERRITAFLEARBETAE
ENEMREROPBREAOMS - A%
BR2ZEETNELEOE - REEAH
NEBEFENENBERANENESRSE
FAEMEERN T EMBERA ONERR
B - AREROFARESNMESS o



Shenzhen Investment Limited &332 %A 1R A 7]
Annual Report %3 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&7 A B S 2R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

3  Financial risk management (continued) 8 EEEREEHE (4)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERKEHEZ (5)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b) EEREE (&)

The directors of the Company considered that the loss allowances on
financial guarantee contracts at 1 January 2022 and 31 December
2022 were insignificant to the Group. For properties which have been
pre-sold, or for the completed properties that sold but the building
ownership certificate not yet issued, the Group typically provides
guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing
of mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an
amount up to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term
of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
customer’s deposit and sell the property to recover any amounts paid
by the Group to the bank. Unless the selling price would drop by more
than the buyer’s deposits received, the Group may not be in a loss
position for financial guarantee contracts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risks of other receivables and deposits paid for acquisitions
are managed through an internal process. The credit quality of each
counterparty is investigated before credit is granted. The Group also
actively monitors the outstanding amounts owed by each debtor
and identifies any credit risks in a timely manner in order to reduce
the risk of a credit related loss. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of these receivables at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment assessment

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade and other receivables, and financial
guarantees contracts using ECL models according to HKFRS 9
requirements.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)
For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime expected credit
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables.

For financial assets whose impairment losses are measured using
three-stages general approach ECL assessment except for trade
receivables, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has
increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a
three-stage impairment model to calculate their impairment allowance
and recognise their ECL, as follows:

—  Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since
its initial recognition, the financial asset is included in stage 1.

—  Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is included in stage 2. The description
of how the Group determines when a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred is disclosed in the following section of
‘judgement of significant increase in credit risk”.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instruments are credit-impaired, the
financial instrument is included in stage 3. The definition of
credit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in the following
section of “the definition of credit-impaired assets”.

3 WMEREEHE (8)
3.1 MERKMEZ (5)

(b)

EEmE (&)

WERE (8)

HRBUES - AEBRAEEMHRS
RAZ WA A FFNFELITE - BERR
UGEM MR R R EBRAE
ARX - RTEERBERAER - Bk
FERBEAFNERRBFEETHA - &K
SERBEERGRERAEORMBIT
ERBRHERERX - NYMERKRR
ERFERERERRE -

REKERRSN - EEREENRBERFER

N=RR— &I ERBERBRFEE
8 rEEEVEACGERRAERER
PARREAMRIE M - 35 =B BORER
et EARERBEREREBERERER
W

— F-RBE: WEERRAVRER
DAXjfﬂﬂ]EiﬁD C EBBERA
—PEEL o

— BoBE BEERBRANRESD
BARATRHE N - R WA A 15 A
B SHIRFAS- KR - &%
EETEERAREEAELMGFE
BRTX [ ERRAEEN
—ERE -

- F-RBE:-NEeBRIAAREER
B ¢RMIAGAZ=RE -8
RESHEENTERTXIEER
BEEMTS | —HHE -



Shenzhen Investment Limited &332 %A 1R A 7]
Annual Report %3 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&7 A B S 2R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEREE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERKEHEZ (5)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) ) =EER (&)
The Group considers the credit risk characteristics of different AEERETEERRES KRS MEZ

financial instruments when determining if there is significant increase
in credit risk. For financial instruments with or without significant
increase in credit risk, 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses
are provided respectively.

The expected credit loss is the result of discounting the product of
exposure at default, probabilities of default (‘PD") and loss given
default (‘LGD"). According to whether the credit risk has increased
significantly or whether the assets have been impaired, the Group
measures the loss allowance with the expected credit losses of
12-month or the lifetime due to the credit risk characteristics of
different assets.

Judgement of significant increase in credit risk (“ SICR”)

Under HKFRS 9, when considering the impairment stages for financial
assets, the Group evaluates the credit risk at initial recognition and
also whether there is any significant increase in credit risk for each
reporting period. The Group considers various reasonable supporting
information to judge if there is significant increase in credit risk when
determining the ECL staging for financial assets. Major factors being
considered include solvency and operational capabilities. The Group
could base on individual financial instruments or portfolios of financial
instruments with similar credit risk characteristics to determine ECL
staging by comparing the credit risks of the financial instruments at
the reporting date with those at initial recognition.

The Group set quantitative and qualitative criteria to judge whether
the credit risk has SICR after initial recognition. The judgement
criteria mainly include the PD changes of the debtors, changes of
credit risk categories and other indicators of SICR, etc.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The definition of credit — impaired assets

Under HKFRS 9, in order to determine whether credit impairment
occurs, the defined standards adopted by the Group are consistent
with the internal credit risk management objectives for relevant
financial assets, while considering quantitative and qualitative
indicators. When the Group assesses whether the debtor has credit
impairment, the following factors are mainly considered:

° The debt has overdue for more than 90 days after the contract
payment date.

e The lender gives the debtor concessions for economic or
contractual reasons due to the debtor's financial difficulties,
where such concessions are normally reluctant to be made by
the lender.

e The debtor has significant financial difficulties.

° The debtor is likely to go bankrupt or needs other financial
restructuring.

The credit impairment of financial assets may be caused by the joint
effects of multiple events, and may not be caused by separately
identifiable events.

Forward — looking information

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the debtors to settle the receivables.

The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data,
expert forecasts and statistical analysis to determine the relationship
between economic indicators with PD and LGD. The Group evaluates
and forecasts these economic indicators at least annually, provides
the best estimates for the future, and regularly evaluates the results.

Similar to other economic forecasts, the estimates of economic
indicators have high inherent uncertainties, actual results may
have significant difference with estimates. The Group considered
the estimates above represented the optimal estimation of possible
outcomes.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk exposure of financial assets
Without considering the impact of collateral and other credit
enhancement, for on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposures
are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the consolidated
financial statements. Concentration of credit risk reflects the
sensitivity of the Group’s operating results to a particular customer,
industry or geographic location.

0)

Impairment of other receivables

The Group’s other receivables mainly include amounts due from
third parties, related parties and non-controlling interests. To
measure the expected credit losses of other receivables, other
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of outstanding balances based on historical
settlement records and past experience.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of deposit
and other receivables during the year is as follows:

Balance at 1 January 2022
Impairment losses for the year
Exchange differences

(b)

S5 B B ()
3.1 HMEmEEHEZE (8)
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Deposits
and other
receivables

BEREM

i HE
HK$'000
TR
292,258
21,139
11,797

Balance at 31 December 2022
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325,194
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 MEEBEE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERKMEZ (5)
(b)  Credit risk (continuea) b) EEAEE (&
()  Impairment of other receivables (continued) () EtbEKzIERE (&)
Deposits
and other
receivables
Be REM
[EsRIA
HK$'000
FAT
Balance at 1 January 2021 #®202151 A1 BR & 254,597
Impairment losses for the year FRREESE 39,761
Exchange differences fE N EH (2,100)
Balance at 31 December 2021 12021512 A31 BR &4 292,258
(i) Trade receivables (i) FEURERR
The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for AEERBEEEVBERELENFEIR
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits MATERAGEHANGHRERER
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade BREE - 2B R T EYRUE
receivables. REEFERERBRLRE -
The following table provides information about the Group's TR AEEHBHEERR ME
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: YRR ERBERNER -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEAR REAE BEEE
% HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Less than one year past due BEBHON—F 1% 2,100,863 24,799
One to two years past due BH—FEME 31% 79,179 24,771
Two to three years past due BHMFE=F 60% 22,299 13,401
Over three years past due BEI=EL E 72% 146,356 105,656

2,348,697 168,627
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEREE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERKEHEZ (5)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) ) EEEREE (&)
(i) Trade receivables (continued) () MR (B)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TRERIB A X REAE BAEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Less than one year past due BHON—F 5% 934,126 47,029
One to two years past due B —FEMEF 17% 37,987 6,377
Two to three years past due BHMFE=F 36% 18,746 6,655
Over three years past due BE=FDA L 80% 132,940 106,618
1,123,799 166,679
Expected loss rates are estimated using a provision matrix, FEHBAXRDERBERRE MG
taking into account the past due status of the customers. As VEZRIZPHBEMRN - ARAX
the Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate SENEFERBALCRIRES
significantly different loss patterns for different customer TRAEFPHMNBIEAGTEREES
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not 2 RAEERBBERRMEBLERE
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer TEE—FERIFEENTRAEP
bases. The expected loss rates are adjusted periodically to o BHBEAXeTHAR - MR
reflect changes in current economic conditions and the Group’s BAEEMRRNE AR AR B
view of forecast economic conditions over the expected lives of JFE M5 B R TR A4 HR O TR A AR R Y
the trade receivables. BiE o
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FREBERUERELRBER 28
receivables during the year is as follows: meE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT
Balance at 1 January M1 A1 BREH 166,679 162,400
Impairment losses recognised during FNHERE
the year RIEEEES 55,999 4,835
Exchange differences fE N E 5 (54,051) (556)

Balance at 31 December M12 A31 B4 168,627 166,679
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(c)

(i) Cash and bank balances
The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and bank deposits are limited because the counterparties are
banks/financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings and
have no default records in the past.

Ligquiaity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short
and long term bank loans and other borrowings. Through maintaining
a reasonable proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group
is able to meet its ongoing financial needs.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

3
3.1

4 5 I

B (8

BB EEEE ()

(b)

(c)

EERRE (&)

(i) RekRTER
RXGUFHRAEBARZEET
BERTEENZHMNRT S/
B HEERReEEY XR
HRERBAIFTINEERRER

LR

EREEARGEERED AR B ERA

EEXRBUERE AEBETERERR
HRERRTESREMEE - #15E¢

REHEEREM 2 TE - BERHEE
BEABRBERELS - ARERRR
A%EM%WXO

TRETABRERARASENITBEEL
BTANIHE - DREAHNKRIRE
enE (BREERGONEFEZAEN
o S MEATEEFE - AIRBERAREBRER
ZERMAEHE) REXAEBER L&
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 HMEEREE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERKEHEZ (5)
() Liquidity risk (continued) © wELEE (B)
Carrying
amount at
Less than  Between1  Between?2 QOver 31 Dec
1year and2years and 3 years 3 years 2022
R20225
12A31H
—£R -EfE  WEZE  BEcE a8  vREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TAR ThR TER TET
Interest-bearing bank and other TRRTRER
borrowings B8 13,045,562 9,496,493 9,858,725 10,584,349 42,985,129 40,222,209
Lease liabilities HERE 66,050 56,902 47,060 33,117 203,129 190,790
Trade payables B 6,335,130 - - - 6335130 6,335,130
Other payables EREMFE 8,781,853 - - - 8,781,853 8,781,853
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REFZMEAT
LEH 1,668,765 188,059 - - 1,856,824 1,803,046
Loans from a joint venture RE—RAZAH
ZEH 231,870 - - - 231,870 228,904
Loans from an other related RELERAR
company LEH 175,320 - - - 175,320 175,189
Loans from non-controlling REFERREEX
interests 1,418,879 475,740 475,740 7,815,927 10,186,286 8,085,253
Due to the immediate holding ENERERARZE
company 3,212,130 - - - 3212130 3,154,449
Due to the ultimate holding ENREERARZE
company 18,629,840 - - - 18,629,840 18,312,783
Total % 53,565,399 10,217,194 10,381,525 18,433,393 92,597,511 87,289,606
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continuead)

()

3
3.1

S5 B B ()
WEEEEE ()
(c) EEHEEE (&)

Carrying
amount at
Less than Between 1 Between 2 31 December
Tyear and2years and 3 years 2021
120214
12A31H
—ER —EfE ZEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TATL TATL TAT BT
Interest-bearing bank and STERIREMEE
other borrowings 12785121 8873962 8983129 9219646 39,861,858 38,097,234
Lease liabilities HEafk 148,573 120,604 155,049 75,900 500,126 395,715
Trade payables FERERR 4,408,200 - - - 4408200 4,408,200
Other payables EREME 8,745,771 - - - 8745771 8,745,771
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REAZHELT
L8 2,751,651 = = - 2751651 2,683,482
Loans from a joint venture RE-FRERA
LER 127,151 = = = 127,151 124,757
Loans from an other related REAMERAT
company L8 192,015 = = = 192,015 191,401
Loans from non-controlling REFERES 2 B
interests 634,272 = = = 634,272 612,556
Due to the immediate holding R EZERNRFE
company 2,518,679 = = - 2518679 2477415
Due to the ultimate holding ENGRIERARFE
company 11,680,224 1,504,780 1,871,733 - 15,056,737 14,178,811
Total &% 43991657 10,499,346 11,009,911  9,295546 74,796,460 71,915,342
3.2 BEAREH

3.2 (apital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to optimise the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase of shares, issue new shares
or sell assets.

AEEERBARRALRSIRERELL
N URKRREREEA LGN EIAR T 8lE
Mat - TRFEREENGBAREESKA

RBLCEXRRE  AEETREHEERAKRR
XMOBREEE - MBRD - BORRILE
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Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with other companies in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by equity attributable to owners of the company. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including bank and other borrowings as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

S5 B B ()

BAEH (8)
AEENRBXRERERERN  BEAMRRX
EF-H - ABRXDREBFRRARDE R
RREERETE - FEBRENEE (BRF
BRBRRRAMRRTREMES) RERE
FAEEBENRXRHRLTE

R2022F 202112 31 BB ERMT :

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FAT

Total borrowings (note 31) e (fEE31) 40,222,209 38,097,234

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) w o RekBReEEY (Mi27) (11,668,267) (19,917,256)
Restricted cash and bank deposits R GRS RRITHER

(note 27) (M¥Ex27) (1,693,335) (2,858,351)

Net debt U] 26,860,607 15,321,627

Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR R R R EG RS 44,631,841 49,174,926

Gearing ratio BEX 60% 31%

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s gearing ratio is within
the healthy range.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried or presented at fair
value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The different levels are defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1)

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

e Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

ARAEERAARE ABEZENREEE
W o

0 ol
TREHEDABEFBHEENZZBABELS
MEAABHELZIZERIE - TRER
FEWNT ¢

s RFEEXRBIERMEHRE (REH
B) (5—4)

o RE-BMEREREN  BEXABZA
ERGAE  IRER (AfIMER) X
A& (REER) (F=&)

o HAEFARYFERNABEMSREZE
ANE (P ABRBAE) (F=R)
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 MEEBEE (8)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 ARMEMFE (8)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— B E=R k)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEx FTER TER TE=R

FVTPL BREBRERARETE
— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong —REBZ LTRERE 1,594 - - 1,594
— Listed equity investments in —RepEAEZ

Mainland China Lk ERE 26,851 - - 26,851
— Unlisted equity investments in —RePBEREL

Mainland China FLEmRERE - - 80,604 80,604
FVOCl BREMEEKEERL

B+t E

— Unlisted equity investments in —RPBAEY

Mainland China I FiRiER & - - 2,402 2,402

28,445 - 83,006 111,451

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R E_ F=M B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT  TAT  TET  TAT

FVTPL BRBREALEHE
— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong — RNEBZ EMRERE 1,807 = = 1,807
— Listed equity investments in —RPEAE

Mainland China FHRERE 28,530 - - 28530
— Unlisted equity investments in — RRBAEZ

Mainland China I FiRER & - - 461,109 461,109
Fvocl BREMEEREROA

Bt HE

— Unlisted equity investments in —RPBEAEL

Mainland China FLmRERE - - 4,256 4,256

30,337 — 465,365 495,702
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair value HE2022F %2021 F12A31HILFE » £8

measurements during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BRAEHES—  ZR=BzET B
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3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
@)  Financial instruments in level 3
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3 MEREEH ()
3.3 Anfifiit (8)
@ F=RzBTA

The following table presents the changes in the level 3 financial TREJNHZE2022F %2021F12A31H
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021: HFEZE=RsMTAEE)
2022 2021
2022% 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAL
At 1 January ™ A1H 465,365 6,740,989
Fair value changes of financial assets SREEARERY (355,845) (6,374,889)
Exchange differences E N EHE (26,514) 99,265
At 31 December W12 A31H 83,006 465,365
There is no unrealised gain or loss recognised in profit or loss in the AEEVENREBRABFLEHREGZRN
current year (2021: nil) attributable to balances held at the end of the BaBR AR U ER (2021F ¢
reporting period. &) o
There were also no changes made to any of the valuation techniques HZE2022%12 8318 - EAFAEAHGL

applied as of 31 December 2022.

BIENKIEEARD) o
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(b)  Information about level 3 fair value measurements
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in unlisted equity investment in
Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited (“Hengda Real Estate”):

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABRBAE

Valuation techniques

BER%

3 M#HEEE (5)
3.3 Affifiit (8)

b) BHE=RALLEAEZEH
TREBAEABERBERAA ([EXH
El)FLMBRREER EATIRER
BABNELEN :

Significant Range
unobservable inputs

EXTAERBAESE

Unlisted equity investment in Hengda Market Approach
Real Estate (“Hengda Investment”)

WMEAME 2 IF LT
RE ([BAKRE])

migA

Discount for lack of

Price-to-book ratio

mikE

0.02 (31 December 2021: 0.09)
0.02 (2021412 A31H : 0.09)

45% (31 December 2021: 30%)

marketability

o]

s T

45% (2021412 A318 : 30%)

The fair value of Hengda Investment amounting to HK$80,604,000
(2021: HK$461,109,000) is determined using market approach,
which uses the price-to-book ratios of comparable listed companies
as benchmark and adjusted discount for lack of marketability. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the price-to-book ratios
and negatively correlated to the discount for lack of marketability.

As at 31 December 2022, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a decrease/increase in discount for lack of
marketability by 1% would have increased/decreased the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits by HK$1,475,000 (2021:
HK$6,587,000).

The Group's finance department performs the valuations of financial
assets required for financial reporting purpose, including Level 3 fair
values. The financial department reports directly to the executive
directors. Discussions of valuation results are held between the
executive directors and the financial department at least once every
six months, in line with the Group’s annual reporting dates. As at
31 December 2022, Hengda Investment were revalued based on
valuation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent, professionally qualified
valuation firm.

EAKRER DA {E80,604,000/ T (2021
% : 461,109,000 T) HEAMHAE
T EFERUELNREMARMNMEREA
EERHHZ MBS RBETINETHEE
DREFEEATERREFEBRERS T
BRENITEZ AR -

M2022%12A318 © MAABEHMESE
BEBETE  fHREMEREETES
B EI%  BERAEERTE S
FIREBEFIEI,FA 1,475,000 T
(20214 : 6,587,000/87T) °

AEBEHBHHREBEREENE SR
BERTEE  BEEZLLAE - UK
DHEERNRNTESER - fTEEEY
BHRz s EATR - AEEER
HEASE 7 FEREBH— - 12022
F12A318 ' BAREBREBYIEA
ERFELRAMERTEETERAERE
BAA ([hEBT]) #IT2HETRE
fib o
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

The carrying amounts of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale amounted to HK$71,020 million (2021: HK$51,176
million) and HK$11,584 million (2021: HK$18,235 million) respectively as
at 31 December 2022, which in total accounted for approximately 51%
(2021: 43%) of the Group's total assets. The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of properties under development and completed properties held
for sale according to their net realisable values based on the realisability
of these properties. Net realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s estimates of the selling price
based on prevailing market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses based on certain percentage of estimated selling price and
the anticipated costs to completion. Net realisable value for completed
properties held for sale is determined by reference to management'’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less applicable variable selling expenses. Based on management’s best
estimates, write-downs of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale to net realisable value amounted to HK$367 million
(2021: HK$135 million).

Bt At JOH B

FHEER SR A TSR (R A0 a5t R A& T
NBELRIEMRE (BREERER THRE
REENARZMANER) HKE - FREHK
FAEH B RBR - RETE - HENEEHE
AL RERNERERAR o T @A E
HTEMRFENEENRERAEFEATE
BT

B IR 3 R T B N T B
s

R2022%F12A318 © ZEFYEREERSE
ZEERMENEEED R AT1,02088 5T
(20214 : 51,176 B&EB L) k11,584 HEH
7t (20214 : 18,235 BB L) * AfhAE
BABENS51% (20214 : 43%) - KEBR
BREDNERBEGFEZCENDENTEE
FE (ERZEWENTERE D) FEERE
B ERTVENTERFEDSEEREN
MRATEEGHINERE  MRERNTEH
ERY (REGTEBN—TEILHE) kB
ARIRAET - HEREZEERMENT
BHRENSEZERBIIMAAEEER/ANE
B MAERNZEERYET - BREERE
ERN&ER BRTPVERBEFEZER
R EMBRE ERFENSERGTERET
(20214 : 135@BBETT) °
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(b)

Jritical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined at
each reporting date by independent external valuers based on a market
value assessment. Fair values of investment properties are derived using
the income capitalisation method approach. The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that require significant judgement, including
prevailing market rents, capitalisation rates and vacancy rates.

Significant judgement and assumptions are required in assessing the
fair value of the investment properties. Details of the judgement and
assumptions used in the valuation of the investment properties are
disclosed in note 16.

Current and deferred income tax

Significant judgements are required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers to be probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Land appreciation taxes

PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT") is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including land cost, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property development business in
the PRC are subject to land appreciation taxes, which have been included
in the income tax expenses. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various PRC cities and the Group has not finalised its land
appreciation tax returns with various tax authorities for certain projects.
Accordingly, judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes payable. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management’s best estimates. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expenses and provisions of land
appreciation taxes in the period in which such determination is made.

Bt Al et A B (A1)

BREMEL AR
BRENEOAAERBLINPEEMREDE
AEREHEEHOHETE - REVENDA
ETNERKREERMMOERE o AERRREAE
TERHENETEIERR - BRATHSH
® o BAMEERREER -

EFERENENR A BRBETERHE RR
& o WREWMFETHER AN HE KRR
AERHE16E

I BB AL B B
RETHEHBERRBELEAALN - RAE
FBBRT  FEXHRERREEZHEY
NERHE  HZFFRNRERBEERT RN K
NEHNEE - ABTEELBRRTE ZHRA
Z PSR RRTE SR

fin &2 B R A AKX BT A LR AR AE
HEREZEIMEHER - ARIETHE
ERRBHERMBNECHEHEE - &
ERERSRAENR -

T fE B

PEILIIEER ([HRER ) SR ER
P 1%30%£60% REH XHU - LB ERR
HENEMERBERBBLIEAAS - EEHK
ARFEDEREHER 2 JHRAX ©

AEEHBRARANTERENERAEZBAM
MEMEEY -  HEEREMGHAXA -
Al FESEATHZERECERSE TH
Rl AEBEHARETREERBHEZEL
WIRERBHEK - Rt - BELRERESR
BREANHRSERBELHE - AREAREE
BEZREMHBRAZTAR -WABEEL
BREBRBRNENEGCEE - ARZER
SYEBEXSHERMZAEHA Mg
EBREMRE -



(M

Shenzhen Investment Limited &332 %A 1R A 7]
Annual Report %3 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B 5 ok M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2.10, the lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future year.

Impairment of non-current tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair
value less costs to sell.

Management judgement is required in the area of the impairment of
tangible non-current assets particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the relevant asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continuing use of the assets; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate and growth rate
used in the calculation of the present value of the estimated cash flows as
appropriate.

Changes in relevant assumptions adopted by the Group to determine
impairment may have material impact on the estimated recoverable amount
used in the impairment test, and cause impairment in these tangible non-
current assets of the Group.

(M)

Bt Al et oA B (A1)

[ Feiib

K2 0P E SRR - HERBIKRE
HANENHENRORERR - RNEERK
FRETEEASENTRENENESHES
B AREFEITRERENTRL - HRA
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ERER - BEAMEGR  AENEERER
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M EHEAR - HEHR TR N
RYBARBFRRANEEREREREEEN
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AETHERS - TREEBEKEEREE
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Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by business units, which are organised
based on their products and services. In a manner congistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments:

=

) the property development segment engages in the development of
properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in commercial properties for
their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of
both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations, sale
of aluminum alloy products and agricultural products, provision of
construction services and other businesses.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets such as deferred tax assets,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a Group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, tax payable, an amount due to the immediate holding company,
deferred tax liabilities and other head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a Group basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before taxation from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit before taxation is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before taxation except that other income and
other gains, finance costs, net fair value gain or loss on financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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Segment information (continued) 5 /AHER (8

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the HE2022F 2021 F12 31 BIEEERETF
Group's most senior executive management for the purpose of resource AEESRTHEBABURSEEREKTHS
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the year ended 31 BREANAEERZHROEEREINMT o

December 2022 and 2021 is set out below.

Property Property Property
development investment management Manufacturing Others Total

NEBRE  MXRE  NREE Wi Eft e

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Revenue from contracts with customers EXF 7 BHARE S

SN

Recognised at a point of time RE-EREHER 25,654,000 - 19,416 607,236 423,556 26,704,208

Recognised over time F-BEERNER - - 2,831,548 - 1,147,655 3,979,203
Revenue from other sources ER DT E

Rental income REWA - 1,250,912 - - - 1,250,912
Total segment revenue PRNGEE 25,654,000 1,250,912 2,850,964 607,236 1,571,211 31,934,323
Inter-segment revenue b dlee - (55,073) (224,208 - (114,816) (394,097
Revenue from external customers TRRIMPEFMNKE 25,654,000 1,195,839 2,626,756 607,236 1,456,395 31,540,226
Segment results before decrease in fair & EMER R BRI

value of investment properties INEEE 7,603,891 496,958 203,904 70,920 (186,726) 8,188,947
Losses result from changes in fair REMELRBEBR

value of and transfer to investment SRERANEEL

properties pd 3 - (351,889 - - - (351,889
Segment results after decrease RENEDABHD®

in fair value of investment LAEEE

properties 7,603,891 145,069 203,904 70,920 (186,726) 7,837,058
Share of results of joint ventures and ~ [E(EAE R AR

associates BENALERE 425514 (29,577) 23,222 - (27,7118) 391,441
Other income HiplA 438,589
Other gains HipHG 1,811
Fair value loss of financial assets BREREANENE

measured at fair value through LEREERNAE

profit or loss, net BETE (355,845)
Corporate and other unallocated DAREMRARER

expenses (190,917)
Finance costs — net HARAFE (755,098)

Profit before taxation BB AnER 7,367,039
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 #HER ()
Property Property Property
development ~ investment management Manufacturing Others Total
NERRE  WERE  NEEE SliE Hitr an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEAL FEAL TAT TR TEL TEL
Segment assets PEEE 97,504,174 40,189,051 975,102 426,117 3,694,078 142,788,522
Corporate and other unallocated assets A FAIREMKNEEE 20,679,067
Total assets BEE 163,467,589
Segment liabilities PEERE 63,519,440 5,592,412 1,084,712 128,417 583,446 70,908,427
Corporate and other unallocated NAREMANEAR
liabilities 43,002,189
Total liabilities BafF 113,910,616
Other segment information: HitpEEH
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 167,375 65,165 49,625 7525 152,647 442,337
Interests in associates N =Nl 3,285,098 1,329,451 3,906 - 992,140 5,610,595
Interests in joint ventures iNERUNGIL Ea 8,569,576 139,122 33,508 - 94,036 8,836,242

Additions to non-current segment assets ~ FRAREIETE
during the year NREE 61,102 311,168 429,308 - 320,049 1,121,627
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Segment information (continued)
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HRER ()

Property
management

NEER
HK$'000

TR

Manufacturing
HK$'000

S

Others
it
HK$'000

TAL

Recognised at a point of time RE—ERZER 26,830,979 = = 456,448 419,231 27,706,658

Recognised over time E—BREENER - - 2,661,887 - 580,279 3,242,166
Revenue from other sources Hip R

Rental income AEWA - 1,521,631 - - - 1,521,631
Total segment revenue PREkERE 26,830,979 1,521,631 2,661,887 456,448 999,510 32,470,455
Inter-segment revenue AR (170,751) (24,204 (184,245) - (40,949)  (420,149)
Revenue from external customers ~ RFRMFEFMKE 26,660,228 1,497,427 2,477,642 456,448 958,561 32,050,306
Segment results before decrease in fair X EMERAL BRI H

value of investment properties LABEE 8,410,429 773,445 467,451 54573 299,234 10,005,132
Losses result from changes in fair RENEZAREEBLR

value of and transfer to investment ERERENEES

properties BB - (405,651) - - - (405,651)
Segment results after decrease RENEARBROE

in fair value of investment LAEEE

properties 8,410,429 367,794 467,451 54,573 299,234 9,599,481
Share of results of joint ventures and ~ FEIHRERFR

associates BENFALERR 667,578 85,806 40,089 - 49973 843,446
Other income HiMA 194,769
Other gains Hiwfg 44,256
Fair value loss of financial assets ERBERRAAEHE

measured at fair value through LEREENR

profit or loss, net BETE (6,374,271)
Corporate and other unallocated A REAM

expenses AORER (170,102)
Finance costs — net BEKAFH (489,601)
Profit before taxation BB ATRA 3,647,978
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 /AHER (H)
Property Property Property
development ~ investment management  Manufacturing Others
MEER . WERE  DEEE L it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T THIL TETL THL T
Segment assets PREE 88,242,870 41,236,192 1,734,327 133,720 3,693,379 135,040,488
Corporate and other unallocated assets A A REMKNEEE 27,725,383
Total assets BEE 162,765,871
Segment liabilities PREEE 56,247,649 4283209 866,302 43542 619,166 62,059,868
Corporate and other unallocated INSEL
liabilities KAk BE 46,336,123
Total liabilities BaE 108,395,991
Other segment information: HitaEEH
Depreciation and amortisation FEREE 149,411 58,171 44,299 6,717 136264 394,862
Interests in associates RN ER 3,624,840 1,477,764 338 - 1,098,349 6,201,291
Interests in joint ventures RAELNAER 8,579,945 177,715 29,047 - 100,294 8,887,001

Additions to non-current segment FRREIERD

assets during the year PEEE 35333 179,937 248,253 - 185072 648,595
As the Group generates substantially all of its revenues from customers ARAEER ROl EB MNP R ARE 2
domiciled in the Mainland China and majority of its non-current assets are EF - BRABMHIERBEES MR BEARE -

located in Mainland China, no geographical information is presented. WU RZHHEER -
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Revenue 6 Wi
Revenue, represents sale of completed properties, commercial and WREEENYE  BERIEERZIHE
industrial goods, rental income, property management fee income and WA - WEERBRAREMKA -
others.
Revenue from contracts with customers by major products and service lines BETEERRRBEE S cHEF L HANARE
is as follows: AR ATT -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Revenue from contracts with customers HEFZENEREEMERA
Sales of properties HEME 25,654,000 26,660,228
Property management service income MEEERBUA 2,626,756 2,477,642
Sales of industrial goods HETXEM 607,236 456,448
Others Hit 1,456,395 958,561
30,344,387 30,552,879
Revenue from other sources Hip R W =
Rental income HEWA 1,195,839 1,497 427
31,540,226 32,050,306
No single customer contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue HBZE2022F K2021F12A31BILFE - HE

during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BE-RPERMAANEBBKZE10%TAL -
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7 Expenses by nature 7 WEEEABNER
Expenses included in cost of sales and services, selling and distribution FABHERREKA HERIHER - TR
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses were analysed as BRREMERANBRASMOT :
follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TFHT
Cost of properties and inventories sold BEMERFERAK 16,734,967 15,915,974
Cost of services provided EIRERISKA 4,112,689 3,708,586
Employee benefit expenses (note 10(a)) EERAAZ (E10@) 1,519,594 1,266,633
Advertising and promotion costs BEREEHEERX 131,734 82,307
Other taxes and levies H i KM 155,678 78,593
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BERXENE 127,378 165,461
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESHH 3,035 9,541
Auditors’ remuneration ZHMB &
— Audit services — ZEUR 4,655 4,818
— Non-audit services — FERER 2,110 1,325
Others Hith 673,218 571,985
Total cost of sales and services, selling and HERRBAA - HERDHER -
distribution expenses, administrative expenses THEAREMERRARE
and other expenses 23,465,058 21,805,223
8  Other income 8  HAtgA
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Interest income MEKA 161,476 102,073
Government grant B 8) 46,055 41,005
Relocation compensation income REBHERA 165,619 =
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL ~ BBBREALBHEZEMEE
REHA 2,090 2,036
Others Hith 63,349 49,655

438,589 194,769




9  Other gains

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and
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9  HfFI

2022
20225

2021
20214
HK$'000

T8

HK$’000
TR

HENK - BERSEN

equipment FE 1,811 12,281
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR M F ik - 31,975
1,811 44,256

10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of

directors
(a) Employee benefit expenses

10 SR B2 DA B 3 2 F ) Rt

(a) fRERA G

2022 2021

20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

2022 F 20214

Wages and salaries TENE® 1,240,576 1,003,113
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRERA — TREETEE 278,342 260,065
Share options granted to directors and employee BT EZE R (EE 7 Bk E 676 3,455
Total employee benefit expenses EERIFAX A% 1,519,594 1,266,633
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 {EEBA B A RE S 2w RrEzs (5)
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (b) HEFME
The remuneration of each director and chief executive officer of the ARRBSEZRITREE 2 FMEZIMT
Company is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022: HBZE2022F12A31BILEE -

Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Equity settled
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option
fees in kind bonuses contributions expense

e DRAZAN

RER _Hfhg ZIERRE
20k BN E KR TEER BiX ast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TiERn TER TER

Executive directors HTES

Lu Hua aE - 3,300 1,417 756 - 5,473

Wang Yuwen (i) T 23ii) - 261 54 1 - 316

Huang Wei (i) BE() - - 715 165 - 880

Cai Xun g - 687 1,472 378 - 2,537

Xu Enli (i) B - 1,030 2,301 623 - 3,954

Shi Xiaomei PEE 330 - - - - 330

330 5,278 5,959 1,923 - 13,490

Non-executive directors FHTES

Dong Fang (i (ii) E0]0] - - 931 212 - 1,143

Independent B

non-executive directors FHTES

Li Wai Keung TEH 380 - - - - 380

Wu Wai Chung, Michael (ii) RIEE i) 330 - - - - 330

Wong Yau Kar, David BRE 380 - - - - 380

Gong Peng (i) =i - - - - - -
1,090 - - - - 1,090

1,420 5,278 6,890 2,135 - 15,723
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of
directors (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b)

M

(it

(i)

On 30 March 2022, Huang Wei resigned as an executive director and president of
the Company. On the same day, re-designation of Dong Fang from an executive
director of the Company to a non-executive director of the Company.

On 22 December 2022, Wang Yuwen appointed as an executive director and
president of the Company. On the same day, Xu Enli appointed as an executive
director. Dong Fang resigned as a non-executive director. In addition, Dong Fang
voluntarily waives all compensation of 2022, including discretionary bonuses and
retirement scheme contributions.

On 31 December 2022, Wu Wai Chung, Michael retired as an independent non-
executive director. On the same day, Gong Peng was appointed as a independent
non-executive director.

Salary paid to a director of the Company is generally an emolument paid
or payable in respect of that person’s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries.

10 & B AR 2 DL R e 2 4 ) Sl ()

(b) HEFHME ()
() 2022438308 @ REBRITARGNRT
EEFRYE - BB EARAARNITES
AEBAARFENITES -

iy 20226128228 TENXNEZETALR
BIMITESNEH - AR REFIEZTA
WITEE - EHEFHEIIENITES - ItHh - B
T EERE222FMEME - BENETE
I RRIK GBI -

@iy 2022128318 » REEREMTELIEH
TEZ-FAA - SHEZTABMYIENTE
$ °

ENARRIESZHEAR ARKATEARAHK
HI R A F 8 B R B A MRS T S (B
e -
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 {EEBA B A RE S 2w RrEzs (5)
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (b) HEHEME ()
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BZE2021F12 831 BILEE ¢
Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Equity settled
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme  share option
fees in kind bonuses contributions expense
, ‘ DRA A
@ ; , / RIS IR \
EEiEa M= IETES RS A¥ et
HK$'000 HK$'000 ’ HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAr 7 BT TAT TAx
Executive directors HTES
Lu Hua EES = 3,304 1,007 690 179 5,180
Huang Wei =0 - 2,174 883 547 170 3,774
Cai Xun 22 = 638 758 149 - 1,545
Dong Fang EV] = 664 1,657 471 38 2,830
Shi Xiaomei (i) LEE() 110 = = = = 110
Liu Shichao (i) 3t () 220 - - - - 220
330 6,780 4,305 1,857 387 13,659
Independent B
non-executive directors FBTES
Li Wai Keung FEH 380 - - - - 380
Wu Wai Chung, Michael REE® 330 - - - - 330
Wong Yau Kar, David BERE 380 - - - - 380
1,090 - - - - 1,090
1,420 6,780 4,305 1,857 387 14,749
() On 27 August 2021, Liu Shichao resigned as an executive director. On the same () M20214E8H27H @ BIHBEEMITES -

day, Shi Xiaomei was appoints as an executive director of the Company. BB @ LEEEZERANRIMTES -
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10 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 10 & B AP REF 2wl RbEzs (4)
directors (continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees (c) AABRFEH
The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors AEEZh4ERHEEBEZREE (2021
(2021: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note F:=REE) ZEEFIMWEFBERNLEX
10(b) above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two BizE10(b) « A TRI% (202145 : W) IEARD
(2021: two) non-director highest paid employees of the Company are as AESV BT EERAFEZMEFBNT ¢
follows:

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
F# 7 7T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, share options, EZ&%4 - BE28L - BRE

other allowances and benefits in kind Hib 28 R EYH = 6,487 6,291
Discretionary bonuses By BTEAL 2,132 1,137
Contribution to pension scheme BREEEIHER 716 27

9,335 7,455
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration REZH . WeBUTEESSHESHE
fell within the following bands is as follows: mF : -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,001 %4,000,000/5 T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 4,000,001 7L 26,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2
Note: Share options were granted to one (2021: one) non-director highest paid employees Mz —& (Q021F : — %) &ZaFHEERES
in respect of his services to the Group, further details of which are included in the BAREBREMERERE  GHEE—
disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair value of these options, SHBDHRNPERRMFAIOZEES
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, RN - ZEMREZ DA E (HERER
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial HERBERARR) ERRE AHE
statements for the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid 7E ﬁﬁ%ﬁ')\zﬁifg,ﬁﬁ‘ﬁiﬁ%Z%%ﬁE%ﬁ'
employees’ remuneration disclosures. AEXBRESFINZERHEENE 2H

BARR -
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11 Finance costs — net

11

85 A

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAET
Finance income BB A
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITFHFEHA (216,591) (247,787)
Finance costs: BIRERAS -
— Interest expenses of bank loans —RITEF 2RSS 1,024,613 762,493
— Interest expenses of other borrowings —HipEEZFIEAY 405,783 242 587
— Lease liabilities —MHERR 10,759 27,540
— Loans from the ultimate holding company — REGEERARZER 565,184 201,610
— Loans from the immediate holding company — REERERARZER 61,573 29,467
— Loans from fellow subsidiaries — RERZMBAR ZEK 71,536 97,025
— Loans from a joint venture —RE—REERAIZER 7,492 4,781
— Loans from an other related company —RE—MAEMBEB AR ZER 7,699 7,968
— Loans from non-controlling interests — REERER B 425,142 12,080
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not ~ WIFEBERE DA EHEY
at fair value through profit or loss CREEZN AT % 2,579,781 1,385,551
Interest accrued on contract liabilities RMBBERTZHE - 187,682
2,579,781 1,573,233
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets i : G EREEEMMLEHE (1,608,092) (835,845)
971,689 737,388
Finance costs — net B R AN R 5E 755,098 489,601

Finance costs have been capitalised on qualifying assets at average rate of
3.85% for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 3.2%).

HZE2022F12A31B - FE - 8BEREENH
R AR E 123.85% (20214 : 3.2%) FH X
EARA o
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12 Income tax expenses 12 FifdBipd
(a) Income tax expenses (a) FifSBiEA %
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current income tax T EH
— Mainland China CIT — RBIRREEEH 2,165,554 2,202,634
— Withholding tax on dividend — REFEHH 112,208 54,567
— LAT in Mainland China — B ARE L B AT 3,778,584 4,078,029
6,056,346 6,335,230
Deferred income tax EEMEHR
— Mainland China CIT — RBIARECEREH (824,491) (531,589)
— Withholding tax on dividend — REFEHH 17,038 159,808
— LAT in Mainland China — REARE L IEER (337,198) (215,218)
(1,144,651) (586,999)

4,911,695 5,748,231
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12
(a)

Income tax expenses (continued)

Income tax expenses (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profits of the entities of the
Group as follows:

12 Fifasibi s (80)

(a) FrfBipasE (80
$’§@B%%HIJm?’FUURIEﬁ%lJEA@E)ﬂ$E@ i
HAMERCHEELZERERE - BT -

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
Profit before income tax BR S B AT 8 A 7,367,039 3,647,978
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated — #&& & EAH K5t E 2 B H A
at the rates applicable to the respective tax filz BEHIE
jurisdictions 1,683,799 918,926
Profits less losses attributable to joint ventures A& /A &) J B &1 BI e (8 FI3R
and associates g (111,060) (210,862)
Income not subject to tax BEMT 2 WA (31,067) (112,923)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRAZHEBRZHEYE 452,532 1,655,745
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses utilised HACBTFENERBINEYE (136,987) (302)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised AEERAZ BB ZE Y HKTE 189,964 243,588
Expenses not deductible for tax TEMB 2 FAX 154,229 142,574
Effect of withholding tax on distributable profits of 252 B Bl A FERH B A 7] Al £ 9 )k
the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China B MR E 129,246 214,375
LAT THIEEM 3,441,386 3,862,811
LAT deductible for PRC CIT purpose SR Bl RSB AT 4R 2 T HE (T (860,347) (965,701)
Income tax expense Frfa B 4,911,695 5,748,231

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as
the Group has no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong
for year (2021: nil).

No provision for taxation has been recognised for companies incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), as they are not subject to any tax during
the year (2021: nil).

Under the relevant income tax law, the Mainland China subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT") at a statutory rate of 25% on their
respective taxable income during the year.

BE2022F12A31BLFE - BENER
BEREBETANMGTERTEAIZ16.5% (2021
F :16.5%) <BEHE - ARAREREAT
BERBEAEEIRIERTEN - MU ERSE
BRERERES (2021F : &) -

ARERBRAES ([RBRRES]) MK
VHRRRAFEBRGMEMBE - Bt
EREDEMTUARRE (20215 : &) -

REREMAERE - FA - FEAENERF
AR BERBMAREE R R 25%HMDEH
B8 ([REMER]) °
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12 Income tax expenses (continued) 12 FifaBiB 2 ()

(a) Income tax expenses (continued) (a) PSR (4)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT’) is levied at progressive rates ranging from THUEER ([ TEER ) #I g ESHE
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from 30%ZE60% REM B - THIEE IR B
sale of properties less deductible expenditures including amortisation of ENEMSRBENEELI B FERESE - E£5
land use rights, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures. AR A ERE S HEAZ TIRAS
Dividend withholding income tax REFBHFTZH
Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for Implementation BRECCERBREZERMAA) - PRHAAN
of the Corporate Income Tax Law, dividends distributed from the profits 20084F1 A1 B ARG B A LG EIMEE
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their foreign EHRE - ER10%MHEBMABH o (P E
investors shall be subject to a withholding income tax of 10%. A lower 5% MBRRAMEZEZERARRETEESE ZHE
withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding companies BREFBERHTEEARBERES - AIATE
of the PRC subsidiaries are qualified as tax residents of Hong Kong FARIEMS%ENFHE o

according to the tax treat arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, deferred income tax HZE2022F K2021F12A31BLFE - AR
liabilities had been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable BB AR ERATEERRYERADKEF
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the PRC, as these ERIINERAT  MAKEERFERBAR
earnings are expected to be distributed by the PRC subsidiaries and would K% S RAFHERINMEH -

be remitted to their overseas holding companies in the foreseeable future.

13 Earnings per share 13 HREF
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable FRREAREF IERAD AR R RIS TR
to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary DR NE BT BRINET9HE -

shares in issue during the year.

Profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of the AArERBRREG R
Company (HK$'000) (B8E) (F%1) 2,085,418 (2,721,886)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ~ F A 2 247 L @ R INiEF 35 &1
issue during the year 8,899,105,992 8,899,893,115
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the effect of conversion HBZE2022F %2021F12A31BLFE - @i
of share option scheme (note 30) were anti-dilutive and the diluted earnings BT E) (MIFE30) P2 EREE - FTE

per share for the year is therefore equal to the basic earnings per share. NEREERFEGRERZDFRESE -
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14 Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:

Final dividend declared for 2021 — HK8 cents
per share (2021: declared for 2020 — HK11 cents
per share) (note (a))

14 KB

BRAREFAD RIS :

2021 FERAHME — TS
Bl (20214 : 202055 R A H
B8 — &A1) (FisE(a))

2022
2022

2021
20214
HK$'000
FHT

HK$’000
TR

Cash e 711,903 978,988
711,903 978,988
Dividend declared in respect of current period: AEEER B
Interim dividend for 2022 — HK3 cents per share 2022 F TR RS — FRIE
(2021: HK7 cents per share) (note (b)) (20214 : BRR7HEA)
(H5E (D)) 266,964 622,993
978,867 1,601,981

The Company declared a final dividend of HK8.00 cents per share in respect of year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$711,903,000. The final
dividend has been paid in cash on 6 July 2022.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share in respect of
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$978,988,000. The
final dividend has been paid in cash on 8 July 2021.

The Company declared an interim dividend of HK3.00 cents (2021: HK7.00 cents)
per share amounted to HK$266,964,000 (2021: HK$622,993,000), which were
fully paid in cash (2021: HK$622,993,000 were fully paid in cash).

On 29 March 2023, the board of directors recommends a final dividend of
HK12.00 cents per share, amounted to HK$ 1,067,855,000, for the year ended
31 December 2022. The proposed final dividends for the year are subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. The
amount of the final dividend for 2022 was calculated on the basis of 8,898,793,115
shares in issue as at 29 March 2023.

AABEREE2021F12A31BIEEEZ
REARR B &A% 8.00/51L - & #£49711,903,000
BT > REIIR BB R2022F7 F6 B AR &
XAt e

ARG ERBE2020F12 8318 1L F
BZRPBKEFKI1.0081WL - 654
978,988,00078 7T » R HARZ BB M 2021F7 A
8AIR S -

RRABEIRFP RS F83.00/810 (2021
F 1 7.0081M) - 4 3£266,964,000/8 7T
(20214F : 622,993,000/87T) » EREHIATR
A+ (20214 : 622,993,000/ 7T E B EUA
BeI) -

7R2023F3F29H - EEEHHE 2022512
B3 BIEFERZREGR12.008M - &
$£1,067,855,000/8 7T 2 REARR B o ANFE#R
IR 7R HA A% BB AN R B A% R FE FE A SR
FAEGEHAETRFERRAAERBE
& ° 2022F 2 KA B &5 H iR B 72023
#3H29H 22 %178,898,793, 115 A& 1D 51
:é_ °
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15 Property, plant and equipment 15 93 ~ BRE K

Furniture,
Plantand Transportation  fitting and  Construction
Building machinery equipment equipment  in progress

i - RBR

BT REREE  EBRG R ERIR
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T&n TEn TER TEn TR TER

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2022F12531H

Opening net book amount HOERFE 3,473,667 45,988 16,028 81,739 2,729,787 6,347,209
Additions NE 141,711 18,226 1,795 18,474 679,221 859,427
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EREERIR 2,008,400 1,166 - 40 (2,009,606) -
Derecognition of right-of-use assets RIEAFRREE (16,401) - - - - (16,401)
Other decreases 0000 (29,189) (497) (456) (1062  (50,646) (81,850
Depreciation g (3967000 (11,209) @0 (20,738) - @719
Exchange differences ERES (282,574) (2,725) (674) (3,682) (226,236) (515,891)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 4,898,914 50,955 12,616 741N 1,122,520 6,159,776
At 31 December 2022 120225128318

Cost KA 6,861,326 123,371 107,178 436,117 1,122,520 8,650,512
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (1962412)  (72416)  (94562)  (361,346) - (2,490,736)

Net hook amount REFE 4,898,914 50,955 12,616 74,171 1,122,520 6,159,776
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15 43 ~ Wi Rt (A1)

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Furniture,
Plant and  Transportation fitting and - Construction
Building machinery equipment equipment in progress Total
B BER
BT ERTE &l FRIE #5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT T TAT TAT TAT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021512431H
LEE
Opening net book amount BNREE 3,186,789 34,726 11,895 64,395 2,984,668 6,282,473
Additions HRE 424,841 21,320 7,231 23,976 162,817 640,185
Transfer from/(to) investment properties  B&g& /(F) k&N 1,508 = = = (39,686) (38,178)
Transfer from completed properties ERARBEGEZEER
held for sale U 122,142 - - - - 122,142
Transfer from construction in progress ~ E&AEERIR 22,599 - - - (22,599) =
Derecognition of right-of-use assets BIERICAREE (4,450) - - - - (4,450)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - (466) - (466)
Other decreases EfE (42,536) (1,955) 92) (1245  (437,842)  (483,670)
Depreciation ik (350,791) (9,250) (3,380) (21,900) = (385,321)
Exchange differences EXES 113,565 1,147 374 16,979 82,429 214,494
Closing net book amount BREEFE 3,473,667 45,988 16,028 81,739 2,129,787 6,347,209
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12R31R
Cost A 5,039,379 107,201 106,514 422,346 2,129,787 8,405,227
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (1,565,712) (61,213) (90,486) (340,607) - (2,058,018
Net book amount REE 3,473,667 45,988 16,028 81,739 2,129,787 6,347,209
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15 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15 91 ~ R K ()
Depreciation charge was capitalised or expensed in the following categories MEER N RINGAEMBRRERIEGE WKL
in the consolidated statement of financial position or the consolidated AT ERIE R bR

income statement respectively:

2022 2021
2022% 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Properties under development BRPYE 58,079 20,661
Cost of sales HEKR 247,261 199,199
Selling and marketing costs BHEETSERER 10,115 493
Administrative expenses TTHR X 117,263 164,968
432,718 385,321
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's land and buildings in Mainland China R2022F12A318 » ZEERPEKES
with a net book value of HK$22,844,000 (2021:HK$20,445,000) were BZEMFEE /22,844,000 T (20214 -
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank and other borrowings to secure 20,445,000%7T) <& T i RIEFEEA -
bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(b)). ERBAEBERBITERZER (E310) -
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not yet obtained the MW2022F12A318 » AEERAREEDFE
ownership title certificates in respect of buildings with net book value of #£2,043,816,000/ 7L (20214 : 720,660,000

HK$2,043,816,000 (2021: HK$720,660,000). BIL) ZEFZBEREEE -
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16 HEME
BARBEAEZEERIREDE

16 Investment properties
Completed investment properties at fair value:

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER BT
At 1 January M1 A1H 37,327,911 35,650,870
Transfer from completed properties held for sale EREFEGEZEERME 2,079,100 1,026,510
Transfer to completed properties held for sale EREREGEZEERDE (1,563,709) =
Transfer from property under development EREEETYE 671,722 =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HREAME - BERHE - 38,179
Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer to =~ EEEREMEBERARNLEES
investment properties 42,023 (120,163)
Decrease in fair value of investment properties BREMERRERD (393,912) (285,488)
Exchange differences PR ERR (3,036,136) 1,018,003
At 31 December MW12831H 35,126,999 37,327,911
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment R EMENBHFERA LS ¢
properties:
— Rental income 52N 1,195,839 1,497,427
Loss arising from changes in fair value of and RENENLEEPRERE
transfer to investment properties represent: REYEESE 2 EEE -
— Revaluation gain/(loss) upon transfer of properties ~ — BB RDYE RIFEFE Y
under development and completed properties BERMEN Sk
held for sale (88X) 42,023 (120,163)
— Fair value and revaluation loss — AREREMRBX (393,912) (285,488)
(351,889) (405,651)
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Investment properties (continued)

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$10,357,339,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$2,227,999,000) have not yet been issued
by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining
the relevant certificates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties with
a net carrying value of approximately HK$14,282,804,000 (2021:
HK$8,334,326,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (note 31(b)).

Fair value hierarchy

The Group's investment properties are located in Mainland China and are
held under medium lease terms. The Group's investment properties were
revalued at 31 December 2022 based on valuation performed by JLL.

The Group's investment properties are all at Level 3 valuation. The Group’s
property managers and the general manager of financial management
department have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each
reporting date.

16

(a)

BEME (H)
R2022F12A31BHZEEFEYD
£10,357,339,0008 T (2021 F
2,227,999,000/87) 2 AKEE FIREWEH
REFBAEDIREMEREE - XEBDE
PEIRMEE CFE -

R2022F12A31H » XREEKE®EFE
#A14,282,804,0008 L (20214 -
8,334,326,000/87T) 2IREMEC KR - ER
FEEERBOTERER (KEE31(0) °

VARSI

AEE 2B EEHRIRA A BIARE K AR ERL
FARE o AREZREMEN2022512 A 31
BREMERTHETZHETUER -

AEECHENZEHRBAE=RME - 1
BHREAETHRER - AREMERLE R
BEEMALCEeRAEMImAERR LR
(1=
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16 &EME ()

16 Investment properties (continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (a) ARMEEHEH (5)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to IWTEKEMEREMAZHEREREERA
the valuation of investment properties: EZHE

Investment properties-commercial

properties and others

REME - BERDEREL

Valuation
techniques

fh1E7 %

Income capitalisation
method

WAET O

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABRBAE

Vacancy rate

wEE

Capitalisation rate

2% — 25%

(31 December 2021:

2% — 25%
(2021412 A31H

3% —7%

2% — 60%)

: 2% — 60%)

(31 December 2021: 3% — 7%)
B ® 3% ~7%

(2021512H31H : 3% — 7%)
Monthly rental 15 - 502
(RMB/square meter/month) (31 December 2021: 15 — 484)
AlE 15 — 502
(ARE/FHX/R) (2021512A318 : 15 - 484)

Residual method Vacancy rate 10% — 15%
(31 December 2021: N/A)
FdE FEX 10% — 15%

(20214128318 : TEH)
Capitalisation rate 5% — 6%

(31 December 2021: N/A)
BAR(EE 5% — 6%

(20214128318 : TERH)
Monthly rental 30 - 140
(RMB/square meter/month) (31 December 2021: N/A)
AME 30 - 140 -
(AEBE/FHX/R) (20215128318 : TER)
Estimated developer’s profit 7% — 8%
margins (31 December 2021: N/A)
EEFEAMNEEX 7% — 8% -

(2021124318 : @A)



16 Investment properties (continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Investment properties-car parking

space

REMF — FEl

VETEL)
techniques

5187 %

Income capitalisation
method

WAB LA

Residual method

R
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16 #EWFE (8)
(a) ARMELRHE (B)

Significant
unohservable inputs

EXTAEERAE

Vacancy rate

Capitalisation rate

3% — 25%

(31 December 2021:

3% — 25%
(2021412 A31H

4%

3% — 60%)

: 3% — 60%)

(31 December 2021: 4%)
BARfEER 4%

(2021512318 : 4%)
Monthly rental 250 — 850
(RMB per car parking space (31 December 2021: 250 — 850)
per month)
A %ﬁ&l 250 — 850
(BEEFEEMNSAARET) (2021F12A318 : 250 - 850)
Vacancy rate 20% — 25%

(31 December 2021: N/A)
FEX 20% — 25%

(2021123318 : TEA)
Capitalisation rate 3% — 4%

(31 December 2021: N/A)
B ® 3% — 4%

(2021128318 + ~ERA)
Monthly rental 250 — 300
(RMB per car parking space (31 December 2021: N/A)
per month)
AlE , 250 — 300 -
(BRAFEMSAARET) (2021512A318 : TER)
Estimated developer's profit 7% — 8%
margins (31 December 2021: N/A)
CRIGESEEIRS 7% — 8% -

(2021F12A331H + ~ER)
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16
(a)

Investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in the Mainland China is
determined using income capitalisation method and residual method.

Income capitalisation method determines fair values by discounting the
projected cash flows associated with the properties using capitalisation
rates. The valuation takes into account expected market rental growth and
vacancy rate of the respective properties. The discount rates used have
been adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings and the tenant
credit quality. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected market rental growth, and negatively correlated to the vacancy
rate and the capitalisation rate.

The residual method takes into account the residual value of the gross
development value (“GDV") after deduction of the outstanding construction
costs and expenses as well as profit element. It involves firstly the
assessment of the aggregate GDV of the proposed development, as if
completed, as at the valuation date. Estimated costs of the proposed
development include construction costs, marketing expense, professional
fee, finance charges and associated costs, plus an allowance for the
developer's risk and profit. The outstanding development costs are then
deducted from the GDV and the resultant figure is the residual value of the
subject property.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 15 years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to reflect market rentals.
Certain leases include variable lease payment terms that are based on the
revenue of tenants.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future periods
as follows:

16
(a)

BEME ()

ARIEEHRH (H)
AEEURFEAEZRENERABRARA
BRMUERRBE T AERTE -

BKABRMOEEBRAER R REBNEL
BAREREBELAE - ARMEZEIS
NEZBRATSHEERNZER - IAKR
ZNRETHNERRMHAREPEEEXRIE

HAE - ApEFEERATSASERER
B hEZERRENMCRAEE -

Kepss AR REEL R EREENZEK
K AXURERMBRORBKEE - R
BRAERRESEREBNGERDERNA
AHARREE - RRERBANGHRARE
BEKA - MBHEXL - EXER - MKE
FACA R ARRERK A+ 55 100 7 A0 L B T B
o R T A R B R A %Eﬁ@$w
fr - AR RN RNFIRER

R 84 L 2 R B

AEERBEEHEHEREDE - BH—K
NERMIESF  YAERIHAEER R
%Eﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂm HENK—KEFEM
ARBTmSHEE - ETHRORSERE
ﬁ%ﬁmT“ﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬂ

AEERARBE RN RE AR L2 TA
BB EHE RBMBHEENTMT

2022
20225
HK$’000
TER

2021
20214
HK$'000

T

Within one year —FR 1,015,247 789,594
After one year but within five years —FREAFR 1,883,750 1,614,095
After five years hF% 675,902 519,532

3,574,899 2,923,221
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17 Leases 17 ME
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial  (a) WEFAMBERRNERZZ L%
position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the following REMBHARBRATEEEER &8 ¢

amounts relating to leases:

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHAT
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Buildings gF 164,114 307,633
164,114 307,633
Lease liabilities HESE
Current nE 62,613 140,842
Non-current FEnE 128,177 254,873
190,790 395,715
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2022 financial year were 2022FHBFEREAN - AEERAREESR
HK$65,746,000 (2021: HK$81,149,000). 65,746,000% 7% (20214 : 81,149,000
JT) °
(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss (b) MR EMERZ EH
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets was HK$100,549,000 (2021: FREEEZIHERZA100,549,0008 T
HK$46,577,000). Expenses relating to short-term leases and low-value (20214 : 46,577,000/67T) - BEARER
assets was HK$23,650,000 (2021: HK$20,293,000) and HK$2,064,000 EEEEERB A% 54/23,650,000% T
(2021: HK$603,000) respectively. (20214 : 20,293,000/87C) ;2,064,000 T
(20214 : 603,000/ 7T) °
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was HK$171,401,000 (2021: 2022FHE 7R ML BEA171,401,000%

HK$155,656,000). 7t (20214 : 155,656,00087T) °
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18 MR HE

18 Intangible assets

Patents,
trademarks
and other
rights

Concession
Goodwill right

Computer
software

X - mER
Rt R

HK$'000
TEn

hCt L aE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER

HK$'000
TiEn

fast
HK$'000
TiEn

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2022F12831H
J1%:3:5

Opening net book amount HEEFE 4,451 53,889 22,072 437,700 518,112
Additions NE 13,407 5,333 - 243,107 261,847
Amortisation B (18) (8,099) - (10,131) (18,248)
Exchange differences ERES (849) (2,563) (1,870) (33,459) (38,741)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 16,991 48,560 20,202 637,217 722,970
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 8318

Cost AR 20,246 87,234 381,982 680,807 1,170,269
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  Z:tE i KA (3,255) (38,674) (361,780) (43,590) (447,299)
Net book amount RERE 16,991 48,560 20,202 637,217 722,970
Year ended 31 December 2021 8220215128318

ILEE

Opening net book amount HREFE 121 58,486 381,982 = 440,589
Additions AE 6,365 2,043 = 437,700 446,108
Amortisation B (935) (8,606) - = (9,541)
Impairment charge REER - - (365,457) - (365,457)
Exchange differences EHEE (1,100) 1,966 5,547 = 6,413
Closing net book amount BRREFE 4,451 53,889 22,072 437,700 518,112
At 31 December 2021 120215128318

Cost KA 6,839 81,901 381,982 437,700 908,422
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  E:HE KA (2,388) (28,012) (359,910) = (390,310)
Net book amount REFE 4 451 53,889 22,072 437,700 518,112

19 Investments in joint ventures

Unlisted

FLEm

19 MEBEARZHRE

2022
2022

HK$'000
TER

8,836,242

2021
20214

HK$'000
TAT

8,887,001
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARAZEE (H)
Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures, which is accounted for FREREINGENBRRAR RSB 2
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as BEDEFENT -
follows:

Nominal value of Place of Ownership Voting Profit -~ Principal activities
registered capital  registration interest power sharing and place of operation

HMEXHEE aftE AARER RER BASZ IERBRERBE

Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000 PRC 50 50 50  Property development and
Development Company Limited property investment in the
(‘Langtong’) PRC

AMEERESEREERAR  AK100,000,0007 Gl 50 50 50 RABRREMERER
([888@)) NERE

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park US$62,000,000 PRC 37.53" 50 37.53*  Property investment and
(Group) Company Limited* development in the PRC
(‘Tianan”)

AREB (@) BRAR" 62,000,000% T HE 37.53* 50 3753 RAERENFRERFAE
(TRZ])

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000 PRC 51 50 51 Provision of land development
Development Limited (‘Taizhou service in the PRC
Shum Yip”)

FNDAXRARRAERAR  AKRH100,000,0007 il 51 50 51 RABRELHRRRS
(THHFE)

Shum King Company Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 50 50 50  Property development and
(“Shum King") property investment in Hong

Kong

RHBRAR ([FH]) 2B B 50 50 50 E@g?ﬁ?ﬁé%%%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ‘&%%&

Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate RMB69,832,402 PRC 14.28 14.28 14.28  Property development and
Development Company property investment in the
Limited* * (Pik Sum”) PRC

BNEREHERZERAR"  AKY69,832,4027T il 14.28 14.28 1428 RPERENEREARDER
(IB#% A

The 50% ownership interest in Tianan is held by Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) * R & 50% P A HE 48 ai i — A AR & B 15 AR
Company Limited (“Shum Yip Terra’), a 75.05% non-wholly owned subsidiary of 75.05% 2 IE 2 A M B A 7R /7v< B
the Group. Therefore, the Group’s effective ownership interest and profit sharing is B) ROBBRAR ([RER e DA -
37.53%. W+ A5 B B BB A A 2 R F S B 1
37.53% °
** 0n 9 February 2018, the Group entered into investment agreements with * 20184 2A9 E CAEBBEEMNBERE
Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited (‘Pik Sum’) by ﬂﬂEEﬁ?’éﬁﬁﬁ Al ([B3x]) FI R E
contributing RMB9,972,000 (equivalent to HK$11,381,000) for joint control of Pik ﬁiﬂ&ﬁ/\ﬁ“&% 972,0007T (FHER
Sum to engage in a property development project in Panyu, Guangzhou. Although 11 381,000 75, ) £ R4 #l E*’ﬁiﬁi%m%
the Group’s effective ownership interests in Pik Sum was only 14.28%, all the %Z*IEWJ%B%%IEE BEAEERER
decisions about significant operating, financing and investing activities of Pik Sum Z,‘F”Ffrﬁ%ﬁé S1E1514.28% - BETEEE
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control and as such, Pik Sum EREALE  WHREEEHZREN
is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. = H T ﬁéz FIRAIEE —BRAE -

ERBAKEELRAINE -
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REEARZERE ()
(a) The movement of investments in joint ventures is as follows: (a) RABRRIZEZEZHNT :
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Share of net assets: EHEEFE :
Opening balances AN Bk 8,887,001 8,060,608
Addition N 150,163 117,137
Share of results 1L 34 530,151 568,058
Share of other comprehensive income LM 2 A (31,821) 5,736
Dividends Ba (41,165) (24,396)
Exchange differences PR ZER (658,087) 159,858
Closing balances HIRERA 8,836,242 8,887,001
()  There were no commitments relating to the Group’s interests in the () AEEREGELREEESELRE -

joint ventures.



19 Investments in joint ventures (continued)

(b)

material joint ventures

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in
respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:
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19 REBEARAZEE (H)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for  (b) TFHEIIREEEEAF M MHEERHE

2022
2022

HK$'000
TR

TRINGHBENRE - HEWABILENS
ARRERELBEY HRBEERBHRRALZ
FREE -

2021
20214

HK$'000

THT

Current assets MEEE 654,614 1,004,407
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,803,904 2,100,400
Current liabilities mPARE (112,046) (538,449)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (9,212) (7,470)
Net assets EEZFE 2,337,260 2,558,888
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FSALMEEREE -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 255,009 696,515
Revenue Wogs 133,661 247,058
Profit for the year FRmF 65,582 42,299
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEENGZEE 65,582 42 299
Dividend received from Langtong BUSRE 2 BB - -
Included in the above profit: FIAFEF]
Depreciation and amortisation MEREHE (28,281) (18,026)
Interest income MEBKA 19,582 20,442
Income tax expense FTisfiFA Y 21,937 14,195
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HRARZAEERGE AT Z

joint venture: B
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBFEEZ L 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture AEBDERENREEFE 1,168,630 1,279,444
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by the Group AEBRERCWEDE 6,116 6,116
Carrying amount of the investment REZREE 1,174,746 1,285,560
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARAZEE (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for  (b) TEIIRTEEEEAFMMHEERHE (4)
material joint ventures (continued)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

TRINTHBENRE - HEBRZHERNS
AERREREHBRYHRAREFAMBERE
NZEHEE :

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET THIT
Current assets RBEE 22,562,652 23,152,407
Non-current assets FRBEE 10,008,819 9,952,962
Current liabilities MENBE (14,405,130) (14,750,273)
Non-current liabilities FREEE (8,924,296) (8,796,300
Net assets BEFE 9,242,045 9,558,796
Less: non-controlling interests B IR (374,189) (293,132)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of the ~ AR A RIEZRRELEEFE
joint venture 8,867,856 9,265,664
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALAEERERE -
Cash and cash equivalents ReKReEEY 2,790,146 2,797,453
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other REISREE (TOEE S REM
payables and provisions) ENF R E) (5,430,307) (5,746,335)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ JERELBER (TREEHLE
other payables and provisions) f e R B e ) 8,742,016 8,569,220
Revenue Yrzs 4,814,509 3,771,905
Profit for the year FREAM 457,369 407,599
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEK BT 457,369 407,599
Included in the above profit: FIA LR -
Depreciation and amortisation WEREHE (28,066) (26,917)
Interest income FEBHRA 13,603 28,730
Interest expense FEBRE (192,663) (135,456)
Income tax expense G b3 (182,766) (161,507)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEARZAEERGEATZ
joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEEMBREZLA 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture AEBDIEEENREEFE 4,433,928 4,632,832
Loan to the joint venture BTRERRZER 168,325 183,465
Carrying amount of the investment BEZREE 4,602,253 4,816,297




19
(b)

Investments in joint ventures (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for (b)

material joint ventures (continued)

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect
of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

19 A&
THRIAREESGEAR NP BEERNE (5)
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BAFRZRE (8)

2022
2022

HK$'000
TR

TRITHBERARE - DAERRMNAERE
e HRERELARY HRAEZHBERE
NZEEE :

2021
20214

HK$'000

THT

Current assets RBBE 3,957,802 4,340,147
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,263,721 3,170,742
Current liabilities mEEE (3,568,818) (3,443,388)
Non-current liabilities FRBAR (1,175,456) (1,834,650)
Net assets BE%E 2,477,249 2,232,851
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FIALAEERBRE -
Cash and cash equivalents BehREEEY 373,020 580,900
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ JERBEFMAE (FBEEIH R

other payables and provisions) Hib AR R EE) (1,175,456) (1,834,650)
Revenue ek 1,378,246 1,502,369
Profit for the year FREM 450,686 583,233
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEENGZEE 450,686 583,233
Included in the above profit: FIALIEF -
Depreciation and amortisation IE R (117) (210)
Interest income IISEON - 1,640
Interest expense FEMAZ (64,256) (87,222)
Income tax expense FEHRAX (150,229) (194,411)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HRARZAEEAREGE AT

joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBFEEZ LG 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEHE 1,263,397 1,138,754
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19 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 19 REBEARZEE ()
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for  (b) T#EIIRTEEABAAMBEERHE ()
material joint ventures (continued)

The following table sets out the summarised financial information in respect TRITHBEERBE - NEBAIREMNE
of Shum King adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and MR EREL AR UHRARENBHRERALZ
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements: REE :
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T
Current assets RBBE 5,103,953 4,429,793
Current liabilities MEBE (84,881) (135,724)
Non-current liabilities FREEE (5,089,350) (4,321,264)
Net liabilities BEHE (70,278) (27,195)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FIALAEERERE -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY 29,346 51,930
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and nHeEeRE (TeEE5 K
other payables and provisions) H e 3R B ) (5,089,350) (4,321,264)
Loss for the year FHEE (43,083) (7,103)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEK=BHE (43,083) (7,103)
Included in the above loss: FTA LB -
Interest income FEMA 79 55
Interest expense FEF% - =
Income tax expense FTE#A% - =
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEARZREEREELTZ
joint venture: i
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMARE LA 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEBHHEERAIEETE (35,139) (13,597)
Loan to the joint venture BTEERARIZER 1,504,538 1,341,563

Carrying amount of the investment KEZEHE 1,469,399 1,327,966
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20 Investments in associates

B

20 AW

VA2 BRE

L\\

2022 2021
2022F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Unlisted ¥LEm 144,090 170,211
Listed in Hong Kong REBEM 6,282,505 6,847,080
Provision for impairment AR (816,000) (816,000)
5,610,595 6,201,291

Particulars of the material associate, which is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Issued ordinary/

EREEENFAMBREAR L ERHE N
BT

Proportion of
effective
ownership interest
held by the Group

FEEERER
FARERED

Principal activities
and place of operation

FEXRBRERMH

Business Place of registered

structure registration share capital

EROTLE/

EBRE a fif it B R A

Road King Corporate Bermuda 749,336,566
ordinary shares of

$0.1 each

B NS] ARE 749,336,566 1%
BREMBEITL

RN

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of $0.10 each are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal location
of Road King’s business is Mainland China.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for Road King, the shareholdings of which are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Market value of stakes in listed associates as at 31 December 2022
is HK$822,795,000 (31 December 2021: HK$1,474,179,000), which
approximate its fair value.

27.00 Development, operation and
management of toll roads
and property development
and investment in the PRC

27.00 RHEER -  2ERERKE

REARDERERRE

RYDRBEREIMRIZEREELRA @ &
BREEI0T ERREREHA R AMAR
RAERET - BY T BEXMHATEK

BE o

AEERBE DR ZRERBRARNFTRA 2B
Bin BB RRRZBEEBAR
AlZ2EMBRARE °

M2022F12A31H » FHE2RRANKGH
M {E£822,795,000/% T (2021F12A31H
1,474,179,000/87T) * BEQAERE ©
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20

(a)

Investments in associates (continued)

Both external and internal sources of information of associates are
considered in assessing whether there is any indication that the investment
may be impaired, including but not limited to financial position, business
performance and market capitalisation. The Group carries out impairment
assessment on those investments with impairment indications, and the
respective recoverable amounts of investments are determined with
reference to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. As a result, the Group made an aggregate impairment provision of
approximately HK$816,000,000 (2021: HK$816,000,000) which is related
to the Company’s interest in Coastal Greenland Limited. The impairment
provision mainly resulted from revisions of financial/business outlook of
the associates and changes in the market environment of the underlying
business.

The movement of investments in associates is as follows:

20 REEAFZEE (8)

EFERLERRRARE AR LRRER -
EERPERANNERABERKR - 81
BARREBRR - KHRELTE - FRE
HEREFROREETRENRG - Y2RA
AEREERAREREENRREEERE
HAKE S - Fit > AEERARARAS
REREARRACEGIRAERBEED
816,000,000/ 7T (20214 : 816,000,000/8
) o MERGBIERANBERRANE,£HB
AISMBARARBRAEBNTSRERCAE

RBERTZBAZBNT -

2022
2022F

2021
20214

HK$’000
TET

HK$'000

TR

Share of net assets: BEEEFRE :

Opening balances s 6,201,291 5,836,961
Share of results FEL%E (138,710) 275,388
Share of other comprehensive income LM 2 E K (390,355) 244,583
Dividends R (52,223) (157,171)
Disposals HE - (3,320)
Exchange differences BE N EHE (9,408) 4,850
Closing balances HIR AR 5,610,595 6,201,291

There were no significant commitments relating to the Group’s interests in
the associates.

REBRERE A FHBEGEHEORE -
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20 Investments in associates (continued) 20 MEEAFZEE (8)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for Road  (b) T 35 % S i i 15 R 5
King
Summarised consolidated statement of financial position HEIBMEEEE
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAIT
Current assets MENEE 55,594,533 67,855,057
Non-current assets FRBEE 34,407,835 40,380,589
Current liabilities MENAE 33,885,879 40,106,596
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 23,356,011 32,330,755
Net assets BEFE 32,760,478 35,798,295
Less: non-controlling interests DR (12,514,163) (13,460,962)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of BHENAEERRELEEFE
the associate 20,246,315 22,337,333
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HRAEE A EBRGER 72
associate: -
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBFEE LG 27.00% 27.00%
Carrying amount of the investment RECERE 5,466,505 6,031,080
Revenue Wi 17,155,976 24,677,949
Profit for the year FR @ F 458,612 1,984,489
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 e (1,789,490) 979,800
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENEEE (1,330,878) 2,964,289
Dividend received from Road King BIES 2 RE 40,467 141,634
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21 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FRD

Non-current:

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

21 BEMPBEA R R

2022 2021
2022

20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET

BRBSRAAEAEZEHEE

— Listed equity investments in Mainland China — RRBIARE ETRERE 26,851 28,530
— Unlisted equity investments in Mainland China — R BIRRE 2 3 ET kiR B
(note (a)) (FizE(a)) 80,604 461,109
107,455 489,639
Current: e
Financial assets measured at FVTPL FERBRERARBTECEREE
— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong —REBZ ETRERE 1,594 1,807

(@) The balance mainly represented the Hengda Investment of HK$80,604,000 (2021:
HK$461,109,000). During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was a
decrease in fair value in respect of Hengda Investment of HK$354,929,000 (2021:
HK$6,374,889,000), which was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

22 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Equity securities designated at FVOCI i
FERAES
— Unlisted equity investments in mainland China

— RPEAREZIF ERiRERE

() #HEHEZIEEKRIEESL0,604,000% T (2021
£ : 461,109,000/ 7T) ° REE2022F12 A
SIBILEFE  BRERKEEZARERD
354,929,0007 7T (20214F : 6,374,889,00058
TL) IR G 1B RNFER o

22 TE I A A W O A A R
i3

2022 2021
2022

20214
HK$'000
FET

HK$'000

THT

EERBEBEMEERGEAAE

2,402 4,256

2,402 4,256




Shenzhen Investment Limited #3I32M AR AR
Annual Report %% 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fo B B A A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% -5& #5855} + B & % 8195 T A7)

23 Properties under development

23 BRI

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
FB7 FitT

Within one operating cycle included under current R—EALEFRNIARBDEE
assets BT
— Expected to be completed within twelve months —BHERN T ZEARET 12,168,819 14,328,015
— Expected to be completed after more than twelve ~ — FEEIERN+ —@ABET
months 58,850,687 36,848,843

71,019,506 51,176,858

Properties under development comprise: BEPYERRE

— Construction costs — BENA 12,707,805 8,399,859

— Land costs — AR 58,494,517 42,860,861

Less: write-down provision o HUR (182,816) (83,862)
71,019,506 51,176,858

Representing R&

— At cost — KA 67,708,477 49,753,325

— At net realisable value — R #FE 3,311,029 1,423,533
71,019,506 51,176,858

During the year, the write-down of properties under development located
in Mainland China of HK$182,816,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss due to the decrease in the
estimated net realisable value of certain properties under development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the reversal of write-down of
properties under development located in Mainland China of HK$91,669,000
was recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due
to the increase in the estimated net realisable value of certain properties
under development.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, properties under development
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$671,722,000
(2021: nil) were transferred to investment properties upon change in use as
evidenced by the signing of relevant tenancy agreements. The differences
of the fair value of these properties at the date of transfer from their
carrying amounts, amounting to net gain of HK$28,749,000 (2021: nil),
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

FR - ARETEERNENGBTERFEE
WA B R B KBRS Y E 2 MR
182,816,000 8 tERAEERNGEABHERE

=7
s °©

HBZ2021F12A31BLLFE  ARETEREF
WERGET A ERFEEN - WA B AR
MEREPYE 2 HRER1,669,000/8LE
AEERNGREBERER

BZE2022F12A31BILFE  EEEEDNE
671 722,000870 (20214 : &) 2B ERYE
AR EBHER AR ERRNEE  DER
i&ﬁ%% REEBS  ZENEZLAE

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz%%ﬁﬁu& §%%828,749,000/8 T
(2021F : &) ' EREABERAER ©
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23 Properties under development (continued)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s properties under development with
a net carrying amount of HK$7,823,220,000 (2021: nil) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(b)).

As at 31 December 2022, the application for certificates of land use rights
in Mainland China for land with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$5,947,463,000 (2021: HK$16,247,985,000) was still in progress.

The properties under development include costs of acquiring rights to
use certain lands, which are located in the Mainland China, for property
development over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of
between 40 to 70 years.

24 Completed properties held for sale

23 BREPmE (H)
R2022%F12A310 - AEEEBMFEA
7,823,220,00058 7T (20214 : &) 2 ERTY
¥0HEE  EAXEEERBTERZER (M
F31(h) °

R2022F12 5318 » BREF{EL5,947,463,000
BT (20214 : 16,247,985,00058 L) 2 A
BARERSEz b EREENERESD °

ERTNXEBRERETHRAGNEAEREE

TRRPEAGEZ L EREZKA - L
RERBORE - PN T40ET0F -

24 WEHEZOERDE

2022 2021
2022F

20214
HK$'000
THT

HK$'000

TR

Completed properties held for sale BIEFEZEBRME 11,767,724 18,286,334
Less: write-down W RE (183,808) (51,249)
11,583,916 18,235,085

During the year ended 31 December 2022, completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,079,100,000 (2021: HK$1,026,510,000) were transferred to
investment properties upon change in use as evidenced by the signing of
relevant tenancy agreements. The differences of the fair value of these
properties at the date of transfer from their carrying amounts, amounting
to net gain of HK$11,678,000 (2021: net loss of HK$120,163,000), was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no completed properties
held for sale were transferred to property, plant and equipment (2021:
HK$122,142,000).

REZE2022F1231BLEFE - FRLENR
2,079,100,000% 7% (20214 : 1,026,510,000
BL) BIEGEZEERMER R EBERE

WEEERARNER  CEBREREME - R
EEAY  ZEVMEIAABEEEAAEZE
% AU F4511,678,00058 7T (20214 : 518
$#120,163,000/87T) + ERGAEER AR

27
R e

REZ2022F12 A1 BILFEE - BEREEE
JEERMEERENE - BERRE (2021
£ 1 122,142,000587T) ©



24 Completed properties held for sale (continued)
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with a net carrying amount of HK$2,051,394,000 (2021: HK$426,151,000)
were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(b)).

The completed properties include costs of acquiring rights to use certain
lands, which are located in the Mainland China, for property development
over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of between 40 to 70

years.

25 Inventories
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24 FEREZCEEME (8)
R2022F12 8310 - AEEEEFEEA
2,051,394,0007 70 (20214 : 426,151,000/8
) ZBERECEENMERER - (EARE

BRRRITERZER (HE31(0))

25 HH&

2022
2022

HK$'000
TR

EERNEBRNETHRARDERERGSE
TRURFEAEZ LHEREZAR - L
REREORE - FRANFAETOF -

2021
20214

HK$'000

FHIT

Raw materials JRA# 171,470 83,232
Work in progress FEm 71,964 73,095
Finished goods 2R 98,743 106,621

342,177 262,948

26 Trade and other receivables

26 H 5 BRI YK

2022
2022F

HK$'000
TET

2021
20214

HK$'000

TR

Included in non-current assets STAERBEE
— Other receivables — net — E el s — 55 419,737 466,525
419,737 466,525
Included in current assets SARBEE
— Trade receivables — net (note (a)) — YRR — %8 (k@) 2,180,070 957,120
— Other receivables — net (note (b)) — HfbEUesrE — %5 (D) 4,394,087 5,857,733
— Prepayments (note (c)) — BFIE (i) 259,121 299,416
6,833,278 7,114,269




Shenzhen Investment Limited J&31% 0% 5 1R 2 &
Annual Report 3% 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A7 A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5% 5 &#975) - FrE £ M ETIITR)

26

Trade and other receivables (continued)
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of trade and other receivables
approximated their fair value.

Details of trade receivables are as follows:

26 B4 LIbERK (4
M2022%12A318 -
BEEENAERE

(a) FEUBRRZFFBMT

féi%&,ﬁ\‘rtﬂﬁg%l

KR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TAT

Trade receivables FEUER 3R 2,348,697 1,123,799
Less: provision for loss allowance W BAEE (168,627) (166,679)
Trade receivables — net BRI — 2,180,070 957,120

The Group normally does not grant any credit terms to its customers for
the sale of properties. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade receivables with a net
carrying value of approximately HK$51,404,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$2,747,000) was pledged to secure other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 31(b)).

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contract date, is as follows:

AEERETEAEPHNEHERLEMER

B o KSR ERRORBR MR @ MR IR (R 5 BR AR 12
o ERN ERRARANEE RUERR S RS
ETXZREEF  HAKEYBEBEETZ
FERR - AREYERERURTEHRTAE
ERERRKEBEERR - RUERFBTEH
BHR °

M2022%F12A31H » A&EBEEFEY
£51,404,00047C (2021 F12H31 1 -
2,747,000 70) 2 EUERAEER - (EAEEE
BEREMEE 2 ER (HE310) o

N RS 4 B R R R SRR A AT
mT :

2022 2021
2022F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAIT

Within 1 year —FR 2,100,863 614,895
1 to 2 years —FEMERN 79,179 353,807
2 to 3 years WER=FR 22,299 117,936
over 3 years =EE 146,356 37,161
2,348,697 1,123,799




26

(c)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

None of whom contributed 10% or more of the Group's total revenue during

the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Details of other receivables are as follows:

26

(b)
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B0 B AbRE NG (5)

BE2022E K2021E12A31HILEE - T
BEEEBMEAEBBKZE10%TIAL ©

Hit ERRFIRZHBINT

2022 2021

2022 20214

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Due from the ultimate holding company FEN SRR A RIRIE 28,865 28,132
Due from the immediate holding company e B AR A B FA 1,185 1,295
Due from non-controlling interests JE U e AR R 2 R 506,352 1,253,673
Loans to joint ventures BTRERRZER 566,585 954,248
Loans to associates BIBERNAIZER - 11,008
Others (i) HAh (i) 3,616,294 3,866,163
4,719,281 6,114,519

Less: allowance for impairment A ORERE (325,194) (256,786)
Other receivables — net HipfEWGE — 38 4,394,087 5,857,733

(i)

Details of prepayments are as follows:

Others mainly included deposits and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries of the

Group and the third parties.

(c)

) HtEXZeRREERAKERRNBARLE

ZHRES RAERFR

BNFBRZHEDT

2022 2021

2022F 20214

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

For acquisitions of land U BE 13 30,076 200,110
For construction costs and construction materials BEERA R R EM A 186,231 68,358
Others Hih 42,814 30,948
259,121 299,416
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27 Cash and cash equivalents

27 BERBEFHEY

2022
2022

2021
20214

HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
THT

Cash and bank balances e KR4 13,361,602 22,775,607
Less: restricted cash (note (a)) B XBRHIRE (M) (1,687,484) (2,762,304)

term deposits (note (b)) T HFR (HT3ED) (5,851) (96,047)
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEEY 11,668,267 19,917,256

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents did not include
housing maintenance funds of HK$58,602,000 (2021: HK$67,556,000)
which were owned by the property owners but were deposited in the bank
accounts in the name of the Group. Such deposits can be used by the
Group for the purpose of public maintenance expenditures to be incurred at
the sole discretion and approval of the relevant government authorities.

(@)

Restricted cash balance mainly represented unreleased guarantee
deposits for construction of pre-sale properties denominated in RMB
placed in designated bank accounts as at 31 December 2022, and
will be released in accordance with certain construction progress
milestones.

On 26 May 2021 and 31 May 2021, two subsidiaries of the Company,
respectively received a statement of claim from the Intermediate
People’s Court of Wuhan City (the “Court”) regarding the claims by
Hubei Province Livestock and Poultry Breeding Center against the two
subsidiaries (the “Litigation”) regarding the contractual disputes under
the four agreements entered into by two subsidiaries with the in
respect of the development of Nanhu Rose Bay in Wuhan, with a total
claims amount of approximately RMB900 million. In connection with
the Litigation, certain bank accounts of the two subsidiaries with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB640 million have been frozen
by the Court.

These bank deposits were with original maturity of over three months.
The effective interest rate of these deposits as at 31 December 2022
was 2.22% per annum (2021: 2.67% per annum).

R2022F12A31H  RekReFEYTE
EER#BES58,602,000/8 T (20214 :
67,556,000 70) * ZXERETHEE - T
BRAEBEZENRTES - BAGRTAAKR
SEARKHEBRNEEZERBILEN ALK
KBRS -

(@)

XREBEEBREEBRN2022F12 A31
AGEERNETERITRFAARBHENE
EMERSABRRES - BREETE

®2021465H26H &%2021F5A3108 -
ARRIMEMBAR S B EEREMF
BARZER ([ZER ) EHHREREF
- BRI EEREER LR EERME
KBAR AR ERRBRERT LM
DHENENUHERENB R AREH
BR([HFR])  BRESEHIETA
R¥ - MREFA - MENBLRALER
NAEGABTAREHNETRITRFPER
AR o

ZEBRTEZRINGBEBBE=MA - Z
SHEFN2022F12 A31 HNEBRFIXR A
2.22%H)EME (20215 : 2.67%EF
&) o
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27 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 27 B RBL%EED (8)

(©)  The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies  (c) ARESBEITE BINEIA K ZSINEHRITA
and the remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank IR FE ) Bl ZA Kk BR R BB B M B B INE
balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and HIER A RSER o
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Cash and deposits were denominated in the following currencies: Be RFEZA T EEE -

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Denominated in RMB UIAREHE 12,112,422 17,741,394
Denominated in USD WAETTEE 491,617 3,743,304
Denominated in HKD AT EHE 757,563 1,290,909
13,361,602 22,775,607
28 Share capital and reserves 28 JRAKfkfE
(a) Share capital (a) BeA
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Issued and fully paid: BRARAR
8,898,793,115 (31 December 2021 8,898,793,115/% (20215128
8,899,893,115) ordinary shares 318 : 8,899,893,115/%)
gl 22,071,756 22,071,756

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 1,100,000 of its RER - RRAREBHARZMERAEE

shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate &#£1,100,0008 8% - £HK{E1,854,000%

consideration of HK$1,854,000 (inclusive of transaction costs) which T (BRERHGEAE)  ZREREEB AR
was paid fully out of the Company's retained earnings in accordance with 257 EUR R RIRBRBFBHZN - AR

Section 257 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. All repurchased BERNHERNFAZHE - REBROIETNE

shares were cancelled during the year. The total amount paid for the SO AR AREBF PR -

repurchase of the shares has been charged to retained earnings of the
Company.
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28 Share capital and reserves (continued) 28 ARG ()
(a) Share capital (continued) (@) MeA (#)
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FA - RAEEMT -
2022 2021
2022 20214
Number of Number of
shares in Issued shares in Issued
Issued  share capital Issued share capital
BRTRA ERTRAE B#IRG BEIRA
% H 28
HK$’000 HK$'000
TART FAET
At 1 January M1 A1H 8,899,893,115 22,071,756 8,899,893,115 22,071,756
Share repurchase P 1 o B (1,100,000) - = =
At 31 December MW12A31H 8,898,793,115 22,071,756 8,899,893,115 22,071,756

(b) Capital reserve

2022 2021
2022% 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000
F7 F7T

Capital reserve VN 59,019 59,019
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29 Other reserves 29 Hfibfk

Share Exchange
Statutory option Other fluctuation
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total

AERRE BRERE HtRE EXRZBRRE BE
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

As at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 A1H 3,951,954 109,478 641,075 4,211,411 8,913,918
Share of other comprehensive A2 AR REE
income of joint ventures and NGIEL Tl 6
associates - - (422,176) - (422,176)
Transfer of reserves upon lapse of B [ 12 55 514 85 48
share options 1 - (108,984) - - (108,984)
Equity-settled share option expense AR v 2 BB A i
X - 676 - - 676
Exchange differences fE N E 5 - - - (5,226,282) (5,226,282)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%F12 A31H 3,951,954 1,170 218,899 (1,014,871) 3,157,152
As at 1 January 2021 M2021F1A1H 3,951,954 106,023 425,741 1,590,677 6,074,395
Share of other comprehensive ElEEE AR REE
income of joint ventures and NEEMEEY S
associates - - 250,319 - 250,319
Transfer from retained profits ERBRERM - - (34,985) - (34,985)
Equity-settled share option expense ARG+ 2 B A2
X - 3,455 - - 3,455
Exchange differences [E X =% - = - 2,620,734 2,620,734
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%F12 A31H 3,951,954 109,478 641,075 4,211,411 8,913,918
30 Share option scheme 30 et
The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme’) which was AARRE—ERREE ([5181]) ©B2012
approved and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing F6A22BHERRS » UHAEBEKK
incentives and rewards to directors and employees of the Group who NELEBZAEEES R ES RESHE R E
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became B) o 5TEIR20125F6 B22 BAER » MR IEH
effective on 22 June 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, BB - BAIZTEBRE BT TER
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 year from that date, after B AMBERE - TS EENEAER
which period no further options will be issued but in all other respects the B BEMEEMFA  AEEXNATRE

provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect. NRIER °
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30 Share option scheme (continued) 30 JEMeHERtE (4)
(a) Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period (@) R I AR 1 AR AT 2 A
The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding as at the end of RIRE BRI AR AT BRI 2 TR AT

the reporting period are as follows:

Contractual
Number of Exercise Vesting Expiry life of
instruments price date date options
) BB
IEHE 1HEE HEAH AMAE  ANER
At 31 December 2022 202246128318
Options granted to employees: BYEE 2ERE :
on 28 September 2021 720219 H28H 2,064,000 2.0000 18/01/2022 17/01/2025 0.33
on 28 September 2021 R2021%59H28H 1,548,000 2.0000 18/01/2023 17/01/2025 1.33
on 28 September 2021 ®K2021F9H28H 1,548,000 2.0000 18/01/2024 17/01/2025 2.33

Options granted to employees: RTEE ERE :

on 28 September 2021 ®2021F9FH28H 988,000 2.0000 28/09/2022 27/09/2025 1.00
on 28 September 2021 20219 H28H 741,000 2.0000 28/09/2023 27/09/2025 2.00
on 28 September 2021 #2021F9F28H 741,000 2.0000 28/09/2024  27/09/2025 3.00
Total share options outstanding EEXE L FEE 7,630,000
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 7,630,000 share RIERR - RIEFE - AAFH7,630,00013
options outstanding under the Scheme, representing approximately 0.09% BIE ((EARRNZABETRMN#A0.09%)
of the Company's shares in issue as at that date. WARITHE ©
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the BRBER A RAIRAERE - BEITEHE KT
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 7,630,000 15 2 B8 AR R A8 B B 1T 58 917,630,000 R AN
additional ordinary shares of the Company and an increase in share capital AR - RARA R L NN16,696,000/ T

and reserve of HK$16,696,000 (before issue expenses). CRMBREITAS) -
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30 Share option scheme (continued) 30 M HERTE (%)
(b) Share options movement during the year (b) 4 P Ji JBE AR 5

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options under — RIEsHEIF HEERE 2 S B RMETLHITEENT :
the Scheme are as follows:

2022 2021
2022 20214
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
HKS per share of options HK$ per share of options
MELHTEE = X

BRET EREHA ‘ EkESA

At 1 January ®1A1R 2.8530 161,234,958 2.8950 153,604,958

Granted during the year RERR T - - 2.0000 7,630,000

Lapsed during the year RERKK 2.8968  (153,604,958) - -

Outstanding at the end of the year ~ RERFAITE 2.0000 7,630,000 2.8530 161,234,958

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RERAI F17# 2.0000 3,052,000 2.8540 153,604,958

(c) Share options movement during the year (c) 4R RESE By
The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had an exercise price R2022512 A31 B AT EERENTER
of HK$2.000 (2021: HK$2.869 — HK$2.902) and a weighted average £2.00058 7T (20214F : 2.869/8 7T —2.902/8
remaining contractual life of 2.27 years (2021: 0.97 years). L) MEFHERBAENFRE2.27F (2021
F:097F) o

()  The Company had 153,604,958 share options lapsed during the () REEHRN - A2BHELNERE
reporting period (2021: 7,630,000 shares granted). 153,604,958 (20214 : E &K T

7,630,000 A1) °

(i) The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$676,000 during (i) #HZE2022F12831HIEFE - AEERE
the year ended 31 December 2022 (year ended 31 December 2021: RERER 676,000 T (HE20214F

HK$3,455,000). 12831 BILEE  3,455,000/87L) °
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31 Bank and other borrowings

31 BT RILAAH &

2022
2022

2021
20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

Non-current JEENER
Bank loans — secured (note (b)) BIER — BER (D)) 461,159 =
Bank loans — unsecured ﬁﬁhféﬂ — R A 18,023,270 19,378,413
Other borrowings — secured CMBS (note (a), note (b)) HfE & — AEBEEE ML S
% (MizE@) * HIEEm) 9,654,347 6,759,790
28,138,776 26,138,203
Current ki
Bank loans — secured (note (b)) RITEHR — HEM (D)) 89,832 90,509
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — EER 11,859,576 11,811,770
Other borrowings — secured CMBS (note (a), note (b)) EMEE — AEEREEEA S EE
# (MizE(@) - H5Eb) 134,025 56,752
12,083,433 11,959,031
40,222,209 38,097,234

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised

cost.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing
facilities during the 2022 and 2021 reporting period.

(@)

At 31 December 2022, other borrowings included Commercial
Mortgage-backed Securities (‘CMBS”) as below:

At 16 June 2020, RMB1,900,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,127,050,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and its receivables of future rental incomes.
The interest rate of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a
principal amount of RMB1,800,000,000 was fixed at 3.31% per
annum. The term of the CMBS was 20 years. At the end of the third
year, the sixth year and the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to
adjust the interest rate of the CMBS or repurchase the outstanding
balance, and the holders of the CMBS shall be entitled to require the
Group to redeem the outstanding balance.

FA FEEN G B E B RBHA A B -

REEDN2022F R 2021 FRE BB EE
HEE B4 -

(@)

R2022F12 8318 » stARERIFRE
BH ([HEEBLIRBESR]) CEMER
mr -

R2020F6 8168  RPBRRITHEES
mi5%T AR®1,900,000,0007T (HE

®2,127,050,0007T) * HEETH
¥ BELRRE BREMEREFXRA

SWARERBERE - K& ARE
1,800,000,000 TR D EEAB LR EER
BEHEHFNERNEEFERS.31% ° B
ERTBEFNFERE0FE - REZF -
ENERENER  AEEEEAREE
BERTHBEHFOF XN BEREERE -
MAERATHEERNEEABEERA
SEERREEHE
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31 Bank and other borrowings (continued)

(@)

(continued)

At 1 March 2021, RMB1,800,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,015,100,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and its receivables of future rental incomes.
The interest rate of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a
principal amount of RMB1,790,000,000 was fixed at 3.88% per
annum. The term of the CMBS was 18 years. At the end of the third
year, the sixth year and the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to
adjust the interest rate of the CMBS or repurchase the outstanding
balance, and the holders of the CMBS shall be entitled to require the
Group to redeem the outstanding balance.

At 7 May 2021, RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,239,000,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and its receivables of future rental incomes.
The interest rate of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a
principal amount of RMB1,999,000,000 was fixed at 3.80% per
annum. The term of the CMBS was 18 years.

At 24 February 2022, RMB3,200,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,582,400,000) was issued in China Interbank Bond Market,
which was secured by investment properties and its receivables of
future rental incomes. The interest rate of the CMBS classified as
Priority Level with a principal amount of RMB3,190,000,000 was
fixed at 3.40% per annum. The term of the CMBS was 18 years.

31 AT RIS (8)

(@

(8)

R2021F3818 - RHBERTHES
mi5%T AR1,800,000,0007T (HE
7%2,015,100,000%8 ) * EAETY
¥ BERLRE BREVMERERKXA
SWARHEIFTBEER - K& ARE
1,790,000,000 TR D EABEREER
BERBEFMENEETE A3.88% ° B
BEIHESNFHA18F c REZF -
ERNFRENFR - AEBHRAZEE
BRTHERFOFI RS BEOREERE -
MAEERRTHEFOREABRERRK
SEBRAEEHE

R2021F5878 » R BIRTRES
mi53T AR 2,000,000,0007T (HHE
7%2,239,000,000%8 L) - ERETH
¥ BERRE BREVERERXA
SWARERFIBEER - AR
1,999,000,000 tH A EABELEER
BERBEFMENEET H3.80% ° B
BELHEFNFHAI8EF -

R2022%2A248 + NHEIRITHESM
%17 AR#3,200,000,0007T (HE R
3,582,400,000% L) + EREEMERE
ARAL WA EKFIEERR - K& A
F#3,190,000,000 CH) D 18 BB LR
EERIBELFNFHNERETRB3.40% ©
BEAAIHEFNFHAIBE -
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31 Bank and other borrowings (continued)
At 31 December 2022, loans amounting to approximately
HK$10,339,363,000 (2021: HK$6,907,051,000) were secured by
certain of the Group’s assets with carrying amounts as below:

(b)

(c)

®)

Plant, property and equipment (included land

31 ST R E (F)

b)) M2022F12A31H > &£8Y
10,339,363,000/%8 T (2021 % :
6,907,051,000% ) 2 EFUA TFIREE
ZETAEEEEFERA -

2022
2022 F

2021
20214

HK$'000
TR

HK$'000

TR

nx - BELEE (BELIER

and buildings) (note 15) BF) (f3E15) 22,844 20,445
Properties under development (note 23) BEPYE ([I5E23) 7,823,220 =
Completed properties held for sale (note 24) BIEGE 2B ERME (H:24) 2,051,394 426,151
Trade receivables (note 26(a)) FENCER X (FT3E26(a)) 51,404 2,747
Investment properties (note 16) w&EM* (MzE16) 14,282,804 8,334,326

24,231,666 8,783,669

At 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$22,355,890,000 (2021: HK$23,391,490,000) were bearing

floating rates.

Except for the bank borrowings equivalent to approximately
HK$16,351,337,000 (2021: HK$19,130,671,000), which are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all other borrowings as at 31

December 2022 are denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2022, the average effective interest rate of the
bank and other borrowings was 3.32% per annum (2021: 3.0% per

annum).

€ 2022%12A31H » 4122,355,890,000
7T (20214 : 23,391,490,000/&7T) 2
RITEERZBF RS -

) BREEERL16,351,337,0007% 7T (2021
% :19,130,671,000/87T) 2 BITHEE
WITEHESN - R2022F 12 A31 A H
B EGAAREE -

€ M2022%12A318 @ BITREMEEZ
FHBEFRAEE3.32% (20214F : F
£3.0%) °
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32 Deferred income tax 32 RALFABL
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BEMBHEERABATNT -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Deferred income tax assets ELEFEHERE 3,335,319 2,953,554
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEREHERE (7,899,606) (9,421,630)
(4,564,287) (6,468,076)
The movement on the net deferred income tax account is as follows: EIEFERFREEHNT ¢
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
At 1 January ™ A1H (6,468,076) (6,859,080)
Credited to profit or loss AR 1,144,651 586,999
Exchange differences e E5 759,138 (195,995)

At 31 December M12A318 (4,564,287) (6,468,076)
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32 JRIEFEH (H)
Rt AR-—HRUEEERNHRBEBOBRT -
EEMEHEERABESNT

32 Deferred income tax (continued)
Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is
as follows:

EEFREHEE

Deferred income tax assets:

L0sses Temporary
available for differences Temporary
offsetting arising (ifferences
against future from LAT  arising from Unrealised Credit loss
taxable profits provision aceruals profits allowance
; ' itz
EhEE a1 i i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T T I T BT
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1A 6,862 2,287,230 216,499 175,566 136,673 130,724 2,953,554
Deferred tax (charged)/creditedto A% (31%) /S A%
the statement of profit or loss ~ RAZELHE
during the year 73,799 476,914 (159,650) 242,760 8,127 (9,961) 631,989
Exchange differences ERER (581) (193,768) (18,341) (14,874) (11,579) (11,081) (250,224)
Gross deferred tax assets at %2022@12)%3152
31 December 2022 BRHREELE 80,080 2,570,376 38,508 403,452 133,221 109,682 3,335,319
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 /1A 6,743 1,896,343 274,861 217,472 121774 115,208 2,632,401
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to A% (H1B) /A%
the statement of profitor loss ~ XAZELHE
during the year (78) 332,425 (65,420) (47,555) 11,149 11,947 242,468
Exchange differences ERER 197 58,462 7,058 5,649 3,750 3,569 78,685
Gross deferred tax assets at R021%E12831H2
31 December 2021 RiERagELs 6862 2287230 216,499 175,566 136,673 130724 2,953,554

EEMBHEERRALENT WAL - &
BOfBBARRERT RN ERBENE -
BZE2022F12A831H  AEET KGR
5 E1812,939,261,000% 7T (20214 :
11,677,081,0008 L) BRELEREHEE
3,234,815,000% 7T (20214 : 2,919,270,000
BT e

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
as at 31 December 2022 of HK$3,234,815,000 (2021: HK$2,919,270,000)
in respect of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$12,939,261,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$11,677,081,000).



32 Deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Withholding
tax on
dividend

Revaluation
Ui
investment
properties
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32 EEFHH ()
BERREHARE

Revaluation
of assets

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries

Accelerated
fax
depreciation
on
investment

REEH & BEE[
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TiEn TFiin BT T
At 1 January 2022 1202291518 706,778 3,787,442 193,902 4,121,571 537,304 74,627 9,421,630
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to~ AEEHL /(1) B85
the statement of profitor loss ~ XAZELHE
during the year 17,038 (87,972 152 (550,488) 43,224 65,384 (512,662)
Exchange differences E}28 (48608)  (31776)  (1642)  (460,710)  (45,519) 6322) (1,009,362
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 120221283102
31 December 2022 ELHEARRS 675,208 3,267,694 177621 3,110,379 535,009 133,689 7,899,606
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1R18 528,952 3,779,420 238,868 4,355,562 438,347 150,332 9,491,481
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o~ AEEHR / (GFA) B%
the statement of profitor loss XA ELRIE
during the year 150808 (101413 (51187) (396,384 84766 (B0121)  (344531)
Exchange differences ERZE 18,018 109,435 6,221 122,399 14191 4,416 274,680
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 720211283102
31 December 2021 ERRAaELeE 706,778 3,787,442 193,902 4121577 537,304 74,621 9,421,630
33 Contract liabilities 33 AMEM

Contract liabilities

2022
2022

HK$'000
TER

6,328,458

2021
20214

HK$'000
TR

13,892,262
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33 Contract liabilities (continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities of
property development recognised are as follows:

The Group receives certain amount of deposit from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. These deposits are recognised as
contract liabilities until the relevant properties are completed and ready for
hand-over to the customers.

The Group may require the customers to pay off the remaining balance of
the consideration within an agreed timeframe while constructions are still
ongoing, rather than on the completion of the relevant properties. Such
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the remaining property construction period for the full amount of
the contract price.

Movements in contract liabilities

(a)

M1R1B 2 &8
BRAREFNFAGHNE

Balance at 1 January

Recognising revenue that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year

Receiving forward sales deposits and instalments

RREN

Recognising revenue that was included in the contract FAEHE

liabilities during the year
TR ER M SR X
R12A31 B2 &%

Accruing interest expense on advances received
Balance at 31 December

WEREE R & Ry Bi50A

33 GHMAE (8)
HEHRMERZANRBESEREK
XA GFIT -

S/ 40
e

2~

AEEREPREEEBAN B REWRE T
T ZFAEHABANEE  EEABDE
R AHBRTEFPRL °

AEETEREFREETRINEETZHER
AAMFERERNEEZREEERSKE - B
BRI G SIS SRR B ERRY R2ENR
REEANERERLNAE -

(a) AHAMGEDH

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
13,892,262 19,718,224

Bz W
(13,557,586) (18,670,731)
13,019,409 12,657,087

&2 W
(7,025,627) =
- 187,682
6,328,458 13,892,262

The amount of billings in advance of performance and forward sales
deposits and instalments received expected to be recognised as income
after more than one year is HK$2,242,032,000 (2021: HK$1,507,530,000).

BHRNBE—FRERARAZENENR
B EER e REWS EBFIBE2,242,032,000
T (20214 : 1,507,530,000787T) °
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34 Trade and other payables 34 5 LI ER
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Current liabilities MEBE
Trade payables (note (a)) FERTBRFR (Mi3E (@) 6,335,130 4,408,200
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) Hib A FERETER
(FEE (D)) 19,074,245 12,357,967
Other taxes payable (note (c)) Hi e TIE (i) 463,458 334,709
25,872,833 17,100,876
(a) Trade payables (a) FERHERZK
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date was as ENEFREEZAHMERAINIIRMT ¢
follows:

2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Within 1 year —FR 5,098,345 3,777,339
1 t0 2 years —FEMEA 735,675 416,455
2 to 3 years MEE=FN 380,447 109,712
Over 3 years =FE 120,663 104,694
6,335,130 4,408,200

The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. All the ERERBEATHENE - HERNERERE

trade payables are expected to be settled within one year. HR—FNEE -
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34 Trade and other payables (continued) 34 H5LIMEMR ()
(b) Other payables and accruals (b) A A 2k 0 S e 22
Other payables and accruals mainly included deposits from property buyers HiEMNFERETERTZREMEEREN
and current accounts due to joint ventures, associates, fellow subsidiaries REGNEANREESERF - BEAR - [
and non-controlling interests of the Group. RHIB AR RIS ERFE o
2022 AR
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
Accruals and other payables EE-GIE Y A E e 8,781,853 8,745,771
Loans from a joint venture RE—HEELRZER 228,904 124,757
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERRMBRAZER 1,803,046 2,683,482
Loans from an other related company RE—BEMBAB AR ZER 175,189 191,401
Loans from non-controlling interests REFERERZER 8,085,253 612,556
19,074,245 12,357,967
(c) Other taxes payable (c) HABREABLIEH
Other taxes payable mainly included output value-added taxes related to HiEMNTHIEEERERBEMERENFEHE
receipt in advance from customers, value-added taxes payable and other JER - EEEREEMTHIE o

taxes.
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35 Due to immediate and ultimate holding company 35 WA ELHE R 1 B A vl kR
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
F 7 FitT
Non-current JEENER
Due to the immediate holding company e B R A B FUA 699,483 =
Due to the ultimate holding company JE 1 R AR AR A B A - 3,057,750
699,483 3,057,750
Current R
Due to the immediate holding company R ERERARZIE 2,454,966 2,477,415
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A R AR AR A B FA 18,312,783 11,121,061
20,767,749 13,598,476
21,467,232 16,656,226
36 Tax payable 36 MEMFIHE

2022 2021
2022 % 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi7 b7t

Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial ~ £ & B AR KA 2 ANEAR 1835 ¢
position represents:

Provision for CIT TCEMSHEE 1,176,923 1,732,240
Provision for LAT T E R A 10,732,851 11,077,660

11,909,774 12,809,900
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37 BlemEER

37 Cash flow information

(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEEELEZIE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THEIT
Profit before taxation BR B AT A 7,367,039 3,647,978
Adjustments for: BT BIHHE
Finance costs BTSN 971,689 737,388
Interest income i EdA (378,067) (349,860)
Depreciation and amortisation & N 5N 450,966 374,201
Decrease in fair value of investment properties BREWENRERD 393,912 285,488
(Increase)/decrease in fair value upon transfer to BRERENEEDAE
investment properties (m),/md (42,023) 120,163
Dividend income from other financial assets REEMSHEE CREBA (2,090) (2,036)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures and LG & AR R E AR RH
associates RER (391,441) (843,446)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property, plant HEME BERREEEZ
and equipment (Wa) / E#E (1,811) 415
Loss allowance of trade receivables, net JE U BR SRR K B 7 5 55,999 4,835
Loss allowance of prepayments, deposits and other ~ FE[FUE « 714 K EAMREWFIAE
receivables, net BREEFE 21,139 39,761
Impairment losses of Intangible assets B EERERRE - 365,457
Impairment of inventory FERE 246,888 (80,705)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets at fair BRERRALEHE 2R
value through profit or loss, net BEANLERDFHE 355,845 6,374,271
Equity-settled share option expense AR A 2 AR R 676 3,455
9,048,721 10,677,365
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37 Cash flow information (continued) 37 B&WEER (8)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) REEEEAEZHE (H)
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET
Changes in working capital: HEEGEE :
Increase in trade receivables and other financial FEM AR TR S EL At 2 b & 2 AN
assets (1,427,083) (83,853)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and BAFE - e REMERZE
other receivables (#m),/mh (26,205) 1,136,177
Increase in inventories FEEN (101,505) (81,204)
Increase in trading biological assets SRR Y& S N (543) (860)
Decrease/(increase) in completed properties held for — #HEFEZ 2 ERMERD /
sale (48m) 4,344,060 (1,102,859)
Increase in properties under development EIESESEII (23,501,879) (8,908,982)
Increase in trade payables £ BR K42 o 2,290,063 831,576
Increase in other payables and accruals oA B 3B K JE T B L 0 8,138,546 1,617,932
Decrease in contract liabilities EHBERD (6,126,862) (6,203,328)
Decrease in deferred income EEWNRD (558) (7,821)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash XRHBERD /(L) 922,864 (239,660

Cash used in operations KEEEMARE (6,440,381) (2,365,517)
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37 Cash flow information (continued) 37 BlamaEgr (4)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) HRHEMEEHZAMZEIE

Due to the Loans from

ultimate non-controlling

and immediate Loans from Loans from  holders and

Bank and other Lease holding fellow associates and  other related
borrowings liabilities company  subsidiaries  joint ventures party

HERR ! .
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThI T
t 1 January 2022 1202251 A1A 38,097,234 395,715 16,656,226 2,683,482 124,757 803,957 58,761,371
Changes from financing cash flows: REBREREREL 2T
Proceeds from new bank loans ~ HEEATEFEIEFE 17,845,339 - - - - - 17,845,339
Repayment of bank loans EERTER (14,158,203) - - - - - (14,158,203)

Proceeds from loans fromnon- R BTG
controlling interests - - - -

340,655 340,655

Repayments of loans from non- ~ EEFERERER
controlling interests - - - -

(40,573) (40,573)

Proceeds from related parties REB® T METE - - 274979 4945725 116,370 - 27,811,891
Repayments of related parties [y - - (17,405,033)  (5,461,744) - - (22,866,777
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 [ EM% 2 A X3 - (171401) - - - - (71401

Total changes from financing cash  REBER &8, 28)E

flows g 3687,136  (171401) 5344763  (516,019) 116,370 300,082 8,760,931
Interest paid included as change in  JI &R £ HEEE /B

operating cash flows 78 (1,385,968) (10,759)  (140426) (234,442 (4,619) (1,699)  (1,783,913)
Non-cash movement 3k o) - - (2,706,770) - - 6826904 4120134
Exchange differences EAES (1,606,589) (33524)  (1,687,718)  (201,511) (15,096) (95,643)  (3,640,081)
Finance costs Eip 1,430,396 10,759 626,757 71,536 7,492 432841 2,579,781

At 31 December 2022 2022512318 40,222,209 190,790 18,092,832 1,803,046 228,904 8,260,442 68,798,223




(continued)

37 Cash flow information (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
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Bemagn (&)
KEMEESZAHZHE (5)

Loans from
fellow
subsidiaries

Loans from
non-controlling
holders and
other related

Loans from
associates and
joint ventures

Hf HEBR F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
THIL FATL TATL FiL Fin Fin BT
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1R18 30,828,413 455,633 11,186,212 3,137,120 123,435 372,313 46,103,126
Changes from financing cash REBERERELEY -
flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans T BTEFFERE 20,150,202 = = = = - 20,150,202
Repayment of bank loans EERTEN (13,221,747) - - - - - (13.221,747)
Proceeds from loans from non- ~ F R EFFTSHUR
controlling interests - - - - - 524,389 524,389
Repayments of loans fromnon- B FERERER
controlling interests = = = = = (56,908) (56,908)
Proceeds from related parties REBEA L HERE - - 25292200 493345 - - 30,225,656
Repayment of related parties Bl ER = - (20452,290) (5,533,934 - - (25,986,224)
Capital element of lease rentals ~ EFEEREZEATH
paid - (155,656) - - - - (155,656)
Total changes from financing cash  RERERERE 2
flows ik 6,928,455 (155,656) 4,839,910 (600,478) - 467481 11479712
Interest paid included as change in JIlfEEEBERERE .
operating cash flows: EAHE : (1,005,080) (27,540) (85,269) - (4,781) (66,820)  (1,189,490)
Exchange differences EREE 340,366 95,738 484 296 49815 1,322 10,935 982,472
Finance costs B 1,005,080 27,540 231,077 97,025 4781 20,048 1,385,551
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A31A 38,097,234 395715 16,656,226 2,683,482 124,757 803,957 58,761,371
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37 Cash flow information (continued)
(c) Acquistion of Right-of-use

Acquistion of Right-of-use

WiE G g

37 BlE&WEER (H)
(c) W BE

2022
2022F

2021
20214

HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
F7T

65,746 81,149

38 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees to purchasers of the Group's
properties (note (a))

Financial guarantees to related parties of the Group
(note (b))

(F&E(a))

(M5 (b))

38 R

AASENEEREHR M BER

[F) 7 6% [ B ) e 4 A TR AR

2022
2022

2021
20214

HK$'000
TER

HK$'000

FHTT

6,926,523 5,805,194

1,400,718 1,272,646

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal
title of the related properties. The Group's guarantee period commences from the
date of grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the buyer of the Group’s
properties obtained the individual property ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net realizable value
of the related properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty and therefore no provision has
been made in connection with the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has given guarantees amounted to
HK$1,400,718,000 (31 December 2021: HK$1,272,646,000) in respect of bank
loans and other borrowings to Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate Development
Company Limited, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited and Shum
King Company Limited, all of which are joint ventures of the Group.

REBERGEH - WZFERIERZERK
B AEBREEEENRNZIRBETAR
RSB KRN IRTT 2 A A B K &
Ko REEBER KM EANEZSENA
o AKEZBRUARLABIZBENE
BB EE AL E Y ¥ E RIS ER W E A
BREBRERM

B=RR WEXKERFE  BRMELA
B FERABRHAREER RIS EFER
ERER S REIR - BORMZFERIEL
B -

R2022F 128318 ' AEBREMNER
BHERZEARAD TMHFRERE
BERERARRENERAA (2H A
AEBEERR) ZRITREME FE
#£1,400,718,0007% 7T (202112 8318
1,272,646,000787C) Z &R °
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39 Commitments 39 7K
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022 not provided for in ®2022F12 A31 B MARITE R AR M EREE
the financial report were as follows: HEEMEARRENT

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

Commitments in respect of the acquisition of land pUE L RET RBERTPYEE
and buildings, and development costs attributable R 2 HIE
to properties under development:

Contracted, but not provided for BET4B KBS 8,324,329 13,095,757
As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 14 July 2017, the MRAREBEA2017F7 R14B 2 A EFTHK
Group agreed a maximum capital contribution to a related party, Shum % AEERERBHAEAIERAFESE
King Company Limited, of HK$3,000,000,000 for its development of a &3,000,000,000 BT AR FEREEE 2 — 8T
piece of land in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had an i o PR2022F12A318 » AEBUHFYZ H
outstanding capital commitment to Shum King of HK$1,757,500,000 (31 RITIE 2 BAANE AB1,757,500,0008 7T (2021

December 2021: HK$1,847,500,000). F12A31H : 1,847,500,000%7T) °
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40 Related-party transactions 40 BT A2 5
In addition to the financial guarantees provided to joint ventures disclosed BRITEE38(b) TR B MM A & N R IR A B 5
in note 38(b) and the capital commitments provided to a joint venture REMFESMBEENF—FAEEDARENE
disclosed in note 39, the Group had the following significant related party FFEEI  REBMEABB AR ST ¢
transactions:
(a) Financing arrangements (a) RhEZH
() The Group entered certain financing arrangements with its related () FEEHEEGE T VE THRELH
parties.
2022 2021
2022 20214
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TR TAT
Loans from the ultimate holding company RERKIERATZER 15,543,349 9,725,718
Loans from the immediate holding company REBEEERARZER 2,549,483 1,901,569
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERZMNBLRRIZER 1,803,046 2,683,482
Loans from a joint venture RE—HEERRIZER 228,904 124,757
Loans from an other related company RE—EMBK AR ER 175,189 191,401
Loans from non-controlling interests REFEREZZER 8,085,253 612,556
28,385,224 15,239,483
Except for balances of HK$110,950,000, which are interest-free B #8110,950,00078 T (2021 % -
(2021: HK$121,217,000), the remaining balances bear interests 121,217,00087) AR E - Rtz
at rates ranging from 1.94% to 6.65% per annum (2021: 1.29% NF1.94%%6.65% K FF|E (20214 :
to 4.65% per annum). The relevant finance costs for the year are NT1.29%E4.65%HEFR) 58 o &

disclosed in note 11. WM ISR AN B R HIRE1T o
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40 Related-party transactions (continued)
Financing arrangements (continued)

(a)

(i)

The Group also provides loans to its related parties.

A 5 22 5 (#)
il % e (A1)

KRBT AR T IEHRER -

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Loans to joint ventures BTEEDRIZER 566,585 954,248
Loans to associates BYBMENRZER - 11,008
Loans to non-controlling interests BTIEERER B 451,573 1,195,388

1,018,158 2,160,644

The related interest income from the joint ventures and associates for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were HK$132,910,000 (2021:
HK$100,947,000) and nil (2021: HK$478,000) respectively.

The balances are interest bearing at rates ranging from 5.00% to
8.00% per annum (year ended 31 December 2021: from 4.90% to
8.00% per annum).

BE2022%F12A31HILEE - kA
BERARBERBNBAER S RA
2B &132,910,000 7T (20214 :
100,947,000 ) RE (2021 % :
478,000787C) °

EBIENT5.00% %2 8.00% K FEF =R (#
Z2021F12 A1 BIEEE © N F4.90%
£8.00%MEFE) =8 -
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40 Related-party transactions (continued)
(b) Leasing arrangements

U

(ii

)

The Group entered into leases in respect of certain leasehold
properties from its related parties, with lease terms ranging from
1 year to 3 years. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
amounts of rent payable by the Group under these leases to its
immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and associates were
HK$13,306,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$13,518,000),
nil (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$1,954,000) and
HK$29,368,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$30,156,000)
respectively. The related interest expenses from its immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates for the year ended 31
December 2022 were HK$265,000 (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$630,000), nil (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$1,115,000)
and HK$1,612,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$3,102,000)
respectively.

The Group also entered into a lease arrangement with its ultimate
holding company as a lessor. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the rental income in respect of the lease arrangement was
HK$8,246,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$9,508,000).

The prices for the above transactions were determined based on
mutual agreement between the parties.

(c) Other related party transactions

)

The Group entered into arrangements with its ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and an associate in which the Group
provides management services (training and property management) on
their behalf. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the management
fee income in respect of the management services provided to the
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and the associate were
HK$4,563,000, HK$3,001,000 and nil respectively (year ended 31
December 2021: HK$4,527,000, HK$2,477,000 and HK$466,000).

40 BBHR S (8)
(b) MEZH

U

(it

(i)

AEEREER TN E THENET A
4 AEHNT1E3F - HE2022F12
A3HLLFE @ AEERBEZSHLER
HEERRAR - AERNBRAAIREEA
AYHHTEE S RA13,306,000/8 T (F
Z2021F12 431 HILEE : 13,518,000
BIL) B (HZE2021F12A31 81k
FE 1,954,000 ) %29,368,000
B (HE2021F12A31HILFE -
30,156,000/87C) B ZE2022412 A31
AItFE  REEEERRAR  BZFE
bt 2 A Je Bt & A Rl AR BB R B R 2 5
£265,0004 7 (B(£2021F12H31H
IFFE : 630,00087m) « & (FHZE2021
F12A31BLEFE : 1,115,00087T) &
1,612,000 T (HZ=2021F12A31 81t
£ 1 3,102,00087T) °

AEBEEADBATEESEZERA A
AIVHERY - B E2022F12A31H
HFE - EEAEZHENASKRAR
8,246,000/ (B E2021F12 43181t
£ : 9,508,000/87T) °

LR B2 EBRLEETREHERE

iE °

(c) AR 22 o

U

AEBEESKERAR - ARENBA
Ak—TEBEDRILRE - Bt - &
EERBSREEERSE (EIIRDESE
) o HE2022612A31HILEE - &
BRI RKRZERAR - FRHBD R RZH
ELRIREEERBENEREBRAD A
4,563,000/ 7T + 3,001,000/ 7T % & (&
E2021F12A31HIEFE : 4,527,000
WL~ 2,477,000 7L 12 466,000/8 ) ©
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)
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A 5 22 5 (#)
(c) F:AtuBA s 22 5 (B

The Group entered into arrangements with its ultimate holding
company in which the Group provides management services on
its behalf in respect of certain agricultural lands and property
development projects. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
management fee income in respect of these management services
was HK$837,000 (year ended 31 December 2021: HK$888,000).

The Group entered into the Development and Construction Services
Agreement with the parent of its non-controlling interest. The parent
of its non-controlling interest will provide development, construction,
marketing and other services to the Group. The service fee shall be
determined and accrued and payable by the Group to the parent of
its non-controlling interest. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the cost in respect of these services was HK$84,979,000, included
value-added tax (year ended 31 December 2021: nil).

The Group entered into the Digital Platform Development Agreements
and the Digital Platform Repair and Maintenance Services Agreements
with its ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries for the
provision of services of development and maintenance of digital
platforms and systems. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
service fee income in respect of the development and maintenance
services provided to the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries were HK$9,828,000 and HK$5,651,000 respectively
(year ended 31 December 2021: nil and nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group provided
development and construction services to the subsidiaries of its joint
venture, Tian An Cyber Park (Group) Co.,Ltd, the relevant revenue
earned is HK$142,821,000 (year ended 31 December 2021:
HK$49,070,000).

(i

)

)

AEEHESKRERDBVLY B
W AEERERETRER MR MER
BIEAREEERE - BE2022F128
NBLFE  BHZSERRBENERE
WA %837,000/8 7T (B £2021F12 A 31
HIE4FE : 888,000/57T) ©

AEEEEFERER B AR VAR
BEBRBIRE o FERERZZBRAER
AEBRMHAE  BR - BHEREMGR
%o REBEMAESEBET Y ARIH
FTEHEFRER AT - BE2022F
12A31BLLEE BEZERE 25
BRI AN 584,979,000 7T (B E20214
12A31HLEFE : &) °

AEFREZEIERDRARARHBAR
FIREST(C T A RZFHOME R EER
Bmal AT T EERER BITRES
RAEBFTEBERBAR - HZ2022
F12ANALEFE  BARNGKRERA
ARERMEB AR 2 FAEREER
B2 RBERA S RIA9,828,000% T &
5,651,000/ 7 (B Z£2021F12A31H1E
FE:ERE) -

HE2022F12A31BILFE © KEER
HALENRAZYEN (£8) BRARZ
BB AR B AR - AT ELZ
BUiz5 /142,821,000 T (B F 20214
12 A31BILEE : 49,070,000/87T) °

The prices for the above mentioned transactions with related parties v FREBARZIZERIEEFHERE
were determined based on mutual agreement between the parties. BEE °
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40 Related-party transactions (continued) 40 BA%T A2 5 (A1)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (d) AREHMFEFHABZHE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Short term employee benefits REEERET 21,751 21,820
Post-employment benefits RIREF 2,851 2,793
Share-based payments B 15 X 14 5008 676 626
Total compensation paid to key management BENTEEEAEMERH
personnel 25,278 25,239

41 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of 41 A/ w] BB R0 &kt 52 B
the Company

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FAET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERZE 270 343
Interests in subsidiaries ENENG P £ 41,942,521 43,853,328
Investments in associates REBENRIZKE 13,424 18,970
41,956,215 43,872,641

Current assets REEE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BF0E « AT R EMERZRE 1,939 1,018
Other financial assets HitemEE 1,595 1,836
Cash and cash equivalents BehREEEY 996,220 1,820,573

999,754 1,823,427




41 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of
the Company (continued)
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AT BB IR DL Rk 2 ) (A

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THT
Current liabilities REEE
Bank and other borrowings RINEMEE 5,404,300 9,349,630
Other payables and accruals HitEN e R ETER 1,037,289 999,444
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A fR AR AR A B A 37,186 40,630
Due to the immediate holding company e BRI A R FIA 2,231,394 1,581,514
8,710,169 11,971,218
Net current assets REEEFE (7,710,415) (10,147,791)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEAE 34,245,800 33,724,850
Non-current liabilities FrEBEE
Bank and other borrowings ROMEMEE 10,947,038 9,800,012
10,947,038 9,800,012
Equity s
Share capital and premium BA K E 22,071,756 22,071,756
Other reserves Hin 108,294 107,618
Retained earnings RE & 1,118,712 1,745,464
Total equity BB 23,298,762 23,924,838
Total equity and non-current liabilities BoABERERBERE 34,245,800 33,724,850

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 29 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.

Dr. LU Hua
RERLT
Director

B

AR BRNBER2023F3A29BERKESE

SHE - URERE -

Ms. SHI Xiaomei
LB
Director

B
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41 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of 41 AAFMBRNERFEEZSD ()
the Company (continued)

Note: Reserve movement of the Company Wt - RARREEES
Retained
Share capital  Other reserves earnings Total
R Hitv e RERA ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THT THT THT TET
At 1 January 2022 M2022%F181R8 22,071,756 107,618 1,745,464 23,924,838
Total comprehensive income for the year FARAEEMBELEE - - 353,969 353,969
Cash dividends REWE - - (978,867) (978,867)
Equity-settled share option expense AR 7R 2 4+ 2 BE AR 2 - 676 - 676
Share repurchase A& 15 21 68 - - (1,854) (1,854)
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12831H 22,071,756 108,294 1,118,712 23,298,762
At 1 January 2021 M2021E181A8 22,071,756 104,163 2,432,503 24,608,422
Total comprehensive income for the year FARAEEMBELEE - - 914,942 914,942
Cash dividends BeRE - - (1,601,981) (1,601,981)
Equity-settled share option expense LARR 7R 24+ 2 BE AR A 2 - 3,455 - 3,455
At 31 December 2021 #2021%€12831H 22,071,756 107,618 1,745,464 23,924,838
42 Subsequent events 42 HIEEH

Subsequent to the end of the year, the board of the directors proposed a REEERERE - EZT2FRRAIRERE -

final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 14. HE—PHBEHERNE14 -
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43 Particulars of principal subsidiaries 43 FEME A
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022, all of T AR2022F12 A31 B EMNBRRIRE -
these are limited liability companies: ZERAABERELAR ¢

Nominal value of

issued and fully Proportion of ordinary
Place of paid share capital/  Proportion. of equity interest shares held by non- Principal activities and
registration paid-in capital held by the Group controlling interests place of operation

FEEBEREEME
2022 2021
20225 20215 20224

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) ~ PRC RMB800,000,000 75% 75% 25% 25%  Property investment and
Co., Ltd. (note d & ) development in the PRC

RERR (RB) RIAER  HE AR #800,000,0007 75% 75% 25% 2% RPEEENERER
2A (Fizd &) kS

Shum Yip Pengji Holdings ~ PRC RMB1,032,050,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property investment and
Co., Ltd (note b &) development in the PRC

7?%%5}%%% (5B) EBAR  HE AR%1,032,050,0007T 100% 100% 0% 0% RABERSNERERME
(FsEb &)

Shum Yip Investment PRC US$710,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Investment Holding in the
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC
(note b & f)

,%%M%Tzﬁx (ia%‘%\\) BRAR  HE 710,000,000% T 100% 100% 0% 0% RABERERERR

15t & f

Shum Yip Taifu Logistics PRC RMB323,799,552 98% 98% 2% 2%  Operation of warehouses
Group Holdings Co., Ltd. and property development
(note c) in the PRC

REREVREERNER & ARH323,799,5527C 98% 98% 2% 2% RPERFLEERRNE
2R (Mizke) Fa

Shum Yip (Shenzhen) PRC RMB30,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property management in the
Property Management PRC
Limited (note €)

AEEE (i?em) %)'%ﬁfi P AR%30,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEESYEER
BRAR (Mzke

Xinwang Industrial PRC US$100,744,000 95% 95% 5% 5%  Property development in the
Development (Shenzhen) PRC
Co., Ltd (note b)

%ﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ% ()‘}?&ﬂ\\) AR HE 100,744,000% 7T 95% 95% 5% 8% RPERENERE
) (WEED

Shenzhen Kezhigu PRC RMB784,528,950 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development and
Investment Limited property investment in
(note ¢) the PRC

;‘ﬁ”&l‘éﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂi}@&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl Gk AE#784,528 9507 100% 100% 0% 0% E/\;F m%mﬁﬁﬁé’é&%%
) &
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43 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 43 FEMEA A ()

Nominal valug of

issued and fully Proportion of ordinary
Place of paid share capital/  Proportion of equity interest shares held by non- Principal activities and
registration paid-in capital held by the Group controlling interests place of operation
GEGHT e / ; knRERREz 0
a2 X ’ LERE R FTELXBREENS
2022 2021
2022F 2022% 20215
Shenzhen Nongke Holdings  PRC RMB200,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development and
Company Limited (note c) property investment in
the PRC
MMENEEERAE  PE AE#200,000,0007T 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEESNEFAERNE
(Mt3Ee) ’E
Shenzhen Shum Yip Sky PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Park Co., Ltd (note c) PRC
A~ T g?%q: HERRAE  HE ARE100,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% RABERENERE
EEC
Ma’anshan Shenye Real PRC RMB70,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd (note c) PRC
%@m{&%iﬁﬁﬁwﬂ e AR#70,000,0007 100% 100% 0% 0% RPERENERE
&EC
Shenzhen Shenye Shenheng PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Business services in the
Investment Co., Ltd PRC
(note ¢)
MMAXREREARD +E AR#%10,000,0007 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEREXHERS
a) (fitsc)
Shenzhen real estate PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. PRC
(note )
*m‘”é%ﬁtﬁ g EM) BRAR HE AR#50,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEEENRAR
B
Hunan Pengxing Real Estate  PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Co., Ltd (note c) PRC
M%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ)%ﬁ%ﬁ RAA B AR#10,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% RAERENERE
EEC
Dongguan Shenye PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Songshanhu Real Estate PRC

Co., Ltd (note ¢)

RETAZDUSERER TE AR%10,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEESYRFEE
Al (Bzke)

Zhongshan Shenye PRC RMB1,000,000,000 44% 44% 56% 56%  Property investment and
Wansheng Investment development in the PRC

Co., Ltd. (note ¢)
*%Tﬁ%%ﬂ%&ﬁﬁlﬁm P AB%1,000,000,0007C 4% 4% 56% 56% RPEEENERARRE
RJ (Maze

Shenzhen Nongke PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property management in the
Dongcheng Real Estate PRC
Co., Ltd (note c)

5@?&@@%%% HE AE%10,000,0007 100% 100% 0% 0% RABEEENEER
7] (MizEc



Shenzhen Investment Limited #3I32M AR AR
Annual Report %% 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A5 A B 3R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5475) - FrE £ B ETIIR)

43 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 43  EEREA RN ()

Nominal value of

issued and fully Proportion of ordinary
Place of paid share capital/  Proportion of equity interest shares held by non- Principal activities and
registration paid-in capital held by the Group controlling interests place of operation

2 A / NS & Bl T
i ' 3 LRREH FEEB LA
2022 2021
20225 20214 20224

Shenzhen Jinzhi Logistics ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 53% 53% 47% 47%  Business services in the
Development Co., Ltd PRC
(note ¢)

REEBMRERERAR HE AK#100,000,0007 53% 53% 47% 41%  RHREESEBRE
(Mizkc)

17C

Taizhou Shenye Pengdi PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property investment and
Investment Co., Ltd development in the PRC
(note ¢)

FMREREREARAR HH AR #50,000,00070 100% 100% 0% 0% RAERENERERRE
GED)

Chengdu Shenye Tairan PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Huacheng Real Estate PRC
Development Co., Ltd
(note ¢)

RATAERRENFE FH AK#50,000,00070 100% 100% 0% 0% REERENERE
REBRAR (M)

Shenzhen Shenye Minghong  PRC RMB100,000,000 65% 65% 35% 35%  Property development in the
Real Estate Development PRC
Co., Ltd. (note ¢)

FIMAEREHEREE T AK#100,000,0007T 65% 65% 35% 35% RHEESNERE
R (Hzke)

Suzhou New Development  PRC RMB800,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC
(note c)

HMTERREERAR HE AR #800,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% ReERSNEHE
GED)

Shenzhen Yunwan Real PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 0% 49% 0%  Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd PRC
(note a & )

AIHTEEEXERAR  $E AK#10,000,0007 51% 0% 49% 0% RAERENERE
GEZE)

Nanjing Shenye Real Estate  PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Co., Ltd (note c) PRC

BRARMERRAR  PE AR%50,000,0007C 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEEENEFHE
(Mizkc)

&EC

Nanjing Shenwan Real PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd (note c) PRC

BMRREERERAE  TE AR%10,000,0007 100% 100% 0% 0% RPEEENERE

GED)
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43 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 43 FEMEA A ()

Nominal value of

issued and fully Proportion of ordinary
Place of paid share capital/  Proportion of equity interest shares held by non- Principal activities and
registration held by the Group controlling interests place of operation

SMbY - BSEL RigsH EEREG FBERRAENY
2021 2022 2021
20225 20215 20225 20214

Shenzhen real estate Co., ~ PRC RMB1,807,600,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Investment Holding in the
Ltd (note c) PRC
REEMBRAA HE AR¥1,807,600,0007T 100% 100% 0% 0% RRERERERR
(HsEce)
Shenzhen Mingsheng Real  PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% 0% 0%  Property development in the
Estate Co., Ltd (note c) PRC
MImAZHBLERRE FE AK#%10,000,0007 100% 100% 0% 0% RPERENEAZ
27 (M)
Shenzhen Huaju Real Estate  PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 0% 49% 0%  Property development in the
Co., Ltd (note a & ¢) PRC
MIMAXEERERRD HE ARK10,000,0007 51% 0% 49% 0% RABERENERE
7 (MizFa &c)
Shenzhen Jinghua Display ~ PRC RMB36.000,000 70% 70% 30% 30%  Manufacturing in the PRC
Electronics Co., Ltd
(note )
MIGEBTETROER 8 AR#36,000,0007C 70% 70% 30% 30% HRPE{ERE
N7 (Fise)
Notes: BisE -
(@)  The subsidiary is newly established by the Group during the year. @@ HHBARALEERNFTEARMMKL
(b)  Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise. () RPEKIAIINGBEDE -
(c) Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability. € RFBEKIABERNERETLE °
(d)  Established in the PRC as a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise. d REERIAEFIIGERE -
(e) Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise limited by shares. € RREKLABERRNERAF °
(f)  Subsidiaries directly held by the Company. ) BARTEERBZHBRA -
The English names of the Mainland China companies referred to above in EAm AR EEERE - REE XA
this note represent management's best efforts in translating the Chinese RilzHBEAEARENEHRARELEEDER
names of those companies as no English names have been registered or RENBEZSRAMP LT o

available.
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Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

BB — RBEEEHRRD RAR I RBERZYHEMES

Project Name

HE B

Address

b3k

Property interest held for future development

AEARRRZNEES

Interests

attributable to
the Company

AT

IHL S

Site Area

EIEE

Planned GFA
(sq.m.)
RUBEER
(£HHK)

EEYER

Expected
Completion
Year

st
EIER

Shanghai Jiading Shenjia Hydrogen Valley  Jiading, Shanghai

LETRERARIA

Shum Yip Tairong Mansion

Terra Wuhan Bio Valley Project
RANEENARER

Chaohu Royal Spring Garden, North
SRR
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden, South
EHEREER

Taizhou Tiande Lake Park, East
EMNREHAE R

Shum Yip Luxiyunjing

Kashi Residential Project (Land Plot 2)
BHEERR Gt )
Kashi Residential Project (Land Plot 3)
BAHEEER (03=)

Ma'anshan Cihu Industrial Land Plot

BEILEN TR

Shanghai International Automobile City
Residential Project
EEmERSEREEREE

LEmREER

Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuan
Il & R &R E R

Donghu Gaoxin, Wuhan, Hubei
LA RET R R IR

Bantang Economic Development Zone,
Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui
ZHESETENTSEERER

Bantang Economic Development Zone,
Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui
ZEEAETER S EEREE

Taizhou, Jiangsu
TEERMT

Changsha, Hunan

MEERDT

Kashi, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region

MERTRAERRRAT

Kashi, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region

HERTREAERTT

Ma'anshan, Anhui

ZHAEFRUT
Jiading, Shanghai

LETEER

Complex
e

Residential
TE

Residential
TE

Residential

FE

Residential

=

£

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

Residential
TE
Residential

FE

Industrial

I¥

Residential

=

F=E

100.00%

75.05%

52.54%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

44,728

80,333

93,201

78,827

81,537

146,738

61,327

17,129

25,783

67,108

43,129

102,874

224,624

260,000

28,997

22,085

250,998

83,719

25,694

38,664

111,221

86,257

2024

2025

2023

Unscheduled
A E
Unscheduled
B E

Unscheduled
AEatEl

Unscheduled
AEatEl

Unscheduled
AEEE
Unscheduled
AER

Unscheduled

AEatE
Unscheduled

KB



Shenzhen Investment Limited J&31% 0% 5 1R 2 &
Annual Report 3% 2022

Schedule of Major Properties
F YRR

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

BB — ABEEIHRRD RAH I RBRZYHEMES

Interests
attributable to

Project Name Address the Company
NG

HEEHE sk iR

Property interest held under development

Site Area

EEE

Planned GFA
(sq.m.)
RUBEER
(EHHK)

Expected
Completion
Year

Bt
EIEH

FERRP 2 WERER
Cloud Center Guangming, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 65.00% 48,681 220,240 2022-2024
REEE BERARMH AR FE
Shum Yip Chuangzhi Building Longgang, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial 100.00% 8,436 38,814 2024
REEIBERE BREFIIMEERE EX
Shum Yip Shanglinyuan Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Commercial 100.00% 6,015 41,990 2024
R MBS ERARIMEHE [EES
Huangbeiling Reconstruction Project Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Commercial 100.00% 6,751 53,479 2023
(Land Plot 04-01)
HRABENSERER (04-013037) BERARImRE [EES
Shum Yip Taifu Kechuang Square Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial 97.68% 8,965 64,010 2023
RERENEIES BREFIMBHE EX
Shum Yip Yinying Square Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial 97.68% 8,807 91,045 2025
RERERBRES BERA M RE 34
Shum Yip Natural City Pingshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 100.00% 66,857 307,500 2024
REILKRIBIER BRERIIMTLE T=
Shum Yip Nansha Hengli Island Hengli Island, Nansha, Residential 100.00% 66,277 232,445 2024
DH0502 Project Guangzhou, Guangdong
RERPEESDHOS02E TR BEREEMNTEYREES F=
Garden Hills Zhongkai Development Zone, Residential 100.00% 93,317 110,530 2022-2023
Huizhou, Guangdong
FILEE EREABMTMERER F=
Wanlin Huafu Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100.00% 72,922 225,060 2025
SEST EREBMNTEAE FE
Shum Yip Gaobangshan Garden 1#, Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 81.00% 48,253 120,654 2023
Phase 2.2 (Land Plot 1)
REREILFER.28 (153058) EREBMNTEAE FE
Huizhou Shum Yip Cloud Mansion Project  Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100.00% 44,678 129,519 2024
BMAEERNGIER EREBMNTERE F=
Shum Yip Zhongshan Future Gate Project ~ Cuiheng New District, Complex 50.00% 668,974 1,553,435 2028
Zhongshan, Guangdong
RERIIARKZFIEE ERETILTRFHE e
Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project Tuen Mun, New Territories, Residential 50.00% 12,205 43,938 2023
Hong Kong SAR
BRHMER ERERTRERREM =
Terra Chengdu Yihu Rose Garden Phase 4  Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Sichuan Residential 52.54% 46,697 163,441 2024
RAKFRABERS (M) mlEREBHERIE FE
Shum Yip Taiyue Mansion Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuan Residential 75.05% 22,801 105,522 2024

REFHT IIENE ot e



Shenzhen Investment Limited #3I32M AR AR
Annual Report %% 2022

Schedule of Major Properties

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

BB — RBEEEHRRD RAR I RBERZYHEMES

Project Name

BEER

Chengdu Qingbaijiang Shumyip
Taifu Square
KSR IAEREES

Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 4
ke {uk

The Cloud Mansion
R,

Longgang Dayun Land Plot
BEEAENR

Minzhi Street Project in Longhua District

EERRAHEER

Jiangyin Technology Innovation Park

TRHEIE

Chengdu Longquanyi Shum Yip City
RERERBAREMIAR

Shenyang Hanlin Road Land Plot 18
ESHME185 i RIE

Hexinan Land Plot G111
AFEGI11IEE

Shunde Shum Yip City
JEFER

Upper Coast Project
BiEIEEE

Shum Yip Yirui Mansion
REREIR

Interests
attributable to
Address the Company
AF
3k Pt
Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Sichuan Complex 97.68%
l[EVE iy =PantA e
Wuchang, Wuhan, Hubei Residential 52.54%
MILERETRERE T
High-tech Zone, Taizhou, Jiangsu Residential 100.00%
IEHEARMNT R TE
Longgang, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 51.00%
BERARImEER FE
Longhua, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 51.00%
BRERIIMEER TE
Jiangyin, Wuxi, Jiangsu Industrial 100.00%
LEA EG IR I%
Longquanyi, Chengdu, Sichuan Complex 51.00%
m)ll R &R R ER BE
Shenyang, Liaoning Complex 100.00%
BEREEET Ba
Jianye, Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential 100.00%
IHEARTEHE F=x
Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong Residential 100.00%
BRAHLTIRER T
Nanshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 51.00%
BREFIIMeELE TE
Guangming, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 100.00%
BRARIM AR T

Site Area

EBER
113,668

29,322

19,365

29,360

26,114

81,235

36,211

12,134

22,549

142,546

51,350

18,840

Planned GFA
(sg.m.)
REREEME
(FFHHK)

284,126

93,115

40,667

153,427

135,790

135,450

151,410

46,112

63,137

101,879

210,040

88,547

EEYER

Expected
Completion
Year

it
TIEH

2024

2024

2024

2025

2024

2023-2024

2024

2024

2024

2022-2023

2025

2024
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Schedule of Major Properties

EEYER

Group II — Property interest held by the Group for sales
B - AEERA RS EER

Property

ES

Address

3k

Interest to
the Group
rEE
Prit s

TGFA (sq.m.)

HREER
(F5%)

Completion year

ERESD

Shunde Shum Yip City Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 46,101.57 2012-2017
JEE R BRAFHILTIRER BAEREE
Xiyue City Huizhou, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 9,997.5 2012-2017
S5 BREEMT AEREE
Saina Bay Heyuan, Guangdong Com. & Res. 100% 4,107.63 2012
ENE BRETRT BAEREE
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma'anshan, Anhui Res. 99.77% 9,666.58 2013-2019
BBRILREER REEBRLT T
Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu, Sichuan Com. & Res. 52.54% 10,609.35 2013-2020
TRBESE 79)11& B #B T AEREE
UpperHills Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and House used 100% 74,389.43 2014, 2016,

for industrial R&D 2018
RE BRERT BE - PRER

EXMERRE
Taifu Square Phase 1 Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 97.68% 105,245.03 2019
ZEES1H BRERT B¥ - PREREE
Sky Park Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Res. 100% 78,494.55 2019
RER BRAERm HE - BRAEREE
Shum Yip Gaobangshan No. 1 Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 174.37 2019
=LKL BRABMT FE
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 3.2 Changsha, Hunan Residential 80% 6,801.16 2020
REEW3.2H MEERDT F=
Shum Yip Garden Hills Phase 3.2.1 Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100% 67,896.2 2020
REFINEZE3.2.15 BRABMT TE
Shum Yip West Lake Sanli Phase 2.1 Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100% 8,284.16 2020
REAHR=E2.18 BRAEMT F=
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.2 (North) Ma'anshan, Anhui Residential 99.77% 6,824.89 2020
BRILREEMH2EEILE REEFRILT TE
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden Bantang Economic Development Zone, Residential 100% 3,460 2015-2020

Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui

EMHRE RELAETENFZEBERER (£
Cloud Center Guangming, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential 65% 327,209 2022
REEE BRARTHAE F=
Garden Hills Zhongkai, Development Zone, Residential 100% 345,872 2022

Huizhou, Guangdong

HE5E ERABMTIHERER FE



Group II - Property interest held by the Group for sales
BB — AR RSB R A

Property

m

Parkview Bay
2R

Shum Yip Upper Life
REFBLRE

Shum Yip Qinglong Mansion
REBRLR

Wanlin Lake
b=y Ve

Shum Yip Splendid City
RERFBE

Shum Yip Heron Mansion

RERMAT

Shum Yip Boyuan
REBE

Shum Yip Zhifeng Building
REBUAE

Terra Licheng
AL

Nanhu Rose Bay
bk

Shum Yip Four Seasons Mansion
RENFEE

Wanlin Hua fu

SESF
Shum Yip Starry Lakeshore
REMHER

Foshan Lishui Bustling City
Rl 2K SR

Shum Yip Longwan Mansion
RERE LR

Shenma East China Industrial
Technology Industrial Park

AEERTENBEXR

Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2

BRLREER -

Address

ik

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRERT

Nanjing, Jiangsu

TEHEERT

Nanjing, Jiangsu
TEAERRT

Huizhou, Guangdong

EREEMT

Taizhou, Jiangsu
TEAZMT

Changsha, Hunan

HEARDT

Chengdu, Sichuan
)| B &

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERT

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRAERT

Wuhan, Hubei
MILERET

Chengdu, Sichuan
)| B &

Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong

ERAEMNMENE

Songshan Lake, Dongguan,
Guangdong

BERARZ ML

Nanhai, Foshan, Guangdong
BRABLTHER

Jianye, Nanjing, Jiangsu

THEARTESE
Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui
ZEEFRLITRLE

Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui
ZEEFRLTHILE

Com. & Res.
AERkEE

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Com. & Res.
BEREE

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Com. and Off.
BERBAE

Off.

NS

Com. and Off.
BERBAE

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Residential
FE

Residential
=

Residential
FE

Industrial
I

Residential
=
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Schedule of Major Properties

Interest to
the Group

AEE

ik

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

88.04%

51.62%

75.05%

75.06%

75.05%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

TGFA (sg.m.)

AEEER
(FHHK)

4,166.52

31,192.84

20,396.82

15,876.22

36,103.95

37,896.3

7,250.14

71,423.28

33,635.28

7,305.96

40,713.39

314,290

169,956

79,407

60,727

52,598

669,964

EEYER

Completion year
ERER

2021
2021
2021
2019
2021
2021
2018
2021
2020
2018
2021
2022

2022

2022
2022

2022

2022
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Schedule of Major Properties

EEYER

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BB — AREF A R Z Y

Property

EES

Shun Hing Square

Shum Yip Centre

RERL

Hua Min Building

ERAE

Hua Min Building

ERAE

Shum Yip Building
RERE

Noble Times

RERR
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone

BABIXR

Shenhua Science & Technology Park
RENER

Tian'an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone

RRERFEIER

Tian'an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase 2

AR SEIEH 2

Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City
AR EBEIEHM

Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City
RE A EFEIM

Tian'an Dongguan New Cyber-City
RRREHHIM

Tian'an Jiangyin Cyber-City
ALTREEIEM

Tian'an Fenggang Cyber-City
AR B A ETE

Shumyip Taifu Square
REFERES

Qingbaijiang Shumyip Taifu Square
under construction
BRIARREESERTRE

Address

it

Junction of Shennan Zhong Road,
Jiefang Road and Baoan Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong

IR & PRI 28 48 1 R 7 P B AR A
RERERR

Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu,
Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRARIT R R I

Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRERMESRARER

Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong

ERBMHEABEARBR

Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
JER A RN 28 4 3 35 e B

Pingshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERE R LE

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong

EREAImEHR

Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen,
Guangdong

BRARITEE R

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERARHERER

Nanhai, Guangdong
BRERE

Panyu, Guangdong
BEREER

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERT

Dongguan, Guangdong

BERERET

Jiangyin, Jiangsu
IEAIRT

Dongguan, Guangdong
BRERZT

Luohu, \Shen;z_her), Guangdong
BRERIIMEHE

Chengdu, Sichuan
79 )11 B #B T

Off., Apartment. and Carpark

Com., Off. and Carpark

A¥ - PREREFEES

Apartment., Com. and
Carpark

A BEREES

Apartment

Com., Off.,
Res. and Carpark
B HAE
EERESS
Com. and Off.
BERPRE

0Off., Com., Res. and Carpark
PRE  BRETREDRS

Com., Off. and Carpark
AE - BREREES

Com., Res. and Carpark
B% - TEREES

Com., Off. and Carpark
BE - BPREREES

Com., Off. and Carpark
BE - BREREES

Res. and Off.
FERPAE

Com., Off. and Apartment
BE - PRERREB

Com., Off. and Carpark
BX - HREREES

Com., Off. and Carpark
B MAEREES

Interest to
the Group

S
ik R

100%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

75.05%

75.05%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

97.68%

98.81%

TGFA (sq.m.)

AREER
(FFHHK)

17,817.12

10,376.58

6,252.73

947.42

7,877.21

26,975.97

143,916.74

15,341.58

58,855.38

92,668.83

131,458.11

51,462.20

95,510.84

26,634.50

77,856.5

54,186.51

81,228.29

Completion year

ERED

1996

1997

1993

1993

1991

2012

1994-2012

1994

1992-2005

2008-2015

2010

2010-2014

2012-2017

2012-2017

2017-2019

2020

2024
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EEYER

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BB — AREF A R Y s

Property

ES

Longquanyi Shum Yip Taifu Square
under construction

Address

i3k

Chengdu, Sichuan

Com. and Carpark

Interest to
the Group

A5E
ik s

97.68%

TGFA (sq.m.)

BRAER
(FFHK)

45,727.00

Completion year

EBESD

ERBRAERERYUERIR m )| & B BEREES

Tian'an Changzhou New Cyber-City Changzhou, Jiangsu 0Off. and Com. 37.53% 29,370.47 2012

R EMEFEHM TERE BT BREREE

Tian'an Qingdao New Cyber-City Qingdao, Shandong Off. 37.53% 16,611.31 2015-2017

RREBEBIM LEEESM BRE

Tian'an Tianjin New Cyber-City Xiging, Tianjin Off. 37.53% 20,130.65 2016

RERRBEEH RETEFR WAE

Tian'an Chongging New Cyber-City Da Du Kou, Chongging Com 37.53% 16,134.55 2015

AR EEHIEHM BETAEA [EES

Tian'an Wuxi Cyber-City Wuxi,Jiangsu 0Off. and Com. 37.53% 75,832.00 2014

RRES BB LB EHT BREREE

Tian'an Nantong Cyber-City Nantong, Jiangsu Off. and Com. 37.53% 92,302.07 2011

ALFBEIE IEERAT MAEREE

Tian'an Nanjing Cyber-City Nanjing, Jiangsu Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 115,100.60 2014-2015

RZHREE TERERRT BE - PRERESS

Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002

RETE BRARIMERR EES

Sungang Warehouse Zone Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 72,564.21 1990-2002
Guangdong

FHEER BRERIMEHEERILRE Ax

Composite Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. and Off. 97.68% 4,812.73 1991
Guangdong

HhREGAE BREFMIMBABRERIE BMERRRE

Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com./Res. 97.68% 4,835.28 1988
Guangdong

HREE SR BRAEFMIMBABRELILE [

Boxing Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 12,861.05 2014
Guangdong

BEAE BRAE AT R MEE KA GRS

Bolong Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 41,305.31 2014
Guangdong

[EL: PN BRA R RAEE KA [EES

Bofeng Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen, Com. 97.68% 10,199.34 2017
Guangdong

BEXE BRARIT BB KA [EES

S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Investment Junction of Zhenxing Road Off. 75.05% 1,316.54 1990

Corp. Building and Shangbu Zhong Road,

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong

RIERETREERRAE R R4 R B YN
EHRERR

Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com 93.39% 17,155.70 1994-1996

BERERER BEEREGT [EES
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Schedule of Major Properties

EEYER

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BB — AREF A R Z Y

Property

S

Address

it

Properties which are insignificant are not included.

Interest to
the Group
A5E
Freb R

TGFA (sg.m.)

SAEER
(F5%)

TOERTRRELEEM M -

Completion year

ERED

Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station Shenyang, Liaoning Com. 93.39% 106,911.95 2011
and Meibo Trading Centre
BEIERBREMREFE L BERREGT [EES
Coastal International Centre Suzhou, Jiangsu Com., Apartment. and Off. 100% 56,606.73 2009
SRR TEEFN T B ABEHAE
Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop Chengdu, Sichuan Com. and Carpark 87.91% 29,013.03 2008
REBRFHELS )11 B T AEREES
UpperHills Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 348,113.31 2017-2019
RE LM BRERIIT BE - BREREES
Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangdong and Com., Res., Off. and Carpark 100% 198,855.42 1983-2005
Nanjing, Jiangsu
LRSS BRA R RIEE R HE - AE - WAEKEES
Xiangli Oasis Club Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 2,212.09 2003
EniMe BRERMEHR GRS
Times Technology Building Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Off. 100% 53,003.69 2009
FREHAE BEREFIMEHE BERPRE
Longxi Garden Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 2,665.37 1984-1996
BREEE BRERIMERE FE
Nongke Oasis Office Tower Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. 100% 5,343.91 2012
BRI BRARIMERE WAE
Nongke Business Office Tower Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. and Com. 100% 859.16 2012
EHBEBHEAR BREARMERR PREREE
Xiangli Garden Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. 100% 3,190.38 2003
EHitE BERAFIMEEE RS
Tanglang City Nanshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Carpark and Res. 50% 69,793.98 2015-2018
SRR BERARMmELE B FESREE
Shum Yip Dongling Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Carpark 95% 39,460.07 2018
RERIR BERA M RE BEREES
Jinzhi Properties Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off. and multiple-use 41.28% 5,054.08 1988
ERE BERA M RE BRERGARE
Sky Park Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com. and Hotel 100% 29,067.40 2020
RER BERARIMEHE AERBE
Note to Schedule of Major Properties: FEYERWT



TT3 R B F PR T e

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED FSC

wwwfsc.org
MIX

Paper | Supporting
responsible forestry

www.shenzheninvestment.com FSC™ C021898




	封面
	目錄
	公司簡介
	公司資料
	2022 年業績摘要
	五年財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級行政人員
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	主要物業表
	封底



